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INTRODUCTION
VOLUME I

The Public Accounts of the Province of New Brunswick are presented in five volumes.

Volume I contains the audited financial statements of the reporting entity of the Province
as described in Note 1 to the financial statements. They include a Statement of Financial
Position, a Statement of Revenue and Expenditure, a Statement of Cash Flow and a
Statement of Net Debt. Volume I also contains the Auditor’s Report, Statement of
Responsibility and a variance analysis.

Volume II contains unaudited supplementary information to the Financial Statements
presented in Volume I. It presents summary statements for revenue and expenditure as
well as five-year comparative statements. This volume also contains detailed information
on Supplementary Appropriations, Funded Debt, statements of the General Sinking Fund,
Securities Held, and revenue and expenditure by government department (this includes
salary, travel, vendor, grant and contribution, and loan disbursement listings).

This volume contains the financial statements of those corporations, boards and
commissions which are accountable for the administration of their financial affairs
and resources to the Government or Legislature of the Province. The Government
or Legislature also has the power to control these organizations either through
ownership or through legislative provisions.

Volume IV contains the financial statements of various trust funds which the Province
administers as Trustee.

Volume V contains salary listings of certain government organizations, including regional
hospital corporations, New Brunswick Power Corporation, New Brunswick Liquor
Corporation and the Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation Commission of New
Brunswick. The salary listings are for employees who received earnings during the year
ended 31 December 2001 in excess of $40,000.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Apvisory COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
" 31 MARCH 2002
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

Nowrew :.E.: Brunswick

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairperson and Members
Advisory Council on the Status of Women

| have audited the balance sheet of the Advisory Council on the Status of Women as at 31 March 2002
and the statement of revenue, expense and surplus for the year then ended. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Council's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audit. ‘

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position. of
the Council as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance -
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

7D Kobnlro,

K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
10 June 2002
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ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001

ASSETS
Cash . $ - $ 2,775
Accounts receivable - Province of New Brunswick . - 138,197 1,000

$138,197 §$ 3,775

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

Surplus $138,197 $ 3,775

Approyed by the Council

Chairperson

Member
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ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSE AND SURPLUS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

2002
Budget 2002 2001
REVENUE
Grants - Province of New Brunswick $ 436600 $ 429992 $ 431,221
Other : - - 18,305
436,600 429,992 449 526
EXPENSE
Personal services - - 221,800 131,486 199,054
Other services 174,800 134,003 239,420
- Materials and supplies ) 15,000 8,561 18,737
Property and equipment 5,000 8,490 15,970
Contributions and grants 20,000 13,030 12,900
Debt and other charges - - 63
436,600 295,570 486,144
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSE - 134,422 (36,618)
Surplus, beginning of year - 3,775 40,393

SURPLUS, end of year $ - $ 138,197 $ 3,775
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ADVISORY COUNCIL-ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

1.  Purpose of the organization

The Advisory Council on the Status of Women advises the New Brunswick government on matters
relating to the status of women and brings before the public issues of concem to women.

2. Significant accounting policies

It is the policy of the Council to charge all fixed asset purchases to ekpense in the year in which
the expenditure is incurred. ‘

3. ' Expenses not included in these financial statements

The rental of the Council's office and thé majonty ‘of translation costs are paid for by the Province
of New Brunswick and have not been included in the Council's expenses.

The Department of Finance has assumed responsibility for the costs of the financial administration
of the Council. '
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ArcoNQuiN GorLr LiviTeD
31 DECEMBER 2001
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

Nouvea 1@: Brunswick

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholder of
Algonquin Golf Limited

1 have audited the balance sheet of Algonquin Golf Limited as at 31 December 2001 and the statements of
revenue, expense and deficit and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Corporation's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

in my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as at 31 December 2001 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N.B.
14 May 2002
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' ALGONQUIN GOLF LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
31 DECEMBER 2001

“ ASSETS R 2000
- Current Assets: : o ) ] . TR
" Cash & short term investments (Note 8) $ 257,771 0§ 284,069 . e

Accounts Receivable ‘ 1,983 1,931
* Prepaid Expenses - . 2950  __ 13085 v -
SR . 262,704 ' 299 085 e
Capital Assets (Note 3) . 6793583 12T 210:_’-?-1 SEI
| | 'S 7056287 S 7576295
LIABILITES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY i o :
Current Liabilities . ‘ LT
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities __$ 917,178 $ 611174
| Long Term Lnabllmes | | |
Deferred Contributions Related to Capltal A e o
Assets (Note 5) - 1,975,741 2,082,538 S
Due to Province of New Brunswick (Note 4) 4,572,514 4,572,514 . -
Interest on Construction Loan - 284,543 288858 .
Leases Payable (Note 7) : 162,607 221453
‘ ' 6,995,405 7,165,363
- Capital Stock ' : Ce e
Issued and Fully Paid 1 Common Share | 1
Contributed Surplus (Note 6) 59,531 59,531 - -
Deficit , (915.828) (259.774) o
' (856,297) (200243) . -

$ 7056287 S 7576295 -

Approved by the Board N

Director

Director
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ALGONQUIN GOLF LIMITED o
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSE AND DEFICIT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

NET PROFIT / (LOSS)

Deficit, beginning of year

DEFICIT, end of year

Budget 2001 2000
- REVENUE , o
Green fees and rentals $1332250 $1,111,076 --$ 691,989
Food sales ..134,247 - 78,180 - 73,208 .
Beverage sales 104,916 75,360 56,446
RDC Grant (Note 5) ; - 106,797 .. - 53,398
Pro-Shop Comxmssnon 28,535 - 21,159 - - 16,545 -
Interest . - - 12,155 - .. 93819
$1,599,948 $1,404,727 $ 901,405
EXPENSE o _ '
Direct costs v 1,004,062 824909 - 522271
Administrative and general 233,313 125,720 69,384
Advertising and promotion 128,673 117,533~ 81,905
Repairs and maintenance 23,999 19,324 11,147
Heat, hght power and water 60,451 58,613 23,552
Property taxes 59,613 61,213 25,873
Management fees . 47,999 38,648 22,294
Interest on construction loan (N ote 4) 300,000 - 296,057 155,157
Interest on leases o - 18223 -~ -
Amortization — capital assets 400,000 500,541 - 249,596
2,258,110 2,060,781 1,161,179

5 (658,162)

$ (656,054)

$ @597

(259,774)

'$(915,328)

$(259,774)
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ALGONQUIN GOLF LIMITED |
- STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

' CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR):

Operating Activities:
Net loss for the year
Add item not involving cash:
Amortization :
Increase of non-cash components of workmg capltal

Financing activities
Interest to the Province on the loan for construction
Increase in construction loan from the Province (Note 4)
RDC contributions related to capital assets (Note S)
Contributed surplus .
Capital Leases

Investing activities:
Purchases of capital assets — construction

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
Cash Position, beginning of year

CASH POSITION, end of year

$ (656 054) $ (259, 774)

2000

500,541 - 249, 596
20,084 272,644
(126,429) 262,466
296,057 231,443
. 305,887
(106,797) - (53,398)
- 59531
(12216) 221,453
117044 764,916
(16913)  (743,313)
(16913)_ (743,313)

| (26298) - 284069

'$ 257,771 $ 284,069
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ALGONQUIN GOLF LIMITED
~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘31 DECEMBER 2001

1. Description of Opera_tions'

- Algonquin Golf Limited was incorporated on 29 May 1998 under the New
~ Brunswick Business Corporations Act. Its purpose is to own and operate the golf -
~ course previously owned by Algonquin Properties Limited. - ~The company is
wholly owned by the Province of New Brunswick. s -

" The first year of operations was 2000; the course opened on July 1. Atthat time, =
~ the golf course assets owned by Algonquin Properties Limited - buildings, -
~ equipment and land - were transferred from Algonquin Properties Limited to
Algonquin Golf Limited. After this transfer, the assets, revenues and expenses of
the golf course were recorded in the Algonquin Golf Limited financial statements.
 The company has a management agreement which contracts ‘the day-to-day
management of the course to Fairmont Hotels Inc. ‘

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Capital Assets

a) A reserve for replacement of equipment has been established pursuant to
the management agreement with Fairmont Hotels Inc. The agreement.
states that each year an amount not to exceed a maximum of one and one = .
half percent (1.5%) of gross revenue may be added to this reserve. L
" Purchase of furniture, fixtures, course equipment and minor enhancements
will be charged against this reserve up to the balance in the account.

b) Replacement costs of china, glassware and other plubhouse supplies are |
- charged to expense in the year of purchase. -~ B I
;:) Amortization of capital assets of the course have been - approved by S

management on a straight line basis at the rates shown in Note 3.

3. Capital Assets

Work on the redesign, construction and furnishings of the new signature golf -
course at the Algonquin golf course site began in January of 1998. The work was
‘completed and the course opened for operation in the summer of 2000. As of o
December 2001, the following costs had been incurred: ' 1 -
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ALGONQUIN GOLF LIMITED »
~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 31 DECEMBER 2001 ’
- Capital Assets ‘ Rate Cost - Accumulated Unamortized
- Amortization ~ Balance
Land = ' 0% $211,557 - $0 - $211,557
~ - Buildings _ 5% 1,377,250 103,293 1,273,957
- Golf Course Improvements 5% 4,937,843 370,263 4,567,580 -

- Golf Course Equipment -~ 20% 755,900 226,770 - - . 529,130
" External Improvements 15% 178,196 - 40,094 138,102 -
. Furniture and Fixtures 8% 7098 - - 8518 - 62468
" Building Improvements 10% 11,988 - . L199 10,789 -

o ' $7,543,720 §750,137 $6,793,583
4. Due to Province of New Brunswick

The full amount of the loan from the Province totaling $4,572,514 was received |

over a period of three years with the final amount received in the year 2000. This

loan is repayable no later than 31 March 2013, commencing with an interest only

payment on March 31, 2002 of $300,372 and then through blended payments of

. principal and interest each and every year together with a final installment of

~ principal and interest of $1,148,476 on March 31, 2013. The loan bears interest at

the rate of 6% compounded semi-annually not in advance, beginning in 1999.

Interest accrued on this loan for 2001 was $296,057 (2000 - $23 1,443).

Deferred Contribution

In 1998, Algonquin Golf Limited received a non-repayable COntﬁbution of o

$2,135,936 from the Regional Development Corporation towards costs associated

‘with the redesign, construction, furnishings and equipment for the new signature

~ golf course at the Algonquin golf site. The full amount was recorded -as deferred

* revenue until the opening of the course. This amount is being amortized over the
same period as the assets, which the contribution was used to fund, at a rate of 5%

annually.

13-
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' ALGONQUIN GOLF LIMITED

' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2001

6. Contributed Surplus

" The contributed ‘surplus represents ‘the book value of the former clubhouse:
building that was transferred from Algonquin Properties Limited. - o

g, Obligations Under bCapAitai Leases

Capital leases are in place for golf carts and golf maintenance equipment. The -
gross amount of assets under capital lease is $377,243 with accumulated

- amortization totaling $113,173. Leases for both the.golf carts and golf
maintenance equipment are set to expire in 2004. The total future principal and
interest payments for capital leases amounts to $263,171.. That amount includes
$239,674 in principal and $23,497 in interest. Of the $239,674, $77,067 is due in
current year and appears in current liabilities. o

Minimum annual principal and interest payments in each of the next three years
are as follows:

~ Fiscal Year
2002 - $90,438
2003 ' - $90,438
2004  $82.295

$263.171

8. ‘Short Term Iiivestments

As of December 31, 2001 Algonquin Golf Limited held short term investmenté in
~ the amount of $250,000. They are in the form of Government of New Brunswick
Treasury Bills and are valued at the lower of cost or market value. e
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 ALGONQUIN GOLF LIMITED
 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER2001

9. " Related Partv'TranSactions 5

. Under the Manégéiném Agreement, Fairmont Hotels Inc. may:

e .purchése Avgoods identified as goods of the operator through'-thé e

purchasing department of the operator and the operator shall charge a - E
purchasing fee in the amount of 5% of the cost, ' S
- contract for advertising and promotional programs for the Algonquin

as a member of the operator hotel chain, the cost of which shall be o

. paid by the operator, , S _ :

- contract for public relations programs and conduct public relations

activities for the Algonquin as a member of the operator’s hotel chain
the cost of which shall be paid to the operator.

R - ‘These types of expenditures are allocated to the appropriate expense items on the
Statement of Revenue, Expense and Deficit. '

" Of the total accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $917,178 (2000 - -

.$611,174), $492,445 is payable to Algonquin Properties Limited. (2000 - :

- $511,367) This payable is related to the transfer of revenues, expenses, assets and

- liabilities between the two corporations when the golf course officially opened on

July 1, 2000 as well as the work done for the course which was paid for by

Algonquin Properties Limited. The amount will be reimbursed when sufficient
funds are available.
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“ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- ALcoNQUIN ProPERTIES LiMITED
‘31 DECEMBER 2001
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: - : R ; Officeof the Bureau da
Auditor General - vérificateur général

 Nouveau £l Brunswick

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholderof - =
Algonquin Properties Limited

| have audited the balance sheet of Algonquin Properties Limited as at 31 December 2001 and- the
statements of revenue and expense, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
_statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. :

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the company as at 31 December 2001 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

KD Rob bon
K. D. Robinson, CA
‘Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
14 May 2002
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" ALGONQUIN PROPERTIES LIMITED -
_* BALANCE SHEET
. 31 DECEMBER 2001

2000 2000

_ASSETS
.Current assets - ‘ - . : o I
Cash and short term mvestments (Note 6) $ 2531626 -$ 2,381,225 - - -
- Accounts receivable (Note 5¢) - : ‘ o0 793,204 ‘ 719,642
- Inventories, at cost . 107,535 "~ 102,504 -
- Prepaid expenses o - - . 43135 - 61,727 ‘
o - 3,475,500 3,265,008 B
 Capital assets (Note 3) | ' . 15693736 . 16128139 .
- ' $ 19,169,236 $ 19,393,237
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER;S EQUITY
Current liabilities _
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 397,475 ‘$ 415,010
. Due to Fairmont Hotels Inc. - 213,502 . -201,443
. Advance deposits _ 20,939 17,615
' 631,916 634,068
“Capital stock
Authorized
10,000 common shares aggregate value not to exceed $100 000
9,000 8% non-cumulative redeemable preferred
shares with a par value of $100 each
Issued and fully paid . ' e
5,000 common shares - - 50,000 ’ 50,000
‘2,500 preferred shares 250,000 250,000
: 300,000 300,000
Contributed Surplus (Note 4) . ' 40238428 40,238,428
Deficit - (22,001,108) (21,779 259)
o 18,537,320 18,759,169
$ 19,169,236 $ 19393237

Approved by the Board . - .
g Director

Director
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. ALGONQUIN PROPERTIES LIMITED
'STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE

FOR THE'YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

 REVENUE -~

Room séfes

- . Food sales
" Beverage sales
- Green fees and rentals
- Telephone

. EX

Other sport activities
Miscellaneous
Interest

PENSE
Directcosts
Administrativeand general
Advertising and promotion
Repairs and maintenance

- Heat, light, power and water

. Loss due to write down of assets

Property taxes
Managementfees
Amortization— capital assets

NETLOSS |

2001

2002

2000

_Budgef
' $5378349 . .$4507,054 $4779831
2666763 .- 2233718 2656070 .
687,908 577436 672061 =
S - 147,448
86,770 84,903 86,492
88,400 92,423 81,692
95,733 115,708 139703
- 72,704 - 63978
9,003,923 7683946 8621275
4215671 3580654 4386610 . .
683977 802525 870,115
639274 599223 562468
686987 73412 = 694462
443095 .. . 420406 4565515
321687 < 330,321 344488
625106 - 356392 416420
1200000 - 1082152 1,124,473 -
o 257932
8815797 - 7905795 911248
$188,126 = $(221,849)

5(485208)
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" ALGONQUIN PROPERTIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

~ Capital Stock

* Openingand Closing Balance |

. | ) - )
‘Opening Balance
. Netloss

-~ Ending Balance
Contributed Surplus
- Opening Balance

_ Loans/AdvancesForgiven

Assets Transferred to AGL

'Ending Balance

- Total Equity

2001

$ 300,000 $ - 300,000
$ (21,779,259)  $(21204,051)
(221,849) (485,.208) - -
$ (22,001,108) $(21,779.259)
$ 40238428 $ 38047960
R 2.250.000 .~
- (69,532)
$40238.428 $40238,498
$18,537,320 $18759,169
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 'ALGONQUIN PROPERTIES LIMITED
. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

- - FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

- 2000

) , 12001
' CASHPROVIDED BY (USED FOR): -
. Operating activities: : R
" .- Netloss for the year - $(221,849) $(485,208)
o - 7 Additemnotinvolvingcash: . ' : :
. Amortization C 1,082,152 1,124,473
B _Increase of non-cash components of working capital - (62,153) (298,872)
.- Loss due to write down of assets - 257,932
' 798,150 598,325
_ Finéncing activities: _ _ S
- ! Advances from the Province - - 2,250,000
’ ' - 2,250,000
- -Investing activities: _ . :
Purchases of capital assets — renovations (647,749) (522,441)
. (647,749) (522,441)
~ INCREASE IN CASH 150,401 2,325,884
| Cash Position, beginning of year 2,381,225 55,341 .
$ 2531626  $ 2,381,225

" CASHPOSITION, end of year
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ALGONQUIN PROPERTIES LIMITED
'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2001 -

1. Description of operétionst

The Company is wh'olfy-owned by the Province of New Brunswick and administers the opérations of -
. the Algonquin Hotel. By means of a management agreement, the Company has contracted the day--
- to-day management of the hotel operations to Fairmont Hotels Inc. S :

- OnJuly 1, 2000 the rebuilt golf éoufse became fully operational and was separated from the

' corporation. The golf course assets, building, land and equipment were transferred to Algonqu:in"GoIf'- -

" Limited. After this transfer of assets, golf revenues and -expenses were recorded in the books -of
* Algonquin Golf Limited. » . : R =

2. Summary of significant accounting policies-

(@) A reserve for replacement of equipment has been established pursuant to the management
" agreement with Fairmont Hotels Inc. to represent limits on the replacement of equipment chargeable
_to the operation of the hotel. The agreement states that each year an amount not to exceed a
maximum of one and one half percent (1.5%) of gross revenue may be added to this reserve.
Purchases of furniture, fixtures and equipment are charged against this reserve up to the balance in

the account. - A «

(b) Replacement costs of china, glassware, silverware, utensils, linen, and similar equipmeht are
charged to expense in year of purchase pursuant to the management agreement with Fairmont
Hotels Inc. :

()  Amortization of capital assets has been approved by managementon a straight-line basis at the
. rates shown in Note 3. - : A

3. Capital assets

Accumulated Unamortized
Rate Cost Amortization Balance
"~ Land - 3 130,282 $ - $ 130,282
- Buildings, improvements - N S
“and equipment . 25-10% 23,174,660 8,390,257 14,784,403
Operating equipment -8-20% 3,078,902 2,299,851 - 779,051

5 26383844 $ 10690108 5 15693736

 Assets are chargéd for a full year's amortization in the year of purchase.
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ALGONQUIN PROPERTIES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER2001 -

4.

5.

Contributed Surplus

Contributed surplus results ﬁom the fo_rgivené*ss by the Province of New Brunswick, during 1999 and

-2000, of all loans and advances, including accrued interest.

Related party transactions

(a) Employees of the Province and Fairmont Hotels Inc., who are on business in connection with the

management -and operation of the Algonquin Hotel, are provided reasonable room
accommodations, meals, laundry and valet services without charge. -

All other goods ana'services provided by the Hotel to provincial employees are charged to those
employees at fair market value. . : : g

{b) Under the Management Agreement, Fairmont Hotels Inc. (the operator) may:

. purchase goods identified as goods of the Operator through the purchasing department of
the Operator and the Operator shall charge a purchasing fee in the amount of 5% of the
cost; ’ ‘

- contract for advertising and promotional programs for the Algonquin as @ member of the
Operator’s hotel chain, the cost of which shall be paid to the Operator; :

. -contract for public relations programs and conduct public relations activities for the
Algonquin as a member of the Operator’s hotel chain, the cost of which shall be paid to the
Operator; ’ ' '

2002

. obtain the services of the Operator's reservation facility known as the Global Reservation

' Centre, at rates mutually agreed to by the parties from time to time; and,
. - obtain technical and specialized operational expertise (personnel of the Operator), at rates
to be negotiated between both parties. This type of expertise would generally be related to
a capital renovation program. : ‘ '

During 2001, Fairmont Hotels Inc. headquarters invoiced the Algonquin Hotel for a total of$1,111,700

(2000 - $1,125,387) for such services.. The Algonquin also paid for $ 18,789 (2000 - $110,534) of

goods and services from other Fairmont Hotels during 2001. These amounts have been allocated to
the appropriate expense items on the Statement of Revenue and Expense. o

c) The operationis of the Golf Course were separated from the Hotel operations on July 1, 2000

when the course became fully operational. The receivable is related to the transfer of revenues,

. expenses, assets and liabilities between the two corporations. The total receivable from

Algonquin Golf Limited. is $492,445 (2000 - $511,367). This amount will be reimbursed when
sufficient funds are available. : o S
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ALGONQUIN PROPERTIES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2001 '

6. Short Term lnvesﬁnents

As of December 31, 2001 Algonquin Propemes Limited held short term |nvestments in the amount of
$1,800,000 (2000 - $2,100,000). - They are in the form of Govemment of New Brunswick Treasury
Bills and valued at lower of cost or market value. v
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Grant Thomton LLP

Manngemant Consultants | Grant Thornton% -

Canadian Member Firm of
Grant Thomton Intemational

Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick

We have audited the balance sheets of the Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities of the
Province of New Brunswick as at March 31, 2002 and the statements of revenue and expenses and
(deficit) surplus and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Board as at March 31, 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with the accounting policies set out in the notes to the financial
statements.

W 7101/"7'{""" P

Saint John, New Brunswick Chartered Accountants
July 17, 2002

Suite 600

55 Union Street
Saint John

New Brunswick
E2L 587

Tel: (506) 634-2900
Fax: (506) 6344569
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Board of Commfssio'ners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Electric Utilities
Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Surplus

Year Ended March 31 , 2002 2001
Revenue
Assessment on electric utilities (Note 6) $ 793,314 $ 191,126
Interest ___ 7,846 __ 14742
__801.160 _205.868
Expenses
Depreciation 20,950 6,473
Direct expenses 365,630 61,809
Library and publications 3,360 2,467
Office and administration 101,201 54,457
Professional fees 3,500 4,800
Salaries and benefits 383,310 179,398
Training 30,901 25252
908,852 334,656
Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (107,692) $ (128,788)
Surplus, beginning of year $ 132,686 $ 261474
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (107,692) (128,788)
Surplus, end of year $ 2499 $ 132,686

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Grant Thornton %
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2002

Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Electric Utilities

Balance Sheet
March 31 2002 2001
Assets
Current
Cash $ 667,173 $ 138,367
Receivables (Note 3) 16,364 10,917
Prepaid expenses 77 -
Due from Natural Gas fund 50,309 -
Due from Automobile Insurance fund 68,145 ———— -
802,708 149,284
Cash held in trust (Note 4) - 2,815
Capital assets (Note 5) 88,200 56,628
$ 890,908 $ 208,727
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals $ 15914 $ 73,226
Deferred revenue 850,000 -
865,914 73,226
Cash held in trust (Note 4) - 2815
865,914 76,041
Surplus 24,994 132,686
$ 890,908 $ 208,727
Commitment (Note 9)

On of the Board

Chairman Secretary

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Grant Thornton &
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Bdard of Commiissioners of Public Utilities

of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Electric Utilities

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended March 31 2002 2001
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Operating
Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (107,692) $ (128,788)
Depreciation ' 20,950 6473
(86,742) (122,315)
Changes in
Receivables (5,447) 9,657
Prepaids (717) 116
Payables and accruals (57,312) 68,726
Deferred revenue 850,000 -
699,782 (43,816)
Investing
Transfer of computer equipment from
Natural Gas division {(2,695) -
Proceeds on disposal of computer equipment 133 -
Purchase of computer equipment (18,279) (12,672)
Purchase of office equipment (667) -
Purchase of leasehold improvements {31,014) (38,251)
{52,522) (50.923)
Financing
Due from Natural Gas Fund (50,309) -
Due from Automobile Insurance Fund 68,145 -
(118.454) -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 528,806 (94,739)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 138,367 233,106
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ _ 667,173 $_ 138,367

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Grant Thornton &
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Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Electric Utilities

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

1. Nature of operations

The Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities has regulatory responsibility for electric utilities,
automobile insurers, the public motor bus industry and natural gas distribution in New
Brunswick. :

The Board is exempt from income tax under Section 149(1)(d) of the Income Tax Act of
Canada. ;

2. Summary of significant accounfing policies

Cash on hand

One bank account is maintained for the Board and reported in the Electric Utilities division.
Deposits and withdrawals relating to automobile insurer or natural gas operations of the Board
are recorded through the interdivisional accounts.

Furniture and fixtures
Fumiture and fixtures are expensed in the year of acquisition.

Computer equipment
Depreciation of computer equipment is recorded using the straight line method and a rate of 33
113%.

Leasehold improvements
Leasehold improvements are being amortized using the straight-line method over the ten year
term of the lease.

Direct expenses
Direct expenses include hearing costs, travel, training and other out of pocket expenses directly
attributable to a specific public utility.

Allocations
Certain balance sheet and income statement amounts have been allocated between the three
divisions of the Board based on management's best judgement and actual activity during the

year.

Statement of Cash Fiows

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows the Board considers cash on hand and balances
with banks, net of overdrafts, and highly liquid temporary money market instruments with original
maturities of three months or less as cash or cash equivalents. Bank borrowings are considered
to be financing activities.

Grant Thornton ®
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Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick- Regulation of Electric Utilities
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2002

3. Receivables 2002 2001
Accounts receivable $ 581 $ 269
HST receivable 13,112 9,957
Travel advances 2,671 691 .

s_te3et  §__1097

4. Cash held in trust

Cash of $nil (2001 - $2,815) relating fo the regulation of the public motor bus industry in New
Brunswick was being held in trust by the Board on behalf of the New Brunswick Department of
Transportation. _

During the year, the Board conducted hearings, pursuant to the provisions of the Motor Carrier
Act. Direct expenses associated with these hearings were paid by the Board, from fees
collected from licensed motor carriers, with the approval of the Department of Transportation. -
No overhead expenses were paid from these fees.

5. Capital assets 2002 2001

Accumulated Net Net

Cost  Depreciation Book Value Book Value

Computer equipment $ 47936 $ 22075 $ 25861 $ 18,377
Leasehold improvements 69,265 6.926 62,339 38,251

$ 117,201 $ 29001 $ 88,200 $ 56,628

6. Assessment on electric utilities

In accordance with Section 9 of the Public Utilities Act, public utilities are assessed each year for
their individual direct expenses together with their share of common expenses. Each utility’s
share of common expenses is.based on the proportion of its gross earnings to the aggregate of
gross eamings for all utilities. Assessments are adjusted to include the audited surplus or deficit
from the prior year.

Grant Thornton ® ' -
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2002

| Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities

of the Province of New Brunswick- Regulation of Electric Utilities
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2002
6. Assessment on electric utilities (continued) 2002 2001
Gross electric utilities’ eamings $.1,312,097,698 $1,250,665.835
_ Estimate of common expenses $ 540,000  $ 323,600
Less: esfimate of interest income {14,000) {6,000)
Estimate of net common expenses 526,000 317,600
Estimate of direct expenses 400,000 135,000
926,000 452,600
Surplus from prior year (132,686) (261,474)
Assessment on electric utilities ' $ 793314 § 191,126

7. Assessment for public intervenor

Pursuant to Section 9(1.1) of the Public Utilities Act, the costs of the Agent for the Attorney
General with respect to interventions made are to be collected by the Board from the public
utilities regulated by the Board and paid to the Minister of Finance. No such amounts were
collected and paid during the Board's fiscal years ended March 31, 2002 and March 31, 2001 as
the Attorney General submitted no costs to the Board to be collected in its assessment.

8. Employee pension plan

The Board and its employees participate in a contributory defined benefit pension plan,
administered by the Province of New Brunswick under the Public Service Superannuation Act.
The plan provides pensions to employees of the Provincial Government and certain Crown
Corporations and agencies based on the length of service and highest successive five year
average salary. The expense for this pension plan is equivalent to the annual contribution of
$24.441. The Province has advised the Board that the plan was fully funded as at April 1, 2000.

9. Commitment

The Board has negotiated a lease of its office premises for a 10 year period commencing March
1, 2001. Minimum annual payments under the lease total approximately $126,000.

Grant Thornton®
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Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Automobile Insurers
Statements of Revenue and Expenses and (Deficit) Surplus

Year Ended March 31 2002 2001
Revenue

Assessment on automobile insurers (Note 2) $ 345,259 $ 251,900
Interest 7,846 14,742
353,105 266.642

Expenses
Actuarial consultant 128,029 17,447
Advertising 4,400 -
Commissioners’ per diems 7,026 95
Commissioners’ trave! 3,569 -
Depreciation 20,949 6,473
Direct expense - 821
Library and publications 3,360 2467
Office and administration 103,044 54,457
Professional fees 3,500 2,200
Salaries 183,115 130,148
Training 1,114 54
458,106 214,162
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses $ _(105,001) $ 52480
Surplus, beginning of year $ 102,921 $ 50441
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses {105,001) 52,480
(Deficit) surplus, end of year _ _- $ ___(2,080) $ 102,921

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Grant Thornton ®
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2002

Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities

of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Automobile Insurers

Balance Sheet

March 31 2002 2001

Assets

Current .
Cash . $ - $ 91,219
Receivables (Note 3) 16,364 6,665
Prepaids 717 -

17,081 97,884
Capital assets (Note 4) 88,200 ‘ 56,628

$ 105,281 $ 154512

Liabilities
Current ~
Payables and accruals $ 39,216 $ 51,591
Due to Electric Utilities fund 68,145 -
107,361
{Deficit) surplus (2.080) 102,921
$ 105,281 $ 154512
Commitment (Note 6)
On bel e B

Chalrman % Secretary

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Grant Thornton ®
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Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Automobile Insurers

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended March 31 .2002 2001

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Operating
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses $ (105001) $ 52,480
Depreciation —20,949 6,473
(84,052) - 58,953
Changes in
Receivables {9,699) (6,665)
Prepaids {(717) 116
Payables and accruals ’ 12,375 34,590
106,843 86,994
Investing
Transfer of computer equipment from
Natural Gas division (2,695) -
Proceeds on disposal of computer equipment 133 -
Purchase of computer equipment (18,278) (12,672)
Purchase of office equipment (667) -
Purchase of leasehold improvements ' (31,014) (38,251)
52,521 50,923
Financing
Due to Electrical utilities fund 68,145 -
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (91,219) 36,071
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ' 91,219 55,148
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year- $ - $ 91,219

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Grant Thornton &




38

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME 3 2002

Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Automobile Insurers

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

1.  Summary of significant accounting policies

Cash on hand

One bank account is maintained for the Board and reported in the Electric Utilities division.
Deposits and withdrawals relating to automobile insurer or natural gas operations of the Board
are recorded through the interdivisional accounts.

Furniture and fixtures
Fumiture and fixtures are expensed in the year of acquisition.

Computer equipment
Depreciation of computer equipment is recorded using the straight line method and a rate of

33 1/3%.

Leasehold improvements
L easehold improvements are being amortized using the stralght-lme method over the ten year
term of the lease.

Allocations
Certain balance sheet and income statement amounts have been allocated between the three
divisions of the Board based on management's best judgement and actual activity during the

year.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows the Board considers cash on hand and balances

with banks, net of overdrafts, and highly liquid temporary money market instruments with original
maturities of three months or less as cash or cash equivalents. Bank borrowings are considered
to be financing activities.

2. Assessment on automobile insurers

In accordance with Section 9.1(1) of the Public Utilities Act, automabile insurers of New
Brunswick are assessed each year. The assessment for each insurer is the proportion that the
insurer’s net receipts are of total net receipts. That proportion is applied to the budget for the
ensuing year, adjusted to include the audited surplus or deficit from the prior year.

2002 2001
Automobile insurers’ receipts $ 366,751,000 $ 341,152,000
Assessment on receipts $ 345259 § 251,900

Grant Thornton ®
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Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Automobile Insurers
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2002
3. Receivables 2002 2001
Accounts receivable $ 581 $ 269
HST receivable 13,112 6,396
Travel advances 2,671 -
$ 16,364 $ 6,665
4. Capital assets 2002 2001
Accumulated Net Net
Cost  Depreciation Book Value Book Value
Computer equipment $ 47936 $ 22,075 $ 25861 $ 18377
Leasehold improvements . 69,265 6.926 62,339 38,251

$ 117201 $ 29,001 $ 88200 $ 56628

5. Employee pension plan

The Board and its employees participate in a contributory defined benefit pension plan,
administered by the Province of New Brunswick under the Public Service Superannuation Act.
The plan provides pensions to employees of the Provincial Government and certain Crown
Corporations and agencies based on the length of service and highest successive five year
average salary. The expense for this pension plan is equivalent to the annual contribution of
$11,676. The Province has advised the Board that the plan was fully funded as at Aprit 1, 2000.

6. Commitment

The Board has negotiated a lease of its office premises for a 10 year period commencing March
1,2001. Minimum annual payments under the lease total approximately $126,000.

Grant Thornton®
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Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities -

of the Province of New Brunswick — Regulation of Natural Gas
Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Surplus

Year Ended March 31 2002 2001
Revenue
Assessment on natural gas distributors (Note 3) $ 417,278 $ 822435
Franchise fees submitted by Department of
Natural Resources and Energy : 250,000 -
Marketers’ filing fees 1,000 17,500
Interest 7.846 14,742
676,124 ‘ 854 677
Expenses
Consensus commitiee expense - 3,482
Depreciation 32,246 20,751
Direct expenses 78,365 326,095
Library and publications 3,360 2,467
Office and administration 109,962 54,456
Professional fees 3,500 3,000
Repairs & maintenance - board vehicle 10,690 16,187
Salaries 382,362 438,457
Training 21,879 22,625
642,364 887.520
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ _ 33,760 $ (32,843)
Surplus, beginning of year $ 48,722 $ 81565
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 33,760 (32,843)
Surplus, end of year $ 82482 $ 48722

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Grant Thornton ®

2002
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Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick — Regulation of Natural Gas

Balance Sheet
March 31 2002 2001
Assets
Current .
Cash $ - 244,222
Receivables (Note 4) 16,364 27,672
Prepaids 717 -
17,081 268,894
- Capital assets (Note 5) 128,978 96,919
$ _ 146,059 $ 365,813
Liabilities
Current :
Payables and accruals $ 13,268 $ 317,091
Due to Electric Utilities fund 50,309 -
63,577 317,091
Surplus 82,482 48,722
$ 146,059 $ 365813
Commitment (Note 7)

Chairman W Secretary

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Grant Thornton &
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Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick — Regulation of Natural Gas

Statement of Cash Flows o
Year Ended March 31 2002 2001

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Operating .
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 33,760 $ (32,843)
Depreciation 32,246 20,751
66,006 (12,092)
Changesin _
Receivables 11,308 (27,672)
Prepaids (717) 116
Payables and accruals {303,823) (226.363)
227,226 266,011
Investing
Transfer of computer equipment to other divisions 5,390 -
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets 133 14,332
Purchase of computer equipment (18,277) (25,536)
Purchase of leasehold improvements {31,014) (38,251)
Purchase of motor vehicles (19,870) (38,646)
Purchase of office equipment {667) -
64,305 88,101
Financing
Due to Electric Utiliies fund 50,309 C -
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (241,222) (354,112)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 241,222 595,334
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ - $ 241,222

See accompanyihg notes to the financial statements.

Grant Thornton ®
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Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Natural Gas

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

1.  Summary of significant accounting policies

Cash on hand

One bank account is maintained for the Board and reported in the Electric Utilities division.
Deposits and withdrawals relating to automobile insurer or natural gas operations of the Board
are recorded through the interdivisional accounts.

Fumiture and fixtures
Fumniture and fixtures are expensed in the year of acquisition.

Computer equipment
Depreciation of computer equipment is recorded using the straight line method and a rate of
33 1/3%. ‘

Leasehold improvements
Leasehold improvements are being amortized using the straight-line method over the ten year
term of the lease. '

Motor vehicles
Depreciation of vehicles is recorded using the straight-line method and a rate of 20%, except as
described in Note 2. :

Allocations
Certain balance sheet and income statement amounts have been allocated between the three
divisions of the Board based on management’s best judgement and actual activity during the

year.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows the Board considers cash on hand and balances

with banks, net of overdrafts, and highly liquid temporary money market instruments with ariginal
maturities of three months or less as cash or cash equivalents. Bank borrowings are considered
to be financing activities.

2.  Accounting Change

During 2002, management reassessed the remaining useful lives of the Board’s vehicles.
Management has determined that the useful life of one of the vehicles is 3 years, as opposed to
5 years as previously estimated. Accordingly, 2002 depreciation on this vehicle has been
provided on a straight-line basis using this revised estimated useful life. For the year ended
March 31, 2002, this change in estimate has resulted in an increase in depreciation expense of
$3,567.

Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
Grant Thornton &
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of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Natural Gas

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31,2002

3. Assessment on natural gas distributors

In accordance with Section 87 of the Natural Gas Distribution Act, natural gas distributors are
assessed each year for their individual direct expenses together with their share of common
expenses as determined by the Board. Fees paid by single end use franchisees to the
Department of Natural Resources and Energy were submitted by the Department to the Board
to be used to reduce common expenses for regulation of natural gas. Assessments are
adjusted to include the audited surplus or deficit from the prior year.

2002 2001

Estimate of common expenses $ 642000 $ 560,000
Less: estimate of interest income (16,000) (6,000)

amounts from Department of Natural Resources . ,

and Energy {250,000) -
Estimate of net common expenses 376,000 554,000
Estimate of direct expenses 90,000 350,000
466,000 904,000
$urplus from prior year (48,722) {81,565)
Assessment on natural gas distribution $ 417,278  $ 822,435
4. Receivables 2002 2001
Accounts receivable $ 581 $ 269
HST receivable 13,112 26,712
Travel advances 2,671 691
$__16364 § __ 27672

5. Capital assets 2002 2001
Accumulated Net Net

Cost  Depreciation Bogk Value Book Value

Computer equipment $ 47936 $ 22075 $ 25,861 $ 26,463
Leasehold improvements 69,265 6,926 62,339 38,251
Motor vehicles 58,516 17,738 40,778 32,205

$ 175717 $ 46,739 § 128,978 $ 96,919

Grant Thornton %
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Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of the Province of New Brunswick - Regulation of Natural Gas

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

6. Employee pension plan

The Board and its employees participate in a contributory defined benefit pension plan,
administered by the Province of New Brunswick under the Public Service Superannuation Act.
The plan provides pensions to employees of the Provincial Govemment and certain Crown
Corporations and agencies based on the length of service and highest successive five year
average salary. The expense for this pension plan is equivalent fo the annual contribution of
$24,381. The Province has advised the Board that the plan was fully funded as at April 1, 2000.

7. Commitment

The Board has entered into a lease of its office premises for a 10 year period commencing
March 1, 2001. Minimum annual payments under the lease total approximately $126,000.

Grant Thornton %
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TrRuUST FunD No. 33
FISCAL STABILIZATION FUND

31 MARCH 2002
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

Notven :.EL: Brunswick

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honourable Peter Mesheau
Minister of Finance
Province of New Brunswick

I have audited the statement of financial position of the Fiscal Stabilization Fund as at 31 March 2002
and the statement of revenue, expenditure and fund equity balance for the year then ended. T!u?se
financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund’s trustee. My responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Tho§e
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the ﬁqancxal
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, e\(ldence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing !he
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Fund's trustee, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements. present fairly, in all material respects, the ﬁnanc;ial position of
the Fund as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian gengrally accepted accounting principles.

_ Daryl C. Wilson, FCA
Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
25 October 2002
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TRUST FUND NO. 33

FISCAL STABILIZATION FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments $112,320,137 $ -
Accrued interest receivable 415,308 -
Receivable from Province of New Brunswick
Consolidated Fund 30,000,000 100,000,000
- Fixed term investments 60,965,573 -
$ 203,701,018 $ 100,000,000
FUND EQUITY
Fund equity $ 203,701,018 $ 100,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

NIkl

John MW
Deputy Minister of Finance
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TRUST FUND NO. 33
FISCAL STABILIZATION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURE AND FUND EQUITY BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002
: 2002 . 2001
REVENUE
Contribution from Province of New Brunswick
- Consolidated Fund $ 100,000,000 $ 100,000,000
Investment income 3,701,018 -
103,701,018 100,000,000
EXPENDITURE - -
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURE 103,701,018 100,000,000
Fund Equity balance, beginning of year 100,000,000 -

FUND EQUITY BALANCE, end of year

$ 203,701,018

$ 100,000,000
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TRUST FUND NO. 33

FISCAL STABILIZATION FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

General

The Fiscal Stabilization Fund was established on March 31, 2001 in accordance with the Fiscal
Stabilization Fund Act (“Act”).

The Minister of Finance, in accordance with the Act, holds the Fiscal Stabilize_ation Fund in trust. Tpe
purpose of the Fund is to assist in stabilizing the fiscal position of the Province of New Brunswick
from year to year and to improve long-term fiscal planning.

Transfers out of the Fund are made for the sole purpose mentioned above and with the approval of
the Lieutenant-Govemor in Council.

Significant Accounting Policy

Fixed term investments

These investments are in fixed term, interest bearing securities of Canadian govemmentsior similar
securities guaranteed by Canadian govemments. They are recorded at cost net of any d:scpunt or
premium on purchase. Any discount or premium is amortized over the life of the security and
included in investment income.
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Financial Statements of

FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED

March 31, 2002

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Deloitte
&Touche
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
3runswick House

44 Chipman Hill

£0.Box 6549, Station A
Saint John, New Brunswick
E2L 4R9

Tel: 15061 632-1080 . e
F:x:';%éé"i 632—‘1210 (7th Floar) i - De|0|tte
fax:1506) 637-9460 {8th Floor} :

& Touche

~ Auditors’ Repoi‘t

To the Shareholders,
Forest Protection Limited

We have audited the balance sheet of Forest Protection Limited as at March 31, 2002 and the
statements of operations and unrestricted net deficit, changes in net assets and cash flows for the
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

[n our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at March 31, 2002 and the results of its operations, the changes in net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

Mt ;@J._LLP

Chartered Accountarits

September 10, 2002

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu




2002 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME 3 55

FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED

Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2002
2002 2001
CURRENT ASSETS .
Cash $ 162,604 $ 359,628
Accounts receivable 281,720 66,795
Inventories - aircraft spare parts 752,909 683,739
- other » : 4,478 1,024
Assets internally restricted for equipment replacement
Cash $ 42,647 $ 26526
Short term investments
(Market Value $3,226,647; 2001 - $8,714,134) 3,208,435 8,718,312
Deposit on aircrafts 237,255 -
Interest receivable 63,280 3,551,667 - 8,744 838
4,753,378 9,856,024
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 2) v 6,961,546 1,787,733
: $ 11,714924 $ 11,643,757
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 228,328 $ 158,545
Remediation reserve (Note 3) 440,000 -
Deferred revenue 264,063 234,753
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 4) 48,416 45,603
980,807 438,901
LONG-TERM DEBT - 48 416
EQUITY
Capital stock (Note 5) 2,000 2,000
Contributed surplus 715,888 715.888
Net investment in capital assets 6,913,130 1,693,714
Net assets internally restricted for ’
equipment replacement 3,551,667 8,744,838
Unrestricted net deficit (448,568) -
10,734,117 11,156,440
$ 11,714,924 $ 11,643,757
Deloitte

&Touche
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FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED
Statement of Operations and Unrestricted Net Deficit
year ended March 31, 2002
2002 2001
REVENUES
Contributions from participants
Province of New Brunswick $ 2312,103 § 2,107,731
Industry 551,344 306,566
Other revenue _ 773,381 577,363
Interest operating 10,255 33,048
' 3,647,083 3,024,708
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 6)

Overhead 655,532 641,986

Pest control 599,722 417,441

Fire suppression 1,649,286 1,420,873

Research and development 725,687 523,479

3,630,227 3,003,779
OTHER

Interest on investments (332,705) (506,719)

Amortization of capital assets 174,334 134,907

Aircraft leases 376,683 -

Sale of aircraft parts (10,899) -

Remediation reserve (Note 3) 440,000 -

Gain on disposal of investment (50,545) -

Gain on disposal of capital assets - operating (157,689) (38,940)

Gain on disposal of capital assets - intemally restricted - (159,291)

439,179 (570,043)
EXCESS OF (EXPENSES OVER REVENUE)

REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (422,323) 590,972
Transfer from net investment in capital assets 141,902 37,859
Transfer to net assets internally restricted

for equipment replacement (168,147) (628,831)
UNRESTRICTED NET DEFICIT

AT END OF YEAR $ (448,568) % -
Deloitte

&Touche
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FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

year ended March 31, 2002
2002 2001
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 1,693,714 $ 1,398,047
Transfers from (to) unrestricted operations:
Acquisition of capital assets 32,432 98,127
Proceeds on assets disposed of or retired (157,689) (199,310)
Amortization of capital assets (174,334) (134,907)
Gain on disposal of capital assets 157,689 198,231
(141,902) (37.859)
Transfer from net assets internally restricted
for equipment replacement:
Acquisition of capital assets 5,361,318 333,526
Total transferred from net investment in capital assets 5,219,416 295,667
Balance at end of year $ 6,913,130 $ 1,693,714

Deloifte
&Touche
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FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
year ended March 31, 2002
2002 2001
NET ASSETS INTERNALLY RESTRICTED FOR
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 8,744,838 $ 8,449,533
Transfers (to) from unrestricted operations:
Interest earned on funds invested 332,705 506,719
Gain on disposal of investment 50,545 -
Transfer from unrestricted assets - 14,024
Sale of aircrafts 155,080 153,570
Sale of aircraft parts 10,899 6,801
Interest expense on building loan {4,401) (7,050)
Replacement parts - (1,713)
Aircraft lease (376,681) (43,520)
168,147 628,831
Transfer to net investment in capital assets:
Building (45,603) (42,954)
Aircraft (5,315,715) (185,000)
Replacement parts - (105,572)
(5,361,318) (333,526)
Balance at end of year $ 3,551,667 $ 8,744,838
Deloitte

&Touche
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FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows
year ended March 31, 2002
2002 2001
NET INFLOW (OUTFLOW) OF CASH RELATED
TO THE FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES
OPERATING
Excess of (expenses over revenues) .
revenues Over eXpenses $ (422323) % 590,972
Amortization of capital assets 174,334 134,907
Gain on disposal of capital assets (157,689) (198,231)
Gain on disposal of investment (50,545) -
Changes in non-cash operating working
capital items:
Accounts receivable (214,925) 2,534
Interest receivable (63,280) -
Inventories - aircraft spare parts (69,170) (52,214)
- other (3,454) 5,128
Accounts payable 69,783 8,703
Remediation reserve 440,000 -
Deferred revenue 29,310 152,308
(267,959) 644,107
FINANCING
Repayment of long-term debt (45,603) 42,954)
INVESTING
Acquisition of capital assets (5,348,147) (388,699)
Net sale of short-term investments 5,560,372 (290,258)
Deposit on aircrafts (237,255) -
Proceeds on sale of capital assets . 157,689 199,310
132,659 (479,647)
NET CASH (OUTFLOW) INFLOW (180,903) 121,506
CASH POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 386,154 264,648
CASH POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 205,251 $ 386,154
Deloitte

&Touche
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FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
year ended March 31, 2002

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Operations and net investment in capital assets

a. The Company is a non-profit organization and carries out an annual program comprising
pest control, fire suppression and research and development of forest protection activities.
The costs of the pest control program including all overhead expenditures are shared
between various participating companies and the Province of New Brunswick on the basis
of an approved cost sharing formula. Costs directly attributable to fire suppression
activities are recovered from the Province of New Brunswick. The net cost of research
and development activities, after deducting revenues received, 1s recovered from the
participating companies and the Province of New Brunswick on the basis of a separate
approved cost sharing formula. The Company is not taxable under section 149(1)(1) of
the Income Tax Act.

b. Program expenditures include all costs incurred during the year, including the cost of
property, plant and equipment and inventories consumed during the year. Costs funded
are reduced by proceeds on disposal of capital assets, except for aircraft sales, which are
transferred to Net Assets Internally Restricted for Equipment Replacement.

c. Capital assets acquired during the year which remained on hand at the year end are
recorded in the financial statements as Net Investment in Capital Assets.

d. Inventories acquired up to October 31, 1975 are valued at historical cost, if determinable,
or at an estimated replacement value at that date. Inventories acquired after October 31,
1975 are valued at acquisition cost. Consumable supplies, except for pesticides, aviation
fuel and lubricants, on hand at the end of each year are not included in the inventory
balance.

e. Land and buildings acquired before October 31, 1975, are recorded at estimated cost. All
other capital assets, including buildings acquired subsequent to October 31, 1975 are
valued at historical cost.

f. Amortization of property, plant and equipment is calculated as follows:

Building and mobile homes - 10% straight-line
Aircraft - 4% straight-line
Equipment - 20% straight-line

Deloitte
&Touche
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FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
year ended March 31, 2002

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Net assets internally restricted for equipment replacement

g. By authority of the Board of Directors, the following sources of funds are to be transferred
to this account for the purpose of replacing the Company’s equipment:

e proceeds received from aircraft sales;
e proceeds from legal actions, less the cost of pursuing these actions; and,
e operating surpluses arising from unrestricted operations.

Statement of cash ﬂéws

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows the Company considers cash on hand to be
balances with banks, net of overdrafts, and highly liquid temporary money market instruments
with original maturities of three months or less as cash or cash equivalents. Bank borrowings
are considered to be financing activities.

Short-term investments

Discounts and premiums arising from the acquisition of short-term investments are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the investment.

2. CAPITAL ASSETS

Accumulated Net Book Value
Cost Depreciation 2002 2001
Land $ 75000 $ - - $ 75000 $ 75000
Building and
mobile homes 327,705 153,093 174,612 177,594
Aircraft 7,266,875 803,310 6,463,565 1,218,002
Equipment 1,482,425 1,234,056 248,369 317,137

$ 9152005 $ 2190459 $ 6961,546 3 1,781,733

Deloitte
&Touche
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' FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
year ended March 31, 2002

3. REMEDIATION RESERVE

The Company is involved with the remediation of the old Charlo Airport due to
contamination. This work has already begun and is expected to be finished in the fall of
2002. The total cost is undeterminable. To date, the Company has incurred $60,000 in
remediation costs and management expects that the minimum additional costs will be
$440,000. Accordingly, $440,000 has been accrued.

4. LONG-TERM DEBT

Purchase of building to be paid in 60 equal installments of $4,167 per month including
principal and interest until March 2003.

5. CAPITAL STOCK

2002 2001
Authorized
500 common shares $10 par value each
Issued and outstanding
200 common shares $ 2,000 $ 2,000

Deloitte
&Touche
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FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
year ended March 31, 2002

6.

7.

OPERATING EXPENSES
2002 2001
PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
Salaries and wages $ 1,242,765 1,074,843
Employer contributions : 149,603 143,491
Transportation and communications 188,409 145,837
Consultants’ fees, legal fees, audit,
contractual, services, insurance, etc. 685,719 602,692
Maintenance and repairs (contractual) 706,480 555,131
Rentals 318,905 183,670
Insecticides, materials and supplies 338,346 298,115
Expenses charged to operations 3,630,227 3,003,779
Capitalized - capital assets 32432 98,127
Total program expenditures $ 3,662,659 3,101,906
2002 2001
PROGRAM EXPENDITURES BY OPERATIONAL DIVISION
Overhead expenditures $ 668,964 688,483
Pest control expenditures 599,722 423,534
Research and development expenditures 725,687 525,094
Fire suppression - operational 1,668,286 1,419,563
- internally restricted - 45,232
$ 3,662,659 3,101,906
COMMITMENT TO PURCHASE

The Company has entered into a contract with Conair Aviation to purchase 6 aircrafts in
the next year. At year-end, the Company had received and paid for three of the six
aircrafts. The remaining commitment on the last three aircrafts total $3,474,300 US of

which deposits totaling $237,255 have been made in advance.

Deloitte
&Touche
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FOREST PROTECTION LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
year ended March 31, 2602

8. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

During the year, the Company received and paid the following:

$
Interest received 347,361
Interest paid 4,401

Deloitte
&Touche
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Kings LANDING CORPORATION
- 31 MARCH 2002
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

N X
Nowew L& Brunswick

P

AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Chairperson and Directors
Kings Landing Corporation
Prince William, New Brunswick

| have audited the statement of financial position of Kings Landing Corporation as at 31 March 2002 and
the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Corporation as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations and the changes in its net assets
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
26 June 2002
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KINGS LANDING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 MARCH 2002

d by the Board

Chairperson

Director

2002 2001
ASSETS
Cumrent assets .
Cash- _ $ 22,894 $ 17,298
Accounts receivable
Province of New Brunswick - 44,895
Other 12,051 20,018
Prepaid expenses 18,140 19,514
Inventories (Note 1 (c)) 83,760 86,277
' 136,845 188,002
Kings Landing Collection (Note 1(d)) 1 1
Capital assets, net (Note 1(e)) 1,674,005 1,768,299
' $ 1,810,851 $ 1,956,302
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities .
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 190,379 $ 163,890
Deferred revenue 24,242 24,036
214,621 187,926
Deferred contributions related to capital assets (Note 1(g)) 1,636,861 1,729,154
Net assets
Net assets invested in capital assets 37,144 39,145
Unrestricted net assets (71,775) 77
(40,631) 39,222
$ 1,810,851 $ 1,956,302
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KINGS LANDING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002
Budget Actual Actual
2002 2002 2001
REVENUE :
Admissions $ 394,000 $ 345,896 $ 343,825
Emporium 280,000 263,030 275,851
Food services 481,300 468,442 473,474
Education 87,500 85,743 87,708
Other operating revenue 39,100 120,760 90,631
1,281,900 1,283,871 1,271,489 .
Grants ) :
Provincial Operating 1,225,000 1,406,861 1,301,264
Provincial Capital - 74,998 36,115
Federal and Other - 55,000 76,041
Amortization of deferred contributions (Note 1(g)) - 92,293 98,081
1,225,000 1,629,152 1,511,501
2,506,900 02,913,023 2,782,990
EXPENSE
Interpretation
Operations 648,200 626,499 563,368
Education 82,500 97,723 85,629
Fabrics - 96,800 95,797 75,922
827,500 820,019 724,919
Curatorial
Maintenance (Note 1(d)) 323,200 388,341 400,398
Security 144,600 160,925 150,731
Curatorial 228,800 237,013 209,761
. 696,600 786,279 760,890
Emporium 237,900 213,150 232,114
Visitor services 97,800 108,783 88,824
Public relations -239,500 244,958 192,033
Administration 284,200 317,557 276,195
Food services 409,100 407,836 396,291
Amortization - 04,294 100,136
1,268,500 1,386,578 1,285,593
2,792,600 2,992,876 2,771,402
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSE $ (285,700) $ (79.853). $ 11,588
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. KINGS LANDING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

Net assets

Invested in
Capital Unrestricted Total Total
Assets Net Assets 2002 2001
Balance, beginning of year $ 39,145 $ 77 $ 39,222 $27,634
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expense | (2,001) (77,852) (79,853) 11,588
Balance, end of year $ 37,144 $ (77,775) $(40,631) $39,222
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KINGS LANDING CORPORATION
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) General comments on operations
Kings Landing Corporation is a provincial Crown agency incorporated by an Act of the New

Brunswick Legislature. The Corporation serves the people of New Brunswick and visitors to the
province by operating a living historical village as a dynamic, progressive outdoor museum.

{b) Revenue recognition
Kings Landing Corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are .incurred.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to
be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

{c) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, and comprise the following:

2002 2001

Emporium $ 66,918 $ 58,069
Less: Provision for obsolescence (8,300 ( 3,300)
58,618 54,769

Fabrics 10,593 15,114
Food and liquor 12,901 14,341
Other 1,648 2,053
‘ $ 83,760 $ 86,277

(d) Kings Landing Collection

The Kings Landing Collection is composed of some 70 major historical structures and thousands of
individual artifacts from the period. between 1780 and 1900. The structures and artifacts are not
replaceable as each piece represents a unique aspect of New Brunswick history. In recognition of
this, the collection is valued at $1 and individual pieces purchased by the Corporation are expensed
in the year of acquisition. Similarly, costs of maintaining the collection are expensed as incurred.
During the year, artifacts worth an estimated $66,868 (2001 - $168,505) were donated.

Expenditures related to capital improvements of the historical structures are expensed as incurred. |
The current year historical capital expenditures amounted to $74,998 (2001 - $51,055).
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- KINGS LANDING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

(e) Other capital assets

Purchased or contributed capital assets, except those of a historical nature, are recorded at cost or
appraised value where cost is not determinable. Amortization is recorded using a fixed percentage
on the declining balance method. The exception is computer equipment which is amortized on a
straight line basis over five years, the estimated useful life of the assets.

. Kings Landing Corporation has 91.5 acres of land spread on both sides of the St. John River.

Approximately 40 acres are used for site purposes. Because its purpose is to serve as a site for the
collection, the land has been recorded at a value of $1.

Details of capital assets are as follows:

Amortization
Rate 2002 2001
Land $ 1 $ 1
Buildings 5% 2,148,988 2,148,988
Computer hardware 20% 10,000 - 10,000
Equipment 10% 25,964 25,964
Automotive equipment 20% 86,486 86,486
2,271,439 2,271,439
Less: Accumulated amortization (597,434) ( 503,140)
‘Total capital assets, net $ 1,674,005 $ 1,768,299

{H Contributed services

Volunteers contribute about 8,000 hours per year to assist Kings Landing Corporation in carrying out
its activities. Because of the difficulty in determining their fair value, contributed services are not
recognized in the financial statements.

(g) Deferred contributions related to capital assets
Deferred contributions related to capital assets represent capital assets which are not part of the

historical collection and were donated to Kings Landing Corporation. The changes in the deferred
contributions balance of the period are as follows:

2002 2001
" Beginning balance : $1,729,154 $ 1,827,235
Less amounts amortized to revenue . 92,293 98,081

Ending balance : $ 1,636,861 $ 1,729,154
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KINGS LANDING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

Income tax status

The Corporation is a registered charitable organization under the Income Tax Act and is able to issue
donation receipts for income tax purposes. In order to maintain its status, the Corporation must meet
certain requirements within the Act. In the opinion of management, these requirements have been

" met.

Budget

The budget figures, as shown in the statement of operations, have been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Corporation. They have not been audited.

Statement of cash flows

This statement was not prepared as the information it would contain was not considered significant.

Comparative figures

Certain 2001 comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement
presentation adopted for 2002. As part of this change all amounts and notes related to the former
publication fund have been removed.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
LortERIES COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK

31 MARCH 2002
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

New ([, )
Nouveau ;;L. Brunswick

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the
Lotteries Commission of New Brunswick

| have audited the balance sheet of the Lotteries Commission of New Brunswick as at 31 March 2002
and the statement of revenue and expenditure for the year then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Commission's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
‘overall financial statement presentation.

tn my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Commission as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

K. D. Robinson, C.A
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
14 June 2002
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LOTTERIES COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK .
BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets _
Due from Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. $ 566,806 $ 1,125,161
Other assets
Investment in share capital of Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. 100 100
Investment in share capital of Interprovincial Lottery Corporation 1 1
101 101
$ 566,907 $ 1,125,262
LIABILITIES AND CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS
Current liabilities
Due to Province of New Brunswick (Note 4) $ 566,806 $ 1,125,161
Contributed surplus (Note 2) 101 101
$ 566,907 $ 1,125,262

Approved by the Commissi]n

l /{ “/l// ’ Member
m/\/\ Member

g

q

N
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LOTTERIES COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002 '

. 2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUE
Share of net profit of Atlantnc Lottery :
Corporation Inc. (Note 1) $ 83,269,000 §$89,727,280 $90,195,058
Other revenue (Note 3) A 31,000 24,380 39,129
- 83,300,000 89,751,660 90,234,187
* EXPENDITURE
To the Province of New Brunswxck (Note 1)
Ordinary account revenue i 80,031,000 86,230,908 86,776,483
Sport Development Trust Fund 500,000 500,000 500,000
Arts Development Trust Fund ' 700,000 700,000 700,000
Agreements with First Nations - 454 678 575,045 .
Commission inspection expenses 1,137,000 1,077,854 1,084,936
Administrative costs _ 175,000 74,113 136,334
Department of Health and Wellness
(Gambling addiction; education and treatment) - 757,000 714,107 461,389

83,300,000 89,751,660 90,234,187
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURE $ - 8 - $ -
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LOTTERIES COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

New Brunswick's share of Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. profit

The profit of Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. is distributed to each of the four Atlantic Provinces or
their lottery agencies. The Lotteries Commission of New Brunswick’s share for the current year
represents the calculated profit of the Atlantic Lottery Corporation in New Brunswick as determined
by the Amended and Restated Unanimous Shareholders’ Agreement signed August 8, 2000.

Payments to the Province of New Brunswick

The Lotteries Commission of New Brunswick remits the profits it receives from Atlantic Lottery
Corporation Inc. to the Province of New Brunswick. Beginning in 1999, Atlantic Lottery Corporation
began advancing these funds during the month rather than paying the full amount in the
subsequent month.

The profits from certain types of lotteries have been designated as revenue for specific trust funds
operated by the Province of New Brunswick. Annual lottery profits designated for the Arts and Sport
Development Trust Funds have each been set by the Province at a minimum of seven hundred
thousand dollars and five hundred thousand dollars respectively. '

The Lotteries Act provides that the First Nations may be paid 95% of all profits received from the
Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. for the operation of video lottery on reserves having agreements
with the Province. Where these agreements are in place the Province also rebates all provincial
earnings from the sale of breakopen tickets sold on reserves. As of 31 March 2002, five First
Nations have signed agreements involving lottery revenues: Fort Folly, Oromocto, Woodstock,
St. Mary's and Burnt Church. The Province has one other signed agreement which is with
Madawaska-Maliseet. It does not, however, receive any lottery revenues by way of the agreement.

Investments

The New Brunswick government does not operate any lottery but the Province is a shareholder in
Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. and in the Interprovincial Lottery Corporation. Atlantic Lottery
Corporation Inc. is a jointly-owned corporation of the four Atlantic provinces and is responsible to
develop, organize, undertake, conduct and manage lotteries in Atlantic Canada. Atlantic Lottery
Corporation Inc. also markets and handles regionally the products of the Interprovincial Lottery
Corporation. The Interprovincial Lottery Corporation is a corporation jointly owned by the ten
Canadian provinces.

The investments in Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. and Interprovincial Lottery Corporation are
carried at cost. Net profits of these corporations are distributed annually to the shareholders.

2. Contributed surplus

This amount represents funds paid by the Province of New Brunswick on behalf of the Lotteries
Commission of New Brunswick to Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. and the Interprovincial Lottery
Corporation in exchange for share capital.
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LOTTERIES COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

3. Otherrevenue

The Province of New Brunswick requires that charitable/non-profit groups pay a small fee for their

lic_enses for gaming activities such as bingo, raffles etc.

4. Statement of transactions with the Province of New Brunswick

2002 2001

Current liability “ :
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,125,161 $ 1,264,204
income for the year 89,751,660 90,234,187
Funds available to Province of New Brunswick 90,876,821 91,498,391
Less remittances during the year 90,310,015 90,373,230
Balance, end of year $ 566,806 $ 1,125,161




|

2002 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME 3 79

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NB AGRIEXPORT INC.
31 MARCH 2002
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

New T, )
Nouveau Q-_ Brunswick

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholder of
'NB Agriexport Inc.

{ have audited the balance sheet of NB Agriexport Inc. as at 31 March 2002 and the statement 'of income
and deficit for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s
management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as at 31 March 2002 and the resuits of its operations for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

KD RKobilion,
-K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
13 September 2002
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" NB AGRIEXPORT INC.
BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short-term investments - $ 112,253  $ 155,275
Accounts receivable 123,148 11,909 ;
Interest receivable _ 467 - |
235,868 167,184
Investments (Note 2) 734,300 734,300
Less: Provision for loss 734,300 734,300

$ 235868 $ 167,184

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 33,087 $ 31,529
Due to the Province of New Brunswick 984,467 888,000
Less: Provision for loss 500,000 500,000

484,467 388,000
Capital stock

Authorized and issued:
One common share, no par value - -
Deficit ‘ ( 281,686) (252,345)

$ 235868 $ 167,184

Approved by the Board

Director

m;%{ 5“"’74’ Director
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NB AGRIEXPORT INC. ,
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND DEFICIT-
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002 -
2002 2001
Export sales $ - $ 18,676
Cost of sales - - 15,800
Gross profit - 2,876
 Other income ,

Loan guarantee fees - 3,750

Interest 6,119 14,493

Grants 27,087 79,989

Province of New Brunswick (Note 3) 713,765 -

Other 293 776

747,264 99,008

Total Income 747,264 101,884
Expenses

Loss on investment (Note 2) - 234,300

Loan guarantee payout (Note 3) 713,765 -

Interest 15,184 21,576

Office 386 4,649

Projects 47,270 65,455

776,605 _ 325,980

NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (29,341) (224,096)
Deficit, beginning of year (252,345) (28,249)
DEFICIT, end of year $(281,686)  $(252,345)
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NB AGRIEXPORT INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

1. Description of operations

NB Agriexport Inc. was established on 23 May 1996 under the Business Corporations Act of the
Province of New Brunswick.

The Corporation is wholly owned by the Province of New Brunswick and has as its mandate: to
provide a focal point for the Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Aquaculture’s international
market development efforts; to facilitate exporters’ access to international markets; and to help
exporters manage the risks of international marketing.

It is the intention of government that NB Agriexport Inc. be phased out. This phasing out requires

the Corporation to honour current outstanding agreements. The outstanding agreements are in the
process of being transferred to the Department of Investment and Exports.

2. Investments

During the 1999/2000 fiscal year, the Corporation purchased 500 Class B, non-voting, preferred
shares of a company for $500,000. Funding for this investment was provided by the Province of
New Brunswick by way of an interest-free working ccapital advance. This investment has been fully
provided for by the Province. The balance at 31 March 2002 stands at $500,000.

The remaining investment balance represents moneys invested in a project to promote the export
of cattle.

3. Loan guarantee payout

The Corporation had guaranteed a loan of a company involved in the export of agricultural
products. This resulted in a payout of $713,765. The resulting loss was bome by the- Province of
New Brunswick. o ' ’

4. Statement of cash flows

This statement was not prepared as the information it would contain was not considered significant.

5. Expenses not included in these financial statements

Most of the direct and indirect costs of operating the corporate office are absorbed by the Province

of New Brunswick. The administration of the Corporation’s affairs is carried out by employees of the
Province of New Brunswick under the direction of the Corporation’s Board of Directors. Al salary

costs and most travel expenses associated with these employees are paid by the Province.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

New Brunswick CREDIT UNION
DreprosiT INSURANCE CORPORATION

31 DECEMBER 2001
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

N ; 1 L]
Nouveatt .E_L. Brunswick

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Chairperson and Directors of the
New Brunswick Credit Union Deposit Insurance Corporation °

1 have audited the balance sheet of the New Brunswick Credit Union Deposit Insurance Corporation as at
31 December 2001 and the statement of revenue, expenditure and net assets for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. My responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Corporation as at 31 December 2001 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

K, D IQQ@P»LML\/

K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N.B.
20 March 2002
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NEW BRUNSWICK CREDIT UNION
DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEET

- 31 DECEMBER 2001

2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash $ 9255 $ 12516
Accounts receivable 2,517 2,170
Assets held in trust funds (Note 4) 1,393,985 1,443,612
$ 1,405,757 $ 1,458,298
~ LIABILITIES

Advances - stabilization boards (Note 2 (a)) $ 11,772 $ 14,686
Liabilities of the trust funds 1,492 127,790
13,264 142,476

NET ASSETS OF THE DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND (Note 5) 1,392,493 1,315,822
$ 1,405,757 $ 1,458,298

ga;roved by the Board
67“/&6/“ ﬁ/u/@\ Chairperson
ﬂ @_w Director
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NEW BRUNSWICK CREDIT UNION-
DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURE AND NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

REVENUE (Note 2)
Contributions - stabilization boards

EXPENDITURE (Note 2)

Professional services and other
Board of Directors
Distributions - stabilization boards

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE
OVER EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR

NET ASSETS OF THE DEPOSIT INSURANCE
FUND - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS OF THE DEPOSIT INSURANCE
FUND - END OF YEAR

2001 2000

Budget Actual Actual
$ 8,000 $ 79,584 $ 3061
4,500 2,421 2,006
3,500 492 1,055
- - 454,378
8,000 2,913 457 439

- 76,671 (454,378)

- 1,315,822 1,770,200 -

$ - $1,392,493 $1,315822
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NEW BRUNSWICK CREDIT UNION
DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2001

1. Authority and objective

The Corporation is an independent entity created under the provisions of the Credit Unions Act proclaimed on
31 January 1994. The mandate of the Corporation is to provide deposit insurance to members of credit unions
in New Brunswick. The Corporation may also assist stabilization boards in providing financial assistance to
credit unions.

. The Credit Unions Act provides that the Corporation may levy credit unions for the funds required to camry out
its mandate. The Act also provides that costs incurred in relation to the activities of the Corporation shall be
assumed by the stabilization boards when they are requested to do so. Finally the Corporation may apply to
the Province for loans or guarantees.

The affairs of the Corporation are administered by a Board of Directors of five persons. The Superintendent of
credit unions is responsible for the administration of the Credit Unions Act and is the Chairperson of the Board.
Each stabilization board appoints two representatives to the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Contributions — Administrétive expenses

The Corporation receives advances from the stabilization boards to cover its administrative expenses. The
Corporation records portions of the advances as revenue when expenses are incurred. An unspent balance of
$11,772 (2000 - $14,686) is recorded as a liability on the balance sheet.

The Corporation operates as a separate entity within the Credit Unions, Co-operatives and Trust Companies
Branch of the Department of Justice. As such the Branch assumes the salary and some overhead costs which
relate to the administration of the Corporation. Those costs are reflected in the expenditures of the Branch
which are recovered by the Branch directly from credit unions.

(b) Contributions/Distributions — Deposit insurance fund
Contributions to the deposit insurance fund are recorded as revenue as they become due for payment.
When the balance of the deposit insurance fund exceeds the amount required, as calculated by the

Corporation, the excess from the trust funds is distibuted to the stabilization boards. This distribution is
recorded with the expenses of the Corporation.
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NEW BRUNSWICK CREDIT UNION
DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘31 DECEMBER 2001

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

(¢) Accrual for deposit insurance losses

The Corporation accrues expenses for any known or likely losses from specific credit unions, which it expects
cannot be paid or assumed by the stabilization board of which the credit union is a member. No such.
expenditures have been recorded by the Corporation since it began operations in 1994.

(d) Assets held in trust funds

Assets held in trust funds are recorded by the Corporation at the same value as they are recorded on the
financial statements of the trust funds. The financial statements of the two trust funds are prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Investments held in the trust funds are recorded at cost except when a decline in value has occurred that is
other than temporary. Premiums and discounts arising at the time of purchase of marketable securities are
amortized over the period to maturity.

Investment revenues from the funds in trust include interest income as well as capital gains and losses on
disposition of investments. In accordance with the trust agreements, the Corporation is a beneficiary and
records investment revenues in the amount needed to cover its expenses or to increase the balance of the
trust funds when required. The two stabilization boards are the beneficiaries of investment revenues which the
Corporation does not need to cover its expenses or increase the balance of the funds in trust.

3. Income taxes

The Corporation is subject to income taxes under the Income Tax Act. The provisions of the Act generally
exclude assessments contributed to the deposit insurance fund from taxable income.
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NEW BRUNSWICK CREDIT UNION
DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2001

4. Assets held in trust funds

The trust funds held the following assets at 31 December 2001:

Book Market

Value Value
Cash $ 2,221 $ 2.221
Interest receivable 15,798 - 15,799
Contribution receivable 35,073 35,073
Government of Canada Bonds 423,545 437,870
Provincial and Municipal Bonds 840,348 862,547
Corporate and Public Utility Bonds 77,000 75,757
Total - 2001 $1,393,985 $ 1,429,267
Total - 2000 $1,443,612 $ 1,449,291

5. Deposit Insurance Fund

Section 223 of the Credit Unions Act requires that the Corporation establish and maintain a deposit insurance
fund. The Corporation is required by the Act to maintain the fund in two separate accounts. Each account
consists of the amount paid into the fund by one of the stabilization boards together with investment income,
less any expenditures charged to the account.

The Corporation has entered into a trust agreement with each stabilization board for the administration and
investment of the funds in their respective account. Under the terms of the agreements, each stabilization
board will invest the funds in accordance with the investment policy of the Corporation. Each trust fund
agreement provides that the Corporation may, at its sole discretion, obtain assets from the trust fund to fulfill
the obligations of its statutory purposes.

The two trust fund agreements contain provisions regarding the return of the deposit insurance fund to the two
stabilization boards if an amendment to the Credit Unions Act is passed to remove the requirement for the
deposit insurance fund and the Corporation has been released of all its deposit insurance obligations.

The Net Assets of the Deposit Insurance Fund must be maintained at a level determined annually by a formula
approved by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The formula requires that a risk rating be given to each
caisse populaire and credit union.

The amount of assets of the trust funds is adjusted annually based on the requirement of the formula. This
results in a contribution to the trust funds or a distribution to the stabilization boards.
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NEW BRUNSWICK CREDIT UNION
DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2001

5. Deposit Insurance Fund (continued)

" At 31 December 2001 the balance in the trust fund account administered by the- Office de Stabilisation de la -

Fédération des Caisses Populaires Acadiennes Limitée was $906,938 (2000 - $0.87 million). The balance in
the trust fund account administered by the Brunswick Credit Union Federation Stabilization Board Limited at
the same date was $485,555(2000 - $0.45 million). '

6. Deposit protection for credit union members

As described in Note 1 it is the mandate of the Corporation to provide deposit insurance coverage for members
of credit unions in New Brunswick. Currently, a maximum basic coverage of $60,000 is provided for insured
deposits of each credit union member. :

Separate deposit coverage up to a maximum of $60,000 each is also provided for joint deposits, trust deposits
and deposits held in RRSPs and in RRIFs. The Corporation has established a deposit insurance fund as
explained in Note 5.

The current legislation provides for the continued existence of the two stabilization boards-which have operated
in the province since 1978. Each stabilization board has established a stabilization fund which is available to
provide financial assistance to its affiliated credit unions.

As at 31 December 2001, the financial statements of the Office de Stabilisation de la Fédération des
Caisses Populaires Acadiennes Limitée reported net assets of $43.7 million (2000 - $40.4 million). Of
this total, an amount of $0.4 million (2000 - $2.1 million) represents investments in caisses populaires for
the purpose of stabilization. As at 31 December 2001, the financial statements of the Brunswick Credit
Union Federation Stabilization Board Limited reported net assets of $11.2 million (2000 - $9.9 million).
Each stabilization board is responsible to carry out inspections and monitor the financial condition and
business practices of its member credit unions on an ongoing basis.

Both the stabilization boards and the Corporation have responsibilities for the protection of deposits of
credit union members.

7. Related parties

Transactions between the Corporation, the two stabilization funds and the two trust funds are considered
related party transactions. Each of the two stabilization boards nominates two directors to sit as directors of the
Corporation. Each stabilization board exercises significant influence on the activities of the Corporation.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NEW BRUNSWICK

- Crop INSURANCE COMMISSION
31 MARCH 2002
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

New .
Nouveau ;;L. Brunswick

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairman and Members of the
New Brunswick Crop Insurance Commission

{ have audited the balance sheet of the New Brunswick Crop Insurance Commission as at 31 March 2002
and the statements of revenue and expense, surplus and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility- of the Commission's management. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Commission as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

K D Kbinnivi
K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
10 July 2002
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NEW BRUNSWICK CROP INSURANCE COMMISSION
BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS
Accounts receivable v
Canada o $ 283382 $ 42,504
Other , - 5,022
283,382 47,526
Crop Insurance Trust Account (Note 2 6,346,166 4,835,891
= $6,629,548  $4,883417
LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS
Accounts payable
indemnities , $ 149,729 § 198,764
Province of New Brunswick 2,062 1,722
151,791 200,486
Deferred revenue (Note 4) 47,361 43,027
Surplus 6,430,396 4,639,904

$6,629,548  $4,883,417
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NEW BRUNSWICK CROP INSURANCE COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

REVENUE
Premiums from producers (Schedule A)
Premiums contributions
- Province of New Brunswick
- Canada

Contributions for administration
- Province of New Brunswick
- Canada

Interest from producers

EXPENSE
indemnities (Schedule B)
Administration (Schedule C)
Crop Reinsurance Fund of New Brunswick
Crop Reinsurance Fund of Canada for New Brunswick

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR

2002 2001
$ 375935 $ 428,129
1,167,149 1,275,386
1,167,149 1,275,386
2,710,233 2,978,901
490,058 487,616
490,058 487,616
2,023 2,016
3,692,372 3,956,149
764,571 551,692
080,115 975,232
78,597 259,164
78,597 259,164
1,901,880 2,045,252
$ 1,790,492

$1,910,897
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NEW BRUNSWICK CROP INSURANCE COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF SURPLUS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
Surplus, beginning of year . . $ 4,639,904 $2,729,007
Excess of revenue over expenée for the year 1,790,492 1,910,857 E
SURPLUS, END OF YEAR : $6,430,396 $4,639,904
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NEW BRUNSWICK CROP INSURANCE COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002
: 2002 2001
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
- Operating activities: -
~ Excess of revenue over expense for the year - $1,790492 $1,910,897
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (235,856) 40,507
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ( 48,695) (537,969)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 4,334 (781)
increase in trust account (1,412,654)

Cash provided by operations
CASH POSITION AT BEGINNING AND AT END OF YEAR

(1,510,275)

$ -

$ . -
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NEW BRUNSWICK CROP INSURANCE COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
31 MARCH 2002

1. Description of operations

The Crop Insurance Act, assented to on 10 June 1966, serves as the basis for the establishment of
the Commission. Regulation 95-122 under the Act establishes the Commission and sets out its
powers and duties. .

The Commission is responsible for administering the delivery to producers of a crop insurance plan
to provide insurance protection against losses of production. This plan is funded through producer
premiums and through contributions from the Province of New Brunswick and the Government of
Canada.

All accounting transactions are recorded thrbugh the Consolidated Fund of the Province_,of New
Brunswick. Administrative expenses provided by the Province are allocated to the Commission.

2. Crop Insurance Trust Account

The Province of New Brunswick maintains a trust account for the Commission. All cash receipts and
disbursements of the Commission are made through this account.

3. Revenue — Province of New Brunswick and Government of Canada

(a) Premium contributions

The contributions of the producer, the Province of New Brunswick and Canada towards the
necessary premiums are as follows: : '

Coverage Level Producer Share Province Share Federal Share
50% Free 50% 50%
65% 50% of buy up 25% of buy up 25% of buy up
80% 80% of incremental. 10% of incremental 10% of incremental
buy up buy up buy up

(b) Administrative expense contributions

The Province of New Brunswick and Canada each pay 50% of all costs incurred in the
administration of the crop insurance program. '
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NEW BRUNSWIéK CROP INSURANCE COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

3.

Revenue — Province of New Brunswick and Government of Canada - continued

(c) Crop Reinsurance Funds

On an annual basis a reinsurance premium based on total crop insurance premiums (2.9% of total
premiums in 2002 and 8.7% in 2001) is submitted to each of the Crop Reinsurance Fund of Canada

for New Brunswick and the Crop Reinsurance Fund of New Brunswi

ck. Contributions are made by

the Funds for a portion of any operating deficits incurred by the Commission on a crop year basis.

Crop Reinsurance Fund of Canada for New Brunswick
Excess of claims over premiums, 1 April

Premiums submitted

Excess of claims over premiums, 31 March

Crop Reinsurance Fund of New Brunswick

Excess of premiums over claims, 1 April

Premiums submitted
Excess of premiums over claims, 31 March

Deferred revenue

2002 2001
 § 2,197,428 $ 2.456,502
(78,597) (259,164)
$ 2,118,831 $ 2,197,428
2002 2001
$ (2,063,213) $ (1,804,049)
(78,597) (259,164)
$ (2.141,810) $ (2,063,213)

The deferred revenue represents premiums paid in advance by the producers.
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SCHEDULE A

NEW BRUNSWICK CROP INSURANCE COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF PRODUCER PREMIUMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
Potatoes $ 286,320 $ 348,713
Spring grain 33,578 21,889
Apples 17,701 16,298
Blueberries 21,814 23,772
Strawberries 16,522 17 457

$ 375,935 $428,129
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: - ) SCHEDULEB
NEW BRUNSWICK CROP INSURANCE COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF INDEMNITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
Potatoes : $297,782 $355,767
Spring grain’ ' ' " 88,404 29,501
Apples . 96,672 22,760
Bluebenies 234,114 135,767
Strawbenies . 47,599 7.897 -

$7645711  $551692
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) ' SCHEDULEC
NEW BRUNSWICK CROP INSURANCE COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002
2002 2001
Personnel o : $ 684,149 $ 686,854
" Data information processing costs . 6,656 7,775
Transportation and communication 76,812 74,542
Utilities, material and supplies 9,732 7,558 -
Professional services ' o , 106,078 97,754
Repairs and maintenance _ 9,287 10,136
Office accommeodations and equnpment rentals ‘ 52,284 52,538
Capital equipment : 11,265 9,940
Other . 23,852 28,135

$980,115 $975,232
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Financial Statements Of

New Brunswick Distance Education Network Inc. /
Réseau de Formation & Distance
du Nouveau-Brunswick Inc.

(Incorporated under the laws of New Brunswick without share capital)

March 31, 2002

Peter G. Gaulton
Chartered Accountant
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Peter G. Gaulton Professional Corporation
Chartered Accountant

74 Adelaide Street
Saint John, NB
E2K 1W5
Bus: (506) 634-7393 Res: {506) 634-7609
Fax: (506) 652-8618 € Mail: gaultonp@nbnet.nb.ca

AUDITOR'S REPORT

| ‘have examined the statement of financial position of New Brunswick Distance Education
Network Inc. / Réseau de Formation & Distance du Nouveau-Brunswick Inc. for the year ended
March 31, 2002 and the statements of operafions and net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the corporation's management.
My responsibility is fo express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounfing principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

in my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the corporation as at March 31, 2002, and the results of operations and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

October 22, 2002

Chartered Accountant
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New Brunswick Distance Education Network Inc. /
Réseau de Formation & Distance
du Nouveau-Brunswick Inc.

(Incorporated under the laws of New Brunswick without share capital)

Statement of Financial Position

For the year ended March 31, 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current:
Cash in bank $ 209,808 $ 215,344
Accounts receivable 709,568 36,491
$ 919,376 $ 251,835
LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts payable $ 9,089 $ 85,101
HST payable 306,469 278,085
Deferred revenue (note 4) 600,000 -
915,558 363,186
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted net assets (deficiency) 3,818 (111,351)
$ 919,376 $ 251,835

Approved by the board: ,

L 7 /
Aol A Diredor

Director
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New Brunswick Distance Education Network Inc. /
Réseau de Formation a Distance

du Nouveau-Brunswick Inc.
(Incorporated under the laws of New Brunswick without share capital)

Statement of Operations and Net Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2002

2002 2001
Receipts:
Federal Government $ 273,367 $ 235,907
Provincial Government (note 4) 153,767 253,685
Universities / Colleges - 70,000
Miscellaneous , 5,760 9,115
432,894 568,707
Disbursements:
Bank charges 72 76
Interest on Harmonized Sales Tax 35,268 28,250
Professional service contracts 228,355 502,910
Equipment - 45,672
C.AS.E. program (3,704) 134,784
CSpace - salaries and operations 31,723 145,907
Meetings 2,035 5,267
Office and supplies 55 10,089
Travel 13,921 14,403
Professional services 8,471 63,397
Public relations and advertising - 2,460
Miscellaneous ' 1,529 18,710
317,725 971,925
Excess of receipts over disbursements (disbursements
over receipts) 115,169 (403,218)
Net assets (deficiency), beginning of year ' (111,351) 291,867

Net assets (deficiency), end of year ~$ 3818 $(111,351)
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New Brunswick Distance Education Network Inc. /

Réseau de Formation & Distance
du Nouveau-Brunswick Inc.

(Incorporated under the laws of New Brunswick without share capital)

Statement of Changes in Financial Position
For the year ended March 31, 2002

2002 2001
Cash provided by (used in)
Operations:
Excess of receipts over disbursements
(disbursements over receipts) $ 115,169 $(403,218)
Decrease {increase) in accounts receivable (673,077) 170,734
Increase (decrease) in HST payable 28,384 36,971
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (76,012) 80,869
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 600,000 {267,260)
Decrease in cash during the period (5.536) (381,904)
Cash, beginning of year 215,344 597,248
Cash, end of year $ 209,808 $ 215,344
Consisting of:
Bank - Operating account $ 25,723 $ 80,593
- Community Access account 184,085 134,751
$ 209,808 $ 215,344
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New Brunswick Distance Education Network Inc. /
Réseau de Formation & Distance

du Nouveau-Brunswick Inc.
(Incorporated under the laws of New Brunswick without share capital)

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2002

1.

Purpose of the organization

The company is a non-profit company incorporated in 1994 for the purpose of seeking
funding and partnership arrangements to facilitate access to distance education in New
Brunswick and to support the development of the advanced training technologies sector
of the provincial economy.

~ Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Method of accounting:

The corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for receipts. Restricted
receipts are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred.  Unrestricted receipts are recognized as revenue when received or
receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured.

(b) Donated services:
Donated services are not recorded in the records
Services in kind

The corporation is operated entirely by volunteer services of directors and committee
members. Due to the difficulty of determining the fair market value for those services they
are not recorded in the financial statements.

Related party transactions

The company's Board of Directors consists of employees of the Province of New
Brunswick. The company receives grants from the Province of New Brunswick to assist in
training and development costs of its programs. These grants are reflected as deferred
revenue in the attached statement of financial position until costs are incurred. At that
time, the grants are applied to reduce the costs of its programs and are reflected in the
statement of operations and net assets. During the year, the company entered into
contracts with the Province of New Brunswick totalling $753,767 (2001: $253,685) of
which $600,000 (2001: $NIL) was deferred to the following year.

Comparative figures

Certain figures have been restated to conform with presentation adopted for this year.
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Office of the Bureaudu
Auditor General vérificateur général

Nowe :@: Brunswick

AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Chairperson and Directors
New Brunswick Highway Corporation
Fredericton, New Brunswick

I have audited the balance sheet of the New Brunswick Highway Corporation as at 31 March 2002 and
the statement of revenue and expenditure for the year then ended. These financial statements are the -
responsibility of the Corporation’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audit. ’

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. :

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

the Corporation as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2 to the financial statements.

K D Kobi ter
K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
27 June 2002
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NEW BRUNSWICK HIGHWAY CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS
Due from Province of New Brunswick $853,032,396  $857,976,578
Accounts receivable (Note 4) 12,610,633 15,977,761
Prepaid expenses 423,174 -
Land (Note 5) 1 1
$ 866,066,204  $ 873,954,340
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Accounts payable $ 2,210,431 $ 991,403
Accrued interest payable 19,224,284 -
Deferred revenue - 1,150,652
Capital lease obligation (Note 6) 844,631,488 871,812,284
~ Contribution from Province of New Brunswick (Note 5) 1 1
' $ 866,066,204 $ 873,954,340

Approved by the Board
2

’

Chairperson
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NEW BRUNSWICK HIGHWAY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

2002

Budget Actual 2001
REVENUE
Province of New Brunswick $25314170 $ 29,529,906  $4,500,825
EXPENDITURE
Highway operations and maintenance (Note 7) 5,847,000 5,967,674 4,264,659
Tolling system operations and maintenance (Note 7) 158,000 159,396 452,271
Operating and administrative expense . 669,000 699,815 -
New Brunswick (F-M) Project Company Inc. administrative L
expenditures 600,000 175,018 -
Interest expense : 18,040,170 22,528,003 -
Removal of tolis - - 111,385
Costs related to transponder sales and distribution - - ( 18,490)
25,314,170 29,529,906 4,509,825

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURE $ - $ - $ -
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NEW BRUNSWICK HIGHWAY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '
31 MARCH 2002

1. New Brunswick Highway Corporation

The New Brunswick Highway Corporation (NBHC) is a provincial Crown Corporation incorporated
by an Act of the New Brunswick Legislature effective 29 March 1995. '

NBHC is the signatory for the Province in all agreements relating to the Fredericton-Moncton
highway project. As such, NBHC is responsible for monitoring, controlling and administering those
agreements to ensure that agreement terms are respected by other signatories and that provincial
commitments are met. This includes ensuring that construction of the highway and any required
refurbishments are completed as required in those agreements. It also includes ensuring that the
ongoing operation, management, and maintenance of the Fredericton-Moncton highway are
conducted in accordance with agreement terms.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

Accrual Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues and
expenditures are allocated to the year in which they are earned or incurred irrespective of the date
on which the related cash transactions are effected.

Physical Assets
The cost of acquiring physical assets is expensed in the year of acquisition.

Deferred Revenue _
Amounts received but not earned by the end of the fiscal year are recorded as deferred revenue.

feases : :

Long term leases, under which the Corporation, as lessee, assumes substantially all the benefits_
and risks of ownership of leased property, are classified as capital leases. The present value of a .-
capital lease is accounted for as an expenditure and an obligation at the inception of the lease.

3. Fredericton-Moncton highway

In January 1998, the Province through NBHC entered into agreements with a private sector
consortium and the New Brunswick (F-M) Project Company Inc., a not-for-profit company, to
develop, design, build, operate, manage, maintain and rehabilitate a four lane toll highway between
Longs Creek and Moncton. Effective 1 March 2000, the agreements were amended to eliminate
tolling on the highway.

NBHC leases land to the New Brunswick (F-M) Project Company Inc. which owns all improvements
to these lands, in particular the four lane highway, and subleases the improvements back to NBHC.
NBHC is responsible for making the sublease payments to the New Brunswick (F-M) Project
Company Inc.
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NEW BRUNSWICK HIGHWAY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

3. Fredericton-Moncton highway - continued _
NBHC is also responsible for making monthly traffic volume payments to the New Brunswick (F-M)
Project Company Inc. The traffic volume payments are used to repay principal and interest on the
toll-based debt after 23 October 2001, full traffic availability date. Any amount.in excess of that
required to repay the debt is returned to NBHC. :

4.  Accounts receivable
The accounts receivable balance at 31 March 2002 of $12,610,633 (2001. - $15,977,761) is
comprised of amounts paid by NBHC to the New Brunswick (F-M) Project Company Inc. to
maintain a tolling reserve fund as required in the agreements with toll-based lenders.

5. Land
The transfer of the land corridor required for the Fredericton-Moncton highway by the Province to
NBHC has been treated as an equity contribution for financial statement purposes and has been
recorded at the nominal amount of one dollar.

6. Capital lease obligation

Due to the elimination of tolls under the 1 March 2000 amendments to the agreements, the
payment arrangements are now being accounted for as a capital lease in accordance with the
recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. Consequently, a capital
lease obligation was accrued during the 1999-2000 fiscal year. The net present value of that capital
lease obligation at 31 March 2002 was $844.6 million (2001 - $871.8 million).

Under the agreements NBHC will be required to make total fuiure lease payments to the New
Brunswick (F-M) Project Company inc. of approximately $1.841 billion, including principal and
interest. ' _

Annual principal and interest payments in each of the next five years are as follows:

Fiscal Year (millions)
2002 - 2003 $11.2
2003 - 2004 $41.6
2004 - 2005 $726
2005 - 2006 $72.8

2006 - 2007 $73.2
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NEW BRUNSWICK HIGHWAY CORPORATION .
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ' ‘
31 MARCH 2002

7. Revenue and expenditure

Under the terms of the amended Operation, Management, Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Agreement, NBHC is responsible to make scheduled payments for the operation, management,
maintenance - and rehabilitation of the highway and for costs relating to the traffic volume
monitoring system.

During the year an asset representing Crown completed construction costs of $1,817,221 (2001 -
$4,520,758) was purchased by NBHC from the Department of Transportation. The asset was then
sold at cost to the New Brunswick (F-M) Project Company Inc. These amounts have not been
recorded on the Statement of Revenue and Expenditure.

8. Staff resources

The Corporation has no employees. Staff support is provided by the Department of Transportation
and the Department of Finance.

9. Statement of cash flows

This statement was not prepared-as the information it would contain was not considered to be
significant.
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Fmanaal Statements

NEW BRUNSWICK INVESTMENT
MANAGEMENT CORPORATION

" Year ended March 31, 2002
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MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Financial Statements of the New Brunswick
Investment Management Corporation are the responsi-

bility of the management of the Corporation. They have

been approved by its Board of Directors. E

Management prepared the financial statements in
-accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles.

- The New Brunswick investment Manageinent
Corporation maintains books of account, systems of
information and systems of financial and management
control which provide reasonable assurance that accu-
rate financial information is available, that assets are

protected and that resources are managed efficiently.

The Board of Directors oversees financial reporting
through its Audit Committee. The committee reviews
matters related to accounting, auditing, internal control
systems, the finandial statements and réport of the

external auditors.

Dan Goguen

Vice-President, Finance and Administration'

E. L. MacKinnon
President and Chief Executive Qfﬁcer

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS

We have audited the statement of financial posi-
tion of New Brunswick Investment Management
Corporation as at March 31, 2002 and the statement of
revenue and éxpenses for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the
Corporation's management. OQur fesponsibility is to
express an opinion on these finandial statements based
on our audit. ‘ '

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to

obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

~ Anaudit also includes assessing the accounting principles.

used and significant estimates made by nianagement,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. » _

In our opinion, these financial statements present

fairly, in all material respects, the finandial position of

.the Corporation as at March 31, 2002 and the results of -
its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended

in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

accounting principles.

NG wr

Chartered Accountants

Fredericton, NB, Canada
April 24, 2002

2002
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NEW BRUNSWICK INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT CORPORATlON
‘Statement of Financial Position ’

© March 31, 2002, with comparative figures for 2001

2002 - 2001
Assets
Current assets:
Cash : $ 103858 $ 3,505
Accounts receivable, Pension Funds 1,112,864 771,490
Prepaid expenses ‘ 149,527 16,197
1,273,249 791,192
Capital assets (note 3) 412,293 385,943
$ 1,685,542 $ 1,177,135
Liabilities and Deferred Contributions
| Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,172,427 $ 791,192
Harmonized Sales Tax 100,822 : -
1,273,249 791,192
Deferred contributions related to capital assets 412,293 385,943
Commitment (note 4)
$ 1,685,542 $ 1,177,135

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

otppnfp 2t D

Chairman of the Board

ir

President and Chief Executive Officer
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NEW BRUNSWICK INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION o

: Statement of Revenue and Expenses

: Year ended March 31, 2002, with comparative figures for 2001

2002 2001
Revenue:
Fees: _
Public Service Superannuation Fund $ 3307591 $ 2,914,066 -
Teachers’ Pension Fund S 3,108,129 - 2,765,508
Judges’ Superannuation Fund " 24,390 20,596
Amortization of deferred. contnbuttons related - o )
to capital assets , 7 : 130,319 119,502
Other - : , R 2,072 31,090
' ~ 6,572,501 .'5,850,762
Expenses: , ,
Salaries and benefits 3,383,446 2,575,130
Other services (note 5) : , 2,989,290 3,091,267
Materials and supplies 69,446 64,863
Amortization of capital assets ' 130,319 119,502
6,572,501 * 5,850,762

$ -

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$ -




2002

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME 3

123

NEW BRUNSWICK INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2002

The Corporation was established pursuant to the New Brunswick Investment Management Corporation Act
which was proclaimed on March 11, 1996. The Corporation is exempt from income taxes.

its legislated mandate is to:

o act as trustee for the Public Service Superannuation Fund, the Teachers’ Pension Fund aﬁd the Judges’

Superannuation Fund (*the Funds®);
e provide investment counseling services and other services for certain trust fuhds; :
e promote the development of the financial services industry and capital markets in the Province;

e have regard to investment opportunities in the Province in developing its investment policies, and;

-e carry out such other activities or duties as may be authorized or required by the Act or as the

Lieutenant-Governor in Council may direct.

Significant accounting policies:

a) Accounting entity:
The Corporatlon is an entity separate from the pension funds for wh|ch it is trustee. Expenses of

the Corporation are fully funded, primarily by the Funds.

(b) Basis of accounting:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

accounting principles.

{c) Capital assets:
Capital assets are recorded at cost and amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis using the

annual rates shown in note 3.

(d) Revenue recognition:
Fees for services are recognized in revenue as services are performed.

The Corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Contributions
restricted for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-
line basis at rates corresponding with amortization rates for the related capital assets.
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NEW BRUNSWICK INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Fmanaal Statements (contmued)

Year ended March 31, 2002

2. Statement of Cash Flows:

from the other financial statements..

3. Capital assets:

~ Astatement of cash flows has not been prepared as the required cash flow information is readily apparent

2002 2001
: Accumulated Netbook ~ Netbook
Rate Cost amortization value value
-Computer equipment 33%% $ 437,971 " $ 336,598 ¢ 101,373 § 68,707
Furniture and equipment 8% 327,464 138,573 188,891 197,217
Leasehold improvements 10% 251,082 129,053 122,029 120,019
$1,016,517 $ 604224 $ 412293 § 385,943
4. Commitment:
The Corporation leases premises under an operating lease which expires on January 31, 2012
Future minimum payments, by year and in aggregate, are as follows:
2003 $ 231,859
2004 245,700
2005 245,700
2006 : 245,700
Later years through 2012 1,433,250
$2,402,209
5. Other services:
2002 2001
External management fees and expenses ‘ $1.451,314  $1,213,225
Custodial services 102,378 159,556
~Travel _ 199,692 332,523
Office rent ' 171,331 161,292
Professional services 335,815 492,851
Information systems ' ' ' 595,198 577,961
Other - : ' 133 562 © 153,859
$2,989,290

$3,091,267
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NEW BRUNSWICK LIQUOR CORPORATION
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. MARCH 31, 2002
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L/ i R
!&.l‘ NB Liquor Alcool N-B

MANAGEMENT REPORT

The preparation of financial information is an integral part of management's
responsibilities, and the accompanying financial statements are the responsibility
of the management of the Corporation. This responsibility includes the selection of
appropriate accounting policies and making judgements and estimates consistent
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

The Corporation maintains an accounting system and related controls to provide
management and the Board with reasonable assurance that transactions are
executed and recorded as authorized, that assets are properly safeguarded and
accounted for, and that financial records are reliable for the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Financial information presented elsewhere in this annual report is consistent with
that in the financial statements.

Brrbasa (hovsers /W

Barbara Winsor Richard A. Smith, C.G.A., CM.A.

President and C.E.O. Controller & Director of Finance

May 21, 2002
170 Wilsey Road 170 chemin Wil
PO Box 20787 Case postale 20787 New gils Nouveau
Fredericton NB Fredericton NB —~——
Canada E3B 588 Canada E3B 588 Brunswu:k
Tel.: (506) 452-6826 Tél: (506) 452-6826

Fax: (506) 462-2024 Télécopieur: (506) 462-2024
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KPMG Lp

Chartered Accountants

Frederick Square Telephone {506) 452-8000
77 Westmorland Street Suite 700 Telefax (506) 450-0072
Fredericton NB E38 673 www.kpmg.ca

Canada

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS

We have audited the balance sheet of the New Brunswick Liquor Corporation as at March 31, 2002
and the statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our respoansibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Corporation as at March 31, 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
faken as a whole. The current year's supplementary information included in the schedules is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

KEr Gurp

Chartered Accountants

Fredericton, NB, Canada
May 21, 2002

... KPMG e, 2 Canadian owned timited liability partnership established under the faws
] of Ontario, is the Canadian memdber firm of KPMG International, a Swiss association.
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.Commitments (note 4)
Subsequent event (note 7)

See accompanying notes to financial statements

APPROVED BY THE BOARD:

G borrtaspe

Director .
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BALANCE SHEET
MARCH 31
Assets 2002 2001
Current Assets
Cash $ 180010 $ 167555
Accounts receivable 2030 398 1348 025
Inventories (note 1) 17 093 753 .13661 866
Prepaid expenses . 383 640 ..405786
Total current assets 19 687 801 .15 583 232
Fixed Assets
Property, plant and equipment (note 2) .9 968 531 .10 116 604
Total Assets $29 656 332 $25 699 836
Liabilities
. Current Liabilities '
Outstanding cheques. in excess of funds on deposit $ 514892 $ 1201603
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10 757 341 .8536.010
Total current liabilities 11272233 9737613
Long Term Debt
Pension liability (note 3) 2724254 2933812
Equity of the Province of New Brunswick
Balance at beginning of year .13 028 411 .12 593 664
Netincome 106 822 123 103 030 873
119 850534 115624 537
. Payments to the Province of New Brunswick 104 190 689 102596 126
. Balance at end of year .15 659 845 .13 028 411
Total Liabilities and Equity $29 656 332 $25 699 836

O Wb eomennn

Director
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INCOME STATEMENT
Year ended March 31
‘ Budget Actual Actual
2002 2002 2001
Total sales (note 5) $284 798 611 $295 877 374 $280 417 299
Less: commissions 4071704 4 298 666 3 991 108
Net sales 280 726 907 291 578 708 276 426 191
Cost of sales 148 616 317 154 798 129 146 906 343
Gross profit 132110 590 136 780 579 129 519 848
Other income 933 702 935 545 881 302
133 044 292 137 716 124 130 401 150
Operating expenses 29 494 636 30 894 001 27 370 277
Net income $ 103 549 656 $ 106 822 123 $ 103 030 873

See accompanying notes to financial statements

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended March 31

Cash from Operations
Net income
Items not involving cash:
Depreciation
Pension amortization
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Change in non-cash working capital
Cash available from operations

Net Capital Investments
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used for capital investments
Payments to the Province of New Brunswick
Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year

Cash at End of Year

See accompanying notes to financial statements

2002

$ 106822123

2001

$ 103 030 873

1 948 780 1838 840
(209 558) (86 298)
198 258 109 111

(2 557 494) (928 236)
106 202 109 103 964 290
(2 075 795) (1 443 362)
76 830 48 370

(1 998 965) (1 394 992)
(104 190689) (102 596 126)
12 455 (26 828)

167 555 194 383

$ 180010 $ 167555
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Schedule of Sales
Year ended March 31
Budget Actual Actual
2002 2002 2001
Spirits $ 70423337 $ 69106642 $ 68978366
Wine 30 595 263 31 758 252 29721629
Other beverages 11 996 882 15 959 875 12 224 661
Beer 171783 129 179 052 605 169 492 643
$284798 611  $295877374  $280 417 299
Schedule of Cost of Sales
Year ended March 31
Other 2002 2001
Spirits Wine beverages Beer Total Total
Inventories at beginning ofyear § 4781244 § 6391767 § 2493818 $ 883173 13550002 § 14414 541
Purchases 15995 273 14 466 874 5983 769 106 334 552 142 780 468 130 890 320
Freight 551711 - 1137 800 344 679 234 265 2 268 455 1819 895
Duty and excise tax 11818 323 945 473 179 357 193 841 13 136 994 13 331 589
33 146 551 21941914 9001623 107 645 831 171735919 160 456 345
inventories at end of year § 375 457 7632611 1106 987 2822735 16 937 790 13 550 002
$ 27771004 $ 14309303 § 7894636 $ 104823096 154798129 $ 146 906 343
Schedule of Other Income
Year ended March 31 Budget Actual Actual
2002 2002 2001
Merchandising programs $ 735632 $ 878995 $ 757945
Private importation revenue 51 468 56 466 50 426
Commission on collection of
licensee user fees 44 000 46 464 44 868
Beer voucher administration fees 10 000 14578 14 154
Unredeemed beverage container deposits 67 302 68 398 69.794
Subscriptions to sales reports 12 300 16 240 11825
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment ( 29 000) { 198 258) ( 109 111)
Sundry . 42 000 52 662 41 401
$ 933702 $ 935545 $ 881302
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Schedule of Operating Expenses
Year ended March 31
Budget Actual Actual
2002 2002 2001

‘Salaries - stores, warehouse and maintenance $ 12286 863 $ 12650218 $ 11659976

- administration 2790 649 2 823 822 2 636 550
Employee benefits 3144 863 3981821 2837180
Rent 2920 479 2918 286 2 841185
Heat and light 977 928 885 341 956 295
'Depreciation 1898 982 1948 780 1838 840
Training programs 189 400 187 660 116 294
Trucking 437 918 448 563 394 795
Repairs to property, plant and equipment 348 727 464 132 362 683
Property taxes 425 300 416763 416 974
Minor equipment and supplies : : 463 227 465 563 470 263
Security 224 285 233898 205 023
Retail automation system maintenance 223678 232920 220 787
Travel 245 736 301903 229 405
Beverage container redemption costs 347 000 384 929 354 446
Shopping bags 163 837 206 128 159 750
Data processing 327 470 345 165 296 055
Telecommunications 311 355 303 339 263 269
Motor vehicle operation 28 585 34 803 26 868
Cleaning 153 168 157 275 140 912 .
Shortages 39240 35263 40 041
Bad debt - 5944 -
Management meetings 49 223 50177 36 859
Postage 64 010 66 320 51035
Professional services 246 400 116 264 109 332
Bank charges 938 400 870216 484 883
Warehouse maintenance and supplies . 27 300 28751 35692
Insurance \ 15000 37982 14712
Advertising and promotions 86 930 159430 66 239
Directors' remuneration 40 000 36787 35775
Other 78 683 95 558 68 159

$ 29 494 636 $ 30 894 001 $ 27 370 277
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31, 2002

General

This Crown Corporation is incorporated under the New Brunswick Liquor Corporation Act and its primary
business activity is the purchase, distribution and sale of alcoholic beverages throughout the

Province of New Brunswick.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Inventories

Inventory of goods for resale is valued at cost, which is lower than net realizable value.
Inventory of supplies is valued at cost.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis
using the following annual rates:

Buildings 21/2%
Paving 10%
Refrigeration equipment 10%
Software and services 10%
Retail automation equipment 20%
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Automotive equipment 20%

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on the straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.

Early Retirement Program

The cost of early retirement programs is charged to employee benefits in the year the obligation
can be reasonably estimated.

Retiring Allowances

The estimated cost of retiring allowances payable to employees aged fifty-five and older as of
March 31, 2002 has been charged to employee benefits at their current rate of pay.

Workplace, Health, Safety and Compensation Commission

The Corporation is a self-assessed employer with the Workplace, Health, Safety and Compensation
Commission (WHSCC). Costs incurred under this plan are charged to employee benefits in the
year the payment is made.
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1. Inventories

2002 2001
Spirits, wine, other beverages and beer - $ 16937790 $ 13550002
Supplies 155 963 111 864
$ 17093753 $ 13 661866

2. Property, Plant and Equipment -

Accumulated 2002 2001

Cost Depreciation Net Net
Land $ 209075 $ 209075 $ 209621
Paving 448422 $§ 433854 14 568 13668
Buildings 10 377 801 6 541 220 3 836 581 3 942 521
Leasehold improvements 4 382 566 2873813 1508 753 1 197 166
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ‘6754 818 5 860 205 894 613 - 852417
“Automotive equipment 213 850 130 849 83 001 91272
Retail automation equipment 1619240 1257 980 361 260 655 609
Software and setvices 3259 435 1156 979 2 102 456 2020788
Refrigeration equipment 3212457 2254 233 958 224 1133 542
$30 477664  $20 509 133 $9 968 531 $10.116 604

3. Pension Liability

The employees of the New Brunswick Liquor Corporation belong to the New Brunswick Public Service
Superannuation Plan, a multi-employer, defined benefit pension plan.

Pursuant to a 1991 regulation under the Public Service Superannuation Act (NB), the New Brunswick
Liquor Corporation was to contribute annually, until such time as the benefits were fully funded, sufficient
amounts into the pension trust fund to amortize $7 900 000 of the pension liability. The liability was
subject to interest at 8.16% per year over a twenty-five year amortization period.

Experience gains have been identified through actuarial valuations of the Plan in various years from 1992

to 1999 and these gains are being amortized over the estimated remaining service life of active confributors.
As a result of the most recent actuarial valuation it was determined that the Plan is fully funded and no
payments to the pension trust fund have been made since March 31, 2000. Deferred pension costs have been
netted against pension liability and the balance amortized over the estimated remaining service life of

active contributors.

2002 2001

Pension liability ‘ . $2724254 $2 933812
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4.

5.

6.

7.

Comniitments

The Corporation leases buildings, premises and equipment under operating leases which expire at various
dates between 2003 and 2013. Certain of these operating leases contain renewal options at the end of
the initial lease term. The following is a schedule, by years, of future minimum lease payments required
under operating leases that have, as of March 31, 2002, initial lease terms in excess of one year:

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008 to 2013

Total Sales

$ 2696655
2430354
2135285
1954 396
1817 462
5176 595

$ 16 210 747

- Total sales reported include sales to retail customers, licensed establishments and agency stores. These

amounts do not include subsequent resale by licensed establishments and agency stores.

Retiring Allowances

During the year the Corporation booked an estimate of retiring allowances payable to employees aged
fifty-five and older as of March 31,2002. This policy has been accounted for on a prospective basis.
In the curent year a total of $633 136 has been charged to employee benefits.

Subsequent Event

Subsequent to year end, New Brunswick Liquor Corporation changed to the assessed basis of payment with
the Workplace, Health, Safety and Compensation Commission (WHSCC). As a result, the Corporation
placed the sum of $1 000 000 on deposit in trust with the WHSCC to cover the cost of claims for employees
injured prior to the conversion date of April 1, 2002. This deposit will be held for the period of

June 1, 2002 to May 31, 2009 and will accrue interest at the WHSCC's accounting rate of return for

the applicable year. The actual cost of claims will be deducted from the deposit in the year the

expense is incurred. At the end of the seven-year period or at any time prior, upon request of the
Corporation, WHSCC will calculate the future costs associated with these claims, whereupon

the Corporation will be responsible for a one-time payment of the amount. From that point forward, WHSCC
will assume responsibility for the liability. It is anticipated that the $1 000 000 on deposit will be sufficient

to cover all future costs associated with injuries that occurred prior to April 1, 2002.

Comparative Figures

Certain 2001 comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement presentation

adopted in 2002.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NEw BRUNSWICK
MounicreAL FINANCE CORPORATION

31 DECEMBER 2001
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

New ([ .
Nowney && Brunswick
AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
New Brunswick Municipal Finance Corporation

1 have audited the balance sheet of the New Brunswick Municipal Finance Corporation as at 31 December
2001 and the statements of income and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then enc.ied. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

t conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that { plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supportiqg tfxe amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as at 31 December 2001 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

K D IQ?éUL.‘fQL\/

K.D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
19 March 2002
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NEW BRUNSWICK MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEET
31 DECEMBER 2001

2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments $ 256945 $ -
Accrued principal receivable from municipalities
and municipal enterprises - 2,224,000
Accrued interest receivable from municipalities ’
and municipal enterprises 4,518,626 4,684,522
Accrued investment income receivable 14,366 14,553
4,789,937 6,923,075
Long term investments 520,000 520,000
Add: Unamortized premium 36,103 49,426
‘ 556,103 569,426
Loans to municipalities and municipal enterprises (Note 2) 366,936,000 350,908,000
$ 372,282,040 $ 358,400,501
LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
Outstanding cheques in excess of bank deposits $ - $ 2,439,382
Accounts payable 4,019 4,326
Accrued interest payable on debenture debt 4,518,626 4,283,845
Debenture debt (Note 3) 366,936,000 350.908.000
371,458,645 357,635,553
Retained earnings 823,395 764,948
$372,282,040 $ 358,400,501
Director
Akﬂ// LA Director
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NEW BRUNSWICK MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

REVENUE
Interest from municipalities and municipal enterprises
Retained for debenture issue expenses
Investment income

EXPENSE
Interest paid on debentures
Amortization of premium
Other expenses

NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Retained earnings, beginning of year
RETAINED EARNINGS, end of year

2001 2000

$ 23,392,348 $ 23,910,283
106,802 - 89,532
61,383 58,702
23,560,533 24,058,517
23,392,348 23,910,283
13,324 13,360
96,414 90,703
23,502,086 24,014,346
58,447 44171
764,948 720,777

$ 823395 $ 764,948
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NEW BRUNSWICK MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR):
Operating activities:
Net income for the year
Add (deduct)
Amortization of premium
Decrease (increase) in non-cash
components of working capital

Financing activities:
Proceeds on sale of debentures
Funds retained for debenture issues expenses
Principal paid on debenture debt

Investing activities:
Loans to municipalities and municipal enterprises
Principal repayments made by municipalities
and municipal enterprises

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
Cash position, beginning of year
CASH POSITION, end of year

2001 2000
58,447 44,171
13,324 13,360
2,624 556 (2,634,007)
2,696,327 (2,576,476)
70,632,010 59,140,754
(106,802) (89,532)
(55,173,000 ( 54,993,000)
15,352,208 4,058,222
( 70,525,208) (59,051,222)
55,173,000 54,993,000
( 15,352,208) (4,058,222)
2,696,327 (2,576,476)
(2,439,382) 137,094
256,945 (2,439,382)
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NEW BRUNSWICK MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2001

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

The Corporation was establishéd under the New Brunswick Municipal Finance Corpgratio_n Act. which
came into force on 1 February 1983. The purpose of the Corporation i§ to provide financing for
municipalities and municipal enterprises through a central borrowing authority.

Loans to.municipalities and municipal enterprises and debenture debt are recorded at par value. Any

discount or premium arising on the issuance of debenture debt is transferred to the municipality or
municipal enterprise, and accounted for in their financial statements.

2. - Loans to municipalities and municipal enterprises

{a) Loans to municipalities and municipal enterprises are made on the security of their debentures
due in annual instalments for periods up to a maximum of fifteen years.

(b) The terms of the loans to municipalities and municipal enterprises are identical to those on the
debenture debt outstanding. '
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NEW BRUNSWICK MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2001

3. Debenture debt

(a) The following debenture debt outstanding at 31 December 2001 is in Canadian funds and is
fully guaranteed by the Province of New Brunswick.

Series

ISI

* 'Tl
-U-
.v-

. Iwu
" .X-
-Yu

* lZl
-AA-
lAB-
L3 -ACI
-AD'
IAE-
IAFI
-AG-
MlAHu
IA'I
-AJ-
IAK-
lALI

Date of
Issue

14 July 1992

30 Dec. 1992
29 July 1993

23 Dec. 1993
09 Aug. 1994
21 Dec. 1994
07 June 1995
20 Dec. 1995
24 July 1996

02 Dec. 1996
16 Oct. 1997

18 Dec. 1997
25 Aug. 1998
15 Dec. 1998
11 Aug. 1999
14 Dec. 1999
10 Aug. 2000
19 Dec. 2000
17 July 2001

30 Nov. 2001

Maturity Date

14 July 1993 to 2002

30 Dec. 1993 to 2002
29 July 1994 to 2008

23 Dec. 1994 to 2003
09 Aug. 1995 to 2004
21 Dec. 1995 to 2004
07 June 1996 to 2005
20 Dec. 1996 to 2005
24 July 1997 to 2006

02 Dec. 1997 to 2006
16 Oct. 1998 to 2007

18 Dec. 1998 to 2007
25 Aug. 1999 to 2008
15 Dec. 1999 to 2008
11 Aug. 2000 to 2009
14 Dec. 2000 to 2009
10 Aug. 2001 to 2010
19 Dec. 2001 to 2010
17 July 2002 to 2011

30 Nov. 2002 to 2011

Interest Rates

6 1/2% to 9%

7 1/2% to 8 7/8%
5 1/2% to 8 3/8%
4 3/4% to 7 1/2%
8% to 9 3/4%

7 1/4% to 9 12%
7 1/8% to 8 1/8%
6 1/4% 107 7/18%
55/8% to 7 7/8%
3 5/8% 10 6 5/8%
4 1/8% to 6%

4 1/4% to 5 3/4%
5 1/4% to 5 5/8%
51/8%to 5 1/2%
5 1/5% to 5 3/4%
57/10% to 6 1/2%
6 1/10% to 6 2/5%
6% to 6 1/8%

4 9/20% to 6 1/5%
2 9/20% 10 5 1/2%

Original

Amount QOutstanding
$ 24,076,000 $ 3,557,000
22,171,000 4,486,000
34,442,000 8,157,000
23,856,000 6,773,000
30,860,000 10,614,000
14,243,000 5,315,000
13,611,000 7,268,000
39,032,000 18,704,000
19,028,000 11,716,000
38,610,000 22,806,000
36,187,000 24,062,000
34,346,000 22,253,000
26,566,000 18,863,000
29,838,000 22,758,000
31,633,000 25,975,000
33,575,000 28,196,000
31,887,000 28,911,000
27,801,000 25,321,000
28,920,000 28,920,000
42,281,000 42,281,000

$ 582,963,000 $ 366,936,000

* These debentures were sold directly to funds administered by the Province of New Brunswick.

(b) Principal payments due in each of the next five years are:

2002 $56,884,000
2003 $52,208,000
2004 $46,292,000
2005 $45,417,000
2006 $41,471,000
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The New Brunswick Milseum_

Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2002
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 PRCVATERHOUSE(COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants
401 Brunswick House
44 Chipman Hill
. PO Box 789
Saint John New Brunswick
. : . Canada E2L. 4B9
May 1’ 2002 . N : - ) Telephone +1 (506) 632 1810
: ) Facsimile +1 (506) 632 8997

Auditors® Report

To the Directors of

The New Brunswick Museum

We have audited the consolidated baiémce sheet of The New Bru_nswick Museum as at March 3 1,
2002,-and the consolidated statement of financial operations and changes in fund balances for the year

" then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Museum’s management. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, ona
test basis, evidence supportmg the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 51gn1ﬁcant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentatlon

In our opinion, these consolidated ﬁnancial'statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Museum as at March 31, 2002 and the results of its operations for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Decsnstishrsilonpins (L6

Chartered Accountants

PricewaterhouseCoopers refers 1o the Canad:an firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and other members of the worldwide
PnoewatcrhouscCoopels orgamzatlon,
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The New Brunswick Museum
~ Consolidated Balance Sheet '
As at March 31,2002
Pfoperty and
General Equipment Restricted Endowment
Fund : Fund Funds Fund 2002 2001 -
3 hY ) ) -3 s
Assets ‘ : .
~ Cash 24,819 - 92,453 203 117,475 31,475
Short-term mvestments (note . . -
3) ' 111,712 - . 161,234 - 272,946 - 479,252
Accounts receivable — trade 39,718 - - 10,129 49,847 - 70,771
- Accounts receivable — grants - - 44,400 2,250 46,650 96,700
_ Inventory 30,483 - - - 30,483 26,395
Due from Provmce of | New _ .
‘Brunswick - - 21,530 - 21,530 8,686
206,732 - 319,617 12,582 538,931 . 713,279
- Investments (note 3)° ; - - 911,131 911,131 949,347
" Property and equxpment o -
_ (note 4) - 68,800 64,529 - 133,329 170,110
Collection and accessions 2 - - - 2 2
. 206,734 68,800 384,146 923,713 . 1,583,393 1,832,738
Liabilities and Fund
Ba!ances
Accounts payable and :
accrued liabilities 102,701 - 34,819 2,000 139,520 350,012
Interfund loan 51,317 - 2,152 (53,469) - -
Due to Province of New : :
Bru'ns_wick 35,654 - - - 35,654 -
189,672 - 36,971 : (51,469) 175,174 350,012
Fund balances . ‘
Unrestricted 17,062 - - - 17,062 43,111 -
Internally restricted - - 56,880 137,517 194,397 242,768 -
Externally restricted - - - 225,766 93,686 319,452 316,780
Endowments - - 743,979 743,979 709,957
Property and equipment - 68,800 64,529 - 133,329 170,110 _
17,062 68,800 347,175 975,182 1,408,219 ],482,726 :
2(56,734 - 68,800 384,146 923,713 1,583,393 1 ,832,738

Approv@ﬁle Board of lr,ectors
/ ' Director
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T he New Brunswick Museum
Consolidated Statement of Financial Operatlons and Changes in Fund Balances
_For the year ended March 31, 2002 :
General  Property and
Fund Equipment  Restricted Endowment ' _ .
$ Fund Fund Fund - 2002 2001
(note 6) $ ) $ ‘$ S
Revenue . :
Grants - C ’
Provincial 1,590,016 - 54,881 - -. 1,644,897 1,558,908
- Federal - - 30,864 - 30,864 © 11,667 .
Department of Canadian Hentage . - - 46,950 - 46,950 -202,194
Investment income 4,634 - 901 58,164 -63,699 73,507
Webster Foundation - - - 57,640 57,640 40,225
Museum services (note 5) 135,594 - 687 - 136,281 - 129,804
Other grants and bequests - - 43,619 19,750 163,369 53,904
Donations T - 20,331 4,241 24,572 49,577
Miscellaneous income 6,236 - - - . 6,236 -
1,736,480 - 198,233 - 139,795 . 2,074,508 . 2,119,786
. Expenditures , =
- -Salaries and benefits 1,219,960 - 100,524 - 1,320,484 1,205,609
Materials, supplies and services 604,217 - 112,066 - 716,283 810,550
Amortization of property and :
equipment 53,923 - 41,524 - 95,447 82,603
Acquisitions 28,513 - 1,236 18,073 {17,822 47,599
Scholarships - - - 2,000 2,000 T
1,906,613 - 255,350 20,073 2,1 82‘,036 2,1 4§,36 1
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over _ _ _
expenditures . (170,133) - (57,117 119,722 (107,528) (26,575)
Gain on sale of investments - - - 33,021 33,62]_ : 110,067
Internal transfer ‘ 171,102 (26,561) . (144,541) . -
Fund balance Begmnmg of o : o
year ' 16,093 95,361 404,292 966,980 1,482,726 1,399,234
Fund balance — End of year 17,062 68,800 347,175 975,182 1,408,219 1,482,726
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The New Brunswick Museum

~ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
March 31,2002 '

1 Nature of organization

. The New Brunswick Museum (the “Museum”) is incorporated under the laws of the Province of New
Brunswick. As New Brunswick’s provincial museum, it is the principal repository and steward of material that
documents or.represents the natural and human history of New Brunswick and other related regions. The New
Brunswick Museum works in partnership with institutions and communities to collect, preserve, research and

. interpret material to foster a greater understanding and appreciation of New Brunswick provincially and

. globally. .

The Museum is registered as a charitable organization under the Income Tax Act and, as such, is exempt from
- income taxes and is able to issue donation receipts for income tax purposes. In order to maintain its status as a
- registered charity under the Act, the Museum must meet certain requirements within the Act. In the opinion of
‘management, these requirements have been met. :

2 Significant accounting policies
(a) Financial statement presentation

In order to ensure observance of the limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to
the Museum, the accounts of the Museum are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund
accounting. Accordingly, resources are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into separate
funds. These funds are held in accordance with the objectives specified by the donors or in accordance
with directives issued by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) or various funding authorities.

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The New Brunswick Museum and its
_subsidiary, The New Brunswick Museum Foundation, Inc. :

For financial reporting purposes, the accounts have been classified into the following four groﬁpings. '
General Fund
This fund reflects the day-to-day ‘operatiﬁg transactions of the Museum.
Property ami Equipment Fund

This fund reports the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Museum’s furniture and
equipment. The Museum’s premises are provided by the Province of New Brunswick.

Furniture and equipmé,nt is stated at cost and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the assets as follows: ' :

‘Computer equipment- _ 33%
Vehicles and equipment  20%
Fumiture _10%
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The New Brunswick Museum

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
~ March 31, 2002

Restricted Fund

This fund mcludes amounts received by the Museum which are des1gnated to be for certam restricted
activities. Such restricted actlvmes mclude the following;

Grants — Amounts received from various governments and private-agencies to ﬁnance specific
projects.

Department of Canadian Heritage — Amounts recexved from the Federal Museum s Assistance .
Program which provides financial assistance for specific projects that foster access by present and
_ future generations of Canadians to their human, natural, artistic and scientific heritage.

* Bequests and donations — Amounts received from sources which place specific restrictions on their
use. ‘ : : :

InternaIly restricted fund — Amounts restricted by the Board for exhibitions and gallery upgrades.
This also includes funds received from activities of the staff in the curatorial departments to assist m

fmancmg spemﬁc project expenditures.
Endowment Fund
This fund includes amounts held for the long-term benefit of the Museum.

Webster Foundation — Contributions from the Webster Foundatlon are applled towards certain '
humanities programs under the General Fund.

(b) Investments

Investments purchased by the Museum are valued at cost, and investments donated to the Museum are
valued at fair market value at the date of receipt. Investment income is recognized as earned. '

©) Invenlory '

Inventory consisting of publications and items held for resale is valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value determined on a first-in, first-out basis.

{d) Collections and accessions

Collections and accessions are recorded at a nominal value. Additions to the collectlons are expensed in
the year of acquisition.

The collections of the Museum comprise a wide range of subject matter from the humanities and natural’
science, which are relevant to New Brunswick and have been continually acquired since the institution’s
foundation in 1842. The humanities holdings, numbering about 100,000 artifacts, include history and
technology artifacts, fine and decorative arts and archival matenal The natural science holdings,
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The New Bfunswick Museum

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

numbcrmg about 300,000 specimens or specimen lots, include botamcal palaeontology and zoologlcal
~ collections.

(e) Contributed services
“Volunteers contributed approx1mately 2,575 hours to assist the Museum in carrying out its service dehvery
activities.
3 Investments

Investments comprise the following:

2002 . 2001

_ Market _ | o - Market

Cost -value : -Cost - value

s : $ ) : R

© Short-terin investments . | o B

Treasury bills 272,946 272,678 : 479,252 481,142 .

Long-term investments , : '

GIC’s , 17,000 17,000 17,000 17,000

- Treasury bills ’ - - 16,930 16,930

Bonds : 742,179 729,274 = - 801,687 795,412

Equity : 151,952 385,279 - 113,730. 332,644

911,131 1,131,553 949347 1,161,986
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The New Brunswick Museum

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
March 31,2002

4 Property and equipment

2002 2001
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization - value " value
$ ‘ $ ) ‘ $
- Computers ' 226,337 - 186,826 39,511 66,604
Vehicles and equipment 189,867 124,034 65,833 69,843
Furmniture 76,421 48,436 27,985 " 33,663
‘ 492,625 359,296 133,329 . 170,110
5 Museum services
~ Museum Services consist of the following revenue and expenditures:
2002 2001
$ $
Revenue v ‘
Gift shop and program 147,012 113,078
Admissions - 102,638 : 100,073
Facility rentals ' 15,323 14,887
Membership 11,759 12,786
276,732 240,824
Expenditures ‘ _ ‘ o
* Gift shop and programs ' ‘ ' 140,451 111,020

136.281 129,804
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" The New Brunswick Museum

.Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
‘March 31, 2002

6 .General Fund revenue and expenditures —Detailed comparison to budgét

- ' 2002
2002 - Budget
Actual (unaudited)
'$ . $
- Revenue : ' : o ‘ .
Provincial . . 1,590,016 .~1,508,800
Museum services _ : , 135,594 . 137,400
Investment income A ‘ . 4,634 -~ 5,000
Miscellaneous income : v - 6,236 -10,000
1,736,480 - 1,661,200
Expe_nditures : : : : _ o ' .
Salaries and benefits- . o ' " 1,219,960 - 1,253,000
Operations ' o 243,088 204,000
Collections upgrade - : : 77,580 - 100,000
Marketing and development : 92,184 . 83,500
Curatorial and library , ' 85,924 75,200
Exhibition and technical services . 126,364 71,500
Visitor services ‘ ' ' 21,989 19,000
Outreach , _ 12,963 - IQ,OOO
1,880,052 1,816,200
(143,572) - - (155,000)
Less: Amortization of property and equipment not included in the I
- above _ ; A (53,923) . -
Add: - Capital expenditures included above - 27,362 - - -

Deficiency of revenue over expéndifures _ _ | (170,133) - (155,000)
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The New Brunswick Museum

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31,2002 ' :

7 Commitments

_Minimum annual commitments under long-term operating leases are as follows:

s
Year ending March 31, 2003 19376
S 2004 » 19.376
2005 18,363
2006 ' 7216

2007 ' 3,608

8 Comparative figures

Certain of the prior year’s comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted for
the current year. '
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2002

o

Energie NB Power
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
Brunswick House

44 Chipman Hilt

P.O.Box 6549, Station A
Saint John, New Brunswick
£2L 4R9

Tel:(506) 632-1080 .
r:x:(sos) 632-1210 (7th Floor) DE'Oltte
Fax: (506) 637-9460 (8th Floor} -

&Touche

AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honourable Marilyn Trenholme Counsell, MD
Lieutenant-Governor of New Brunswick
Fredericton, New Brunswick

Madam:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of New Brunswick Power Corporation as at
March 31, 2002 and the consolidated statements of income and retained earnings and cash flows
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's
management. Our responsibility-is to express an opinion on these financial statements basedon
our audit.

We conducted our audit in” accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the financial statements are free of material misstaement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

in our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of the Corporation as at March 31, 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash flows ér the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

i

DM 5 oude L7

Chartered Accountants

May 14, 2002

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu
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‘NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
Year ended March 31, 2002

(in millions)
2002 2001
Restated .
(See Note 2)
REVENUES
Sales of power (Note 3) o
In-province , $ 919 $ 931
Out-of-province 359 332
Miscellaneous , : 41 : 46
: 1,319 - 1,309
EXPENSES
Purchased power 102 : 100
Fuel 387 : 401
Operation, maintenance and administration 344 ' 325
Amortization and decommissioning (Note 4) - 200 205 .
1,033 : ' 1,031
Income before finance charges 286 _ 278
Finance charges (Note 5) 266 356
NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR _ 20 (78)
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
Opening retained earnings as previously reported 20
Effect of change in accounting policy (Note 2) ' (106) ,
Opening retained eamings (deficit) as restated . (164) (86)

Deficit end of year $ (144) $ (164)
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at March 31, 2002
- (in millions)

. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Note 6)

Land, buildings, plant and equipment, at cost
L ess: accumulated amortization

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments (Note 7)
Accounts receivable

Materials, supplies and fuel
Prepaid expenses

DEFERRED CHARGES

Deférred debt costs, less amounts amortized
Deferred pension benefit (Note 8)

ON BEHALF
| ¢

2001
Restated

(See Note 2)

'$ 5323
2417

2,906

57
174
78

313

27
52

$ 3,298
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at March 31, 2002

(in millions)
2002 2001
Restated
(See Note 2).
LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 10)
" Debentures and other loans $ 2,530 $ 2,950
Less: sinking funds ' 359 326
| 2,171 2,624
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term indebtedness (Note 11) , ' - . 102
Accounts payable and accruals ' 149 164
Accrued interest g 73 73
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 10) 719 245
941 584
DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Plant decommissioning and used nuclear
fuel management (Note 12) 234 221
Other (Notes 9 and 13) 34 33
268 254
DEFICIT
Deficit (Note 2) - (144 (164)
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions)

2002 2001
Restated
{See Note 2)

NET INFLOW (OUTFLOW) OF CASH RELATED
TO THE FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES :

OPERATING
Net income (loss) for the year : $ 20 - $  (78)
Amounts charged or credited to operations not
requiring a current cash payment (Note 14) 214 . 292
234 214
Net change in non-cash working capital balances (35) 16
) 199 230
FINANCING
Debt retirements net of sinking fund proceeds 229) (252) .
Sinking fund installments and earnings : : (56) (56)
Proceeds from long-term debt obligations 283 291
Increase (decrease) in short-term indebtedness (102) (74)
(104) - @)
INVESTING
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment (140) (118)
Proceeds on disposal and customer contributions 5 2
{135) - {116)
NET CASH INFLOW (OUTFLOW) (40) 23
CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
BEGINNING OF YEAR “ 57 34

END OF YEAR ‘ : $ 17 $ 57
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The New Brunswick Power Corporation (“the Corporation”), established in 1920 as a Crown
Corporation of the Province of New Brunswick by enactment of the New Brunswick Electric
Power Act, has a corporate mission to provide for the continuous supply of energy adequate for
the needs and future development of the Provincé and to promote economy and efficiency in
the generation, distribution, supply, sale and use of power. .

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, applied on a basis consistent with that of the
preceding year. The financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation and those of
its wholly owned subsidiary, N.B. Coal Limited (N.B.Coal).

R

Regulation

The Corporation is regulated under a system whereby annual average rate increases

greater than three percent, or the Consumer Price Index, whichever is higher, require

regulatory review by the Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities of the Province of New
Brunswick (Public Utilities Board). The Corporation must also apply to the Public Utilities
Board before making any expenditure greater that.$75 million in relation to upgrading,
maintaining or decommissioning a generating facility. '

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of additions to property, plant and equipment is the original cost of contracted
services, direct labour and material, interest on funds used during construction. and
indirect charges for administration and-other expenses; less credits for the value of power
generated during commissioning. ’

Interest during construction is capitalized monthly based on the cost of long-term
borrowings. When significant assets are removed from service for extended periods of
time for refurbishment, interest during construction is charged based on the net book
value of the asset concerned.

Contributions in aid of construction which include amounts received from customers as
well as research and development grants in respect of new faciliies, are netted against
the cost of related assets. Amounts received from customers are being amortized over
the estimated service lives of the related assets. ‘ :

The cost of distribution assets retired, net of dismantlement and salvage, is charged to
accumulated amortization. For all other property, plant and equipment dispositions, the
cost and accumulated amortization is removed from the accounts with the gain or loss on

disposal being reflected in income.

.énaghnllm
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Amortization is provided for all assets sufficient to amortize the cost of such assets, less
-estimated salvage value, over their estimated service lives. The estimated service lives

of fixed assets are periodically. reviewed and any changes are applied prospectively.
Amortization is suspended when significant assets are removed from service for
extended periods for refurbishment. Amortization is - provided on certain ‘mining -
equipment on an increasing charge basis, the amortization amount being based on the
amount of related debt retirement required during the year. All other assets are amortized
on a straight-line basis. Amortization is provided on the net cost of property, plant and
equipment in respect of which grants have been provided and on amounts contributed by
customers. :

The main catégoriés‘ of property, plant and equipment have been amortized based on the
following average estimated service lives: 4

Assets . Years
Hydro Generating Stations : 70
Thermal Generating Stations - 35
Nuclear Generating Station 25
Combustion Turbine Generating Stations 25
Terminals and Substations 40
Transmission System 351055
Distribution System 10to 35
Buildings

- General 40

- Head Office , 50
Communications and Computer Systems : 3to1b
Mining Equipment 20to 35
Motor Vehicles 4 to 10

Cash and short-term investments

Cash and short-term ihvestments, which are stated at cost, consist of balances with
banks and investments in money market instruments.

Inventories

Inventories of materials and supplies, and fuel, other than nuclear fuel, are valued at
average cost. Nuclear fuel is valued at cost using the first-in; first-out method.

Deferred debt costs
The Corporation amortizes debenture discounts and prenﬁums the expenses of issues,

and the deferred interest related to anticipated debt refi nancmg, over the lives of the
issues to which they pertain.
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f.

Foreign exchange transactions

- Monetary assets and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies are translated to

Canadian (Cdn) dollars at rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date except

. where such items have been hedged by the acquisition of a forward exchange contract, in

which case the rate established by the terms of the contract is used in the transiation.
Exchange gams and losses resulting from foreign currency translation are reflected in
income.

Long-term debt

Long-term debt is recorded on the balance sheet at cost. The estimated fair value of

~ long-term debt is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements using market values or

estimates of market values based on debt with similar terms and maturites. The
estimated fair value does not include costs that would be incurred to exchange or settle
the debt.

_Plant decommissioning and used nuclear fuel management

In order to provide-for the estimated future costs of permanently disposing of used
nuclear fuel and decommissioning the nuclear generating station to return the site to a
state of unrestricted use, the Corporation annually charges income with amounts
calculated to be sufficient, when accumulated with interest, to cover the total costs of
these future activities as they occur. The calculations of the anticipated future costs are
based on detailed studies which take into account various assumptions regarding the
method and timing of dismantlement of the nuclear facility, the cost of transportation of
nuclear material to permanent disposal facilities, and estimates of interest and inflation
rates in the future. With respect to used nuclear fuel, the annual charge is related to the
amount of nuclear fuel consumed in each year while decommissioning requirements are
charged on a straight-line basis over the life of the station.

The Corporation also provides, through an annual charge to income, for the estimated
future costs of decommissioning its thermal generating stations. The amount of the

charge, when accumulated with interest, is intended to cover the total costs of.
- decommissioning activities as they occur.

The annual charges to income each year to cover the costs of these future activities are
accumulated in a deferred liability account, together with interest compounded annually.
Interest is calculated at the Corporation’s long-term borrowing rate and is charged to
income annually.

Expenditures incurred on a current basis relating to used nuclear fuel management and
plant decommissioning are charged against the deferred liability account.

Enargie N8 Power
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h. Plant deéommissioning and used nuclear fuel management (continued)

In view of potential developments in the technology of decommissioning and used nuclear
fuel management, and because of the various assumptions and estimates inherent in the
calculations, the Corporation reviews such calculations periodically, making adjustments
as necessary on a prospective basis.

i Pension plans

Corporation employees are members of the Province of New Brunswick Public Service
Superannuation Plan. This multi-employer plan provides pensions based on length of
service and the average of the highest five consecutive years of earnings. The
Corporation and its employees make contributions to the plan as prescribed in the Public
Service Superannuation Act and its regulations. N.B. Coal maintains a private
contributory defined benefit pension plan for its employees. '

Under both plans, pension costs are actuarially determined using the projected benefit
method, pro-rated on services and management's best estimate assumptions.
Experience gains or losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the pension assets and

~ pension obligations are amortized over the expected average remaining service life of the
-employee group. The fair market value of the plan assets less the accrued benefit
- obligation as determined at April 1, 2000, is amortized over the average remaining service
life of the employee group.

j- Retiring allowance

The Corporation has a retiring allowance program for employees that provides a lump-
sum payment equal to one week of pay for each full year of employment to a maximum of
26 weeks of pay. The actuarial present value of accrued retiring allowance obligations for
past service is amortized on a straight line basis over the expected average remaining -
service life of the employee group.

k. Early retirement programs

The total cost of such programs is charged to income in the year the program is initiated,
irrespective of when payments are actually made.

1 Revenue
Billings to residential and general service customers are rendered monthly on a cyclical

basis. All other customers are billed at the end of each month. Revenue in respect of
items not billed at the end of a fiscal period is estimated and accrued.

Energie NB Power
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

m. Derivative financial instruments

The Corporation penodlcally uses the following derivative financial instruments to manage
the following risks:

Derivative Finéncial Instrument Risk

Forward Exchange Contracts Exchange risk related to future US dollar
‘ purchases, and interest and principal
obligations on US denominated long-term debt.

Interest Rate Agreements Risk related to changes in interest rates on
: ' planned refinancing of debt

Electricity Swap Contracts Risk related to changes in elebtrit:ity prices on
- export electricity sales

Oil and Natural Gas Swaps Risk related to changes in the cost of heavy
: fuel oil used in the operations of its generating
stations and on a purchase contract based on
natural gas prices

Gains, losses, revenues and expenses associated with derivative contracts are
..recognized: in income on the same -basis as the underlying hedged transaction. The
Corporation only enters |nto derivative financial instruments to manage underlymg
exposures

n. Use of estimates

General

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting penod Actual results
could differ from the estimates.

Decommissioning and»used nuclear fuel management costs and amortization of
nuclear generating station

As indicated in Note 1h, the Corporation annually charges income with amounts
calculated to be adequate, when accumulated with interest, to cover the total costs of
permanently disposing of used nuclear fuel and for decommissioning the nuclear
generating station to return the site to a state of unrestricted use. Because of the various
assumptions and esftimates inherent in the calculations, the Corporation periodically
reviews these estimates and adjusts them on a prospective basis if necessary.

o
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions) '

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

n. Use of estimates (continued)

Decommnssuomng and used nuclear fuel management costs and amortlzatlon of
nuclear generating station (continued) .

The Corporation updated its estimates during the year for the costs of permanently
disposing of used nuclear fuel and decommissioning the nuclear generating station. The
update considered the impacts on the estimates of changes in costs, interest rates and
inflation rates. .

The annual charges for used nuclear fuel disposal and decommissioning costs are further
impacted by the timing of the end of the generating station service life and the consequent
timing of decommissioning. The current year update -did not consider any changes in
these factors beyond the last reviews completed in 1996. :

The reviews completed in 1996 reflected a generating station service life of 2014,
However, in the year ended March 31, 1999, the service life of the Point Lepreau
generating station, for amortization purposes, was changed to 2008.

The Corporation has filed evidence with the Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
(PUB) seeking a recommendation to refurbish the nuclear generating station to extend its
service life to 2032, and expects to receive a response in 2002. The Corporation’s Board'
of Directors, upon receiving the recommendation of the PUB, will make a decision on
.whether or not to refurbish the station, which will impact the estimates for used nuclear
fuel management and decommissioning costs, and amortization. If a decision is made to
refurbish the nuclear generating station and extend its service life, the annual charges for
used nuclear fuel management and decommissioning will decrease from their current
level by $1 million and the annual charge for amortization will decrease by $25 million. If
a decision is made not to refurbish the plant, the annual charges for used nuclear fuel
management and decommissioning will increase in the range from $11 to $22 million and
the annual charge for amortization will increase in the range from $0 to.$33 million from
current levels, depending on the year of the planned shutdown of the generating station.

In view of the uncertainty relating to the decision on refurbishment that will determine the

~estimated service life for the nuclear generating station, the Corporation’s financial
statements continue to reflect the 1996 reviews for purposes of calculating the annual
charge for used nuclear fuel management and decommissioning. Accordingly, when the
refurbishment decision is made in 2002, it is reasonably possible that the annual charges
to income for used nuclear fuel management and decommissioning of the nuclear
generating station and its amortization will differ, and could differ materially, from the
estimated amounts provided in these financial statements.

2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Effective April 1, 2001, the Corporation adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (CICA) amended standards for foreign exchange translation. The amended
standard no longer allows foreign exchange gains or losses on long-term debt to be deferred
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions)

2.  CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY (continued)

and amortized over the life of the related debt issue. -Income and retained earnings from prior
years have been restated to reflect the amended standard. Adoption of the amended standard
increased net income by $16 million (2001 - reduced net income by $66 million) and reduced
opening retained earnings by $172 million (2001 - $106 million).

3. SALES

a) Power sales to the Province of New Brunswick and other government owned
organizations are recorded at normal commercial rates.

b) Out-of-province sales of power include $194 million (2001 - $234 million) to utilities in
the United States. :

4. ~ AMORTIZATION AND DECOMMISSIONING

2002 2001
Amortization expense o : $ 197 $ 202
, 3 3
Charges for decommissioning -
$ 200 $ 205
5. FINANCE CHARGES
2002 2001
Interest expense ~ $ 265 $ 284
Less: Income from sinking funds and other investments (24) (25)
Less: Interest income on pension plan . (8) (16)
233 243
Provincial government guarantee fee ‘ _ 19 19
Amortization of deferred debt costs 4 4
Unrealized foreign exchange losses 4 - 82
Realized foreign exchange losses 1 12
27 360
Less: Interest capitalized (5) 4
$ 266 $ 356
5 4
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions)

5. FINANCE CHARGES (continued)

Interest paid on debt during the year was $263 million (2001 - $288 million). Interest received on
investments during the year was $22 milfion (2001 - $23 million).

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT A :
© 2002 2001

Cost Accumulated Cost Accumulated
amortization amortization
Power generating stations $ 3667 $ 1,787 $ 3672 -$ 1,688
Transmission system .27 , 121 261 17
Termminals and substations 408 203 39 : -193
Distribution system’ , 693 288 673 » 272
Buildings and properties 58 27 57 25
Communications and ‘ ,
ocomputer systems 62 26 61 . 2
Mining equipment and related
assets 74 65 74 62
Motor vehicles 438 31 45 28
Miscellaneous assets ‘ 20 12 18 _ 10
Construction-in-progress 98 - 66 : -
$ 5400 $ 2,560 $ 5323 $ 2417

7. CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS :
2002 - 2001

Cash | $ 13 $ 53
Short-term investments _ 4 .
$ 17 $ 57

8. DEFERRED PENSION BENEFIT

Corporation employees are members of the Province of New Brunswick Public Service
Superannuation Plan (Public Service Plan) as described in Note 1i. Actuarial valuations are
prepared periodically to determine the costs of the pension benefits and the appropriate amounts
of contributions to the fund. The latest actuarial valuation completed on the Public Service Plan
was April 1, 2000. ‘ :
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8.

NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION ,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31,2002 ..
(in millions)

DEFERRED PENSION BENEFIT (continued)

The actuarial method used incorporates management's or the plan owner’s best estimate
assumptions to determine the present value of accrued pension benefit obligations based on
projections of salaries and wages to normal retirement dates. The pension calculations were
completed using a discount rate of 6.5% on the obligation and a rate of return of 7.5% on assets.
Salary increases are assumed to be 2.5%.

The status of the costs and obligations of the Corporation’s share of the Public Service Plan and
N.B. Coal's private plan as at March 31, 2002 was as follows:

2002 2001
Pension fund assets {(market value) $ 678 $ 664
Accrued pension obligations $ 676 $ 653
Pension surplus $ 2 $ 11
Cost of benefits for the year $ 10 $ 10
Interest cost on accrued benefits 43 41
Interest on pension fund assets (49) (53) .
Amortization of transitional surplus ' (4) “) -
Amortization of gains/losses 2 -
Pension expense _ $ 2 $ (6)

Employees contributed $9 million (2001 - $9 million) and the Corporation contributed $11 million
to the plan (2001 - $8 million) during the year. Benefit payments from the plan to retirees were
$29 million (2001 - $25 million). Total contributions to date in excess of pension expense, in the
amount of $61 million (2001 - $52 million) have been recorded as an asset under deferred

charges.

RETIRING ALLOWANCE LIABILITY

The Corporation has a retiring allowance program for employees as described in Note 1j.
Actuarial calculations are prepared to determine the amount of the Corporation’s obligations for
retiring allowances. The actuarial method used incorporates management’s best estimate
assumptions to determine the present value of the accrued retiring allowance obligation based on
projections of salaries and wages to normal retirement dates. The interest rate used inthe
calculation of this obligation was 6.5% and the assumed rate of salary escalation was 2.5%. The
latest actuarial calculation was done as at April 1, 2000.

" The retiring allowance obligation as at March 31, 2002 is $24 million (2001 - $22 miillion). The

retiring allowance expense for the year ended March 31, 2002 was $4 million (2001 - $4 million).
The cumulative amount expensed in excess of amounts paid out under the retirement allowance
program has been set up as a liability under deferred liabilities (See Note 13).
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10.

" NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31, 2002

(in mitlions)
LONG-TERM DEBT
2002 2001
Debentures guaranteed by the Province of New Brunswick $ 125 $ 125
" Debentures held by the Province of New Brunswick 3,114 3,060
Other loans 10 10
_ 3,249 3,195
Less: Payments due within one year 719 245
__$253%  __$2950
Debentures and notes
‘Average
Interest o
Date of maturity Rate Canadian uUs 2002 2001
Years ending:
March 31, 2002 9.6% , - - - - 250
March 31, 2003 8.0% ' -~ 500 185 685 689
March 31, 2004 7.5% 100 - ~100 100
March 31, 2005 ’ - - - - -
March 31, 2006 8.1% 200 - 200 200
March 31, 2007 6.8% - 70 - 70 -
1-5 Years 7.9% 870 185 1,055 1,239
6-10 years 7.7% 975 . - 975 495
11-30 Years 8.5% 350 860 1,209 1,451
Debentures and notes $2,195 $1,045 $3,239 $3,185
Loans payable in annual installments of principal and interest at .
rates varying from 4.5% to 8.25% per annum to the year 2011. 10 10
Total long-term debt $3,249 $3,195

The US$ debenture balance outstanding at March 31, 2002 is US$ 660 million. (See Note 18)

The weighted average coupon interest rate on all debentures and notes outstanding at March

31, 2002 is 8.06% (2001 — 8.39%).
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002 ..
(in millions)

LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)
Long-term debt payments

Long-term debt maturities and sinking fund requirements in respect of debt outstanding at
March 31, 2002 are as follows for the five years ending March 31, 2007: _

Debt maturities and sinking
fund obligations

(in millions)
Year ending March 31, 2003 719
Year ending March 31, 2004 ) ‘ 126
Year ending March 31, 2005 .25
Year ending March 31, 2006 225
Year ending March 31, 2007 - 93

Exchange rates in effect at March 31, 2002 are used for debt denominated in foreign
currencies.

Sinking funds

The Minister of Finance of the Province of New Brunswick, as Trustee for the Corporation,
maintains a sinking fund for all debenture issues where required. Sinking fund earnings are
reflected in the Corporation’s income. Corporation debentures held in the fund are cancelled at
maturity or on the debenture call date. Sinking fund investments are deducted from long-term
debt except where the legally enforceable right to offset does not exist. The amount not offset
and reclassified as investments is immaterial (2001 - immaterial) (See Note 18).

Guarantee fee

The Corporation pays an annual guarantee fee to the Province of New Brunswick, amounting to
0.6489% of the total, as at the previous year end, of long-term debt guaranteed by the Province,
debentures held by the Province and short-term indebtedness to the Provmce less the balance
held in sinking funds.

SHORT-TERM INDEBTEDNESS

The Corporation borrows funds for temporary purposes from the Province of New Brunswick.
The short-term borrowings from the Province of New Brunswick are $0 at March 31, 2002
(2001 - $102 million).
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION 7
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in miflions)

SHORT-TERM INDEBTEDNESS (continued)

The Corporation may also borrow from banks from time to time. Such borrowings are payable
on demand. The Corporation has bank lines of credit, guaranteed by the Province of New
Brunswick, for short-term borrowings totaling $89 million.

N.B. Coal has bank lines of credit totaling $4 million, which are secured by a general
assignment of book debts. - '

" PLANT DECOMMISSIONING AND USED NUCLEAR FUEL MANAGEMENT

2002 2001
Used nuclear fuel management , % 17 $ 113
Nuclear decommissioning 98 ' 92
Thermal decommissioning 19 16
$ 234 $ 22

"As described in Note 1h, the $234 million recorded liability shown above, together with future

annual charges to income, when accumulated with interest, will be adequate to cover the total
costs of these future activities as they occur.

The obligation is not funded.

DEFERRED LIABILITIES - OTHER

2002 2001
Early retirement programs $ 27 $ 29
“Retirement allowance program {See Note 9) 10 . 8
37 37
Less: Amounts due within one year 3 4
$ 34 $ 33

&
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions)

14. AMOUNTS CHARGED OR CREDITED TO OPERATIONS NOT REQUlRlNG A CURRENT

15.

‘CASH PAYMENT

2002 , 2001

Amortization and decommissioning $ 200 $ 205
Amortization of deferred debt costs 4 4
Unrealized foreign exchange losses 4 82
‘Disposal of nuclear fuel consumed during the year 1) (2)
Interest on plant decommissioning and used nuclear fuel
Management 15 14
Retirement expenses less related cash payments : 1 3
Reduction in pension expense ‘ ' 9 - (14)

' $ 214 $ 292

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Foreign exchange risk management

At March 31, 2002, the Corporation had outstanding forward exchange contracts representing a
net commitment to purchase US$ 355 million (2001 — US$ 124 million) maturing over the next
sixteen months. The weighted average rate of exchange protected by these contracts i is CDN
$1.5640.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts as at March 31, 2002 is $568 million (2001 - $196

million). If the contracts had been closed out at March 31, 2002 the gain would have been $12
million (2001 - $8 million).

Fuel price risk management

At March 31, 2002, the Corporation had outstanding heavy fuel oil swap contracts fotaling $79
million (2001 - $62 million) maturing over the next eighteen months. The fair market value of
the heavy fuel oil swap agreements as at March 31, 2002 is $89 million (2001 - $58 milfion).

At March 31, 2002, the Corporation had outstanding natural gas swap contracts totaling $15

“million maturing over the next twelve months. The fair market value of the natural gas swap

agreements as at March 31, 2002 is $19 million. No natural gas hedges were in place as at
March 31, 2001.

Under the agreements, the Corporation exchanges monthly payments based on the differential
between a fixed price and a monthly cumulative floating price for the associated fuel. The
differential to be paid or received is reflected in the cost of fuel.

If the outstanding swap contracts for which gains and losses accrue to the Corporation had
been closed out at March 31, 2002, the gain would have been $10 miltion for heavy fuel-oil

~ swaps (2001 — loss of $4 million), and $4 million for natural gas swaps.
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Year ended March 31, 2002 -
(in millions)

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Electricity risk management

At March 31, 2002, the Corporation had outstanding electricity swap contracts totaling $8 million
maturing over the next five months.- The fair market value of the electricity swap agreements as
at March 31, 2002 is $9 million. No electricity swap contracts were in place as at March 31,
2001. ' .

If the contracts had been closed out at March 31, 2002 the loss would have been $1 million.

Interest rate risk management

The Corporation has entered into interest rate swap agreements which will become effective
from July 1, 2002 to November 15, 2002 with termination dates from October 1, 2012 to
February 17, 2013. These agreements have a notional principal amount of $225 million (2001 -
$450 million). The Corporation will pay a weighted average fixed rate of 6.5612%. if the
outstanding interest rate swaps had been closed out as of March 31, 2002, the loss would have
been $4 million (2001 - $17 million).

Fair value of debt and sinking funds

The estimated fair value of long-term debt as at March-31, 2002 is $3,685 million compared to a
book value of $3,249 million (2001 - $3,620 million compared to $3,195 million). The estimated
fair value of all sinking funds as at March 31, 2002 is $381 million compared to a book value of
$359 million (2001 - $346 million compared to $326 million). :

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The
Corporation conducts a thorough assessment of debtors prior to granting credit and actively
monitors the financial health of its debtors on an on-going basis. The estimated fair value of
credit risk is deemed to be the sum of accounts receivable net of applicable reserves and the
total gross unrealized gains for financial instruments. Accounts receivable, net of applicable
reserves is $169 million (2001 - $174 million). The gross unrealized gains, net of losses, from
the foreign exchange, interest rate, electricity and fuel price risk management instruments is
$21 million.

16. COMMITMENTS

Coleson Cove Generating Station Refurbishment

Subject to successful completion of the environmental impact assessment, the Corporation
plans to refurbish the 1,000 megawatt Coleson Cove generating station including converting it to
burn Orimulsion fuel. Construction is scheduled to commence in September 2002. The
estimated cost of the refurbishment is $747 million. Expenditures to March 31, 2002 amounted
to $7 million. :
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. NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002 . ..
(in millions) o

COMMITMENTS (continued)
Belledune Wharf

The Corporation has entered into an operating lease expiring in 2013, with a twenty yeaf

renewal option, for the port facility at Belledune. This lease provides for annual charges of

approximately $4.5 million.

Courtenay Bay Generating Station

The Corporation has entered into a lease agreement for site facilities, expiring in 2021, with a
five year option to extend. The tenant has repowered an existing 100 MW unit to a 280 MW

combined cycle natural gas unit which began commercial operation effective September 2001.

The Corporation has also entered into a related power purchase and transmission access
agreement expiring in 2021, with a five year option to extend, with the same third party. The

Corporation will purchase all the electrical energy produced by the re-powered 280 MW .

combined cycle natural gas unit during the winter period, November 1 to March. 31, and from

time to time, some or all of the electrical energy produced during the summer period.

Gas Transpbrtation Agreement
The Corporation has entered into an agreement expmng in 2015 for firm natural gas

transportation service to the re-powered Courtenay Bay Generating Station. The cost of
transportation will be recovered from the tenant referred to in the lease of the generating station.

Orimulsion Fuel Supply

The Corporation has entered into a twenty year agreement to purchase Orimulsion fuel for the
Dathousie generating station from 1990, continuing year to year thereafter unless terminated by

either party.
Computer Equipment

The Corporation has entered into operating leases relating to computer equipment. The future
minimum lease payments under these leases are as follows

2002 2001

2003 ' $4 $1
2004 3 1
2005 2 -
$9. $2

Energie NB Powor
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions) :

17. CONTINGENCY

N.B. Coal has an ongoing environmental responsibility to treat acidic water drainage from an
inactive mine. Ongoing cost of treatment is approximately $0.5 million per year.

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
a.  Restructuring the Corporation

Subsequent to year end, the New Brunswick provincial government announced that there will be
a structural and financial separation of the Corporation’s four business units and corporate
services with greater emphasis on the commercial development of the business units. By April
1, 2003, the Corporation will be restructured or unbundled into NB Power Holding with the four
business units operating as subsidiary companies — NB Power Generation, NB Power Nuclear,
NB Power Transmission, and NB Power Distribution and Customer Service. The holding

. company will provide corporate services to the subsidiaries.
The new subsidiary companies will be directed to operate on a commercial basis similar to other

energy companies. They will be responsible for financial ‘statements, business plans, and
benchmarking for regulatory purposes. The four subsidiaries will be required to:

* earn a positive rate of 'retum on equity

e pay a cash dividend to the Province

. péy appropriate_income and capital taxes

» borrow funds without a provincial government guarantee
Legislation to effect this restructuring is expecfed in early 2003. Also invitations for equity
positions or partnerships will be sought for the Coleson Cove and Point Lepreau generating

station refurbishment projects.

b.  Financial Instruments

Subsequent to year end, the Corporation entered into cross currency interest rate swaps to
hedge foreign exchange risk associated with $200 million of its outstanding $US debentures.
Also, subsequent to year end, certain US denominated sinking fund assets were assigned to
provide a hedge against an additional US$ 200 million in outstanding debentures.

Also, subsequent to year end, a legislative change was made to debenture provisions to allow
the Corporation, as debentures mature, to either withdraw the value of the sinking funds
accumulated for the maturing debentures, or leave these funds in the sinking fund to be
withdrawn later at the date of maturity of other debentures.

Energie N8 Power
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NEW BRUNSWICK POWER CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended March 31, 2002
(in millions)

19. COMPARATIVE FIGURES -

Certain 2001 figures have been reclassified to conform with 2002 financial statement
presentation.

* Energie NB Power
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Office of the Burean du
Auditor General - vérificateur général

Nowe, i-g-i Brunswick

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairperson and Directors
New Brunswick Public Libraries Foundation

| have audited the statement of financial position of the New Brunswick Public Libraries Foundation as at
31 March 2002 and the statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Foundation’s management. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

Except as explained in the following paragraph, | conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
-made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In common with many charitable organizations, the organization derives revenue from the general
public, the completeness of which is not susceptible of satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, my
verification of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the organization and
I was not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to public donations, excess of
revenue over expenditure, assets and net assets. ’ :

In my opinion, except for the effect of adjustments, if any, which | might have determined to be
necessary had | been able to satisfy myself concerning the completeness of the contributions referred to
in the preceding paragraph, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Foundation as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations and changes in
net assets for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles. :

K D KobomA ko
K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
15 August 2002
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NEW BRUNSWICK PUBLIC LIBRARIES FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS :
Current assets .
Cash (Trust Account) $ 236,063 $ 129,434
Accounts receivable 353 138
$ 236,416 $129,572
L IABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable $ 50,000 $ 50,000
Net assets 186,416 79,572
$ 236,416 - $ 129,572

Chairperson

Director
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NEW BRUNSWICK PUBLIC LIBRARIEéFOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001

REVENUE . .

Public donations $ 338 $ 1,671

Grants from the Department of Education : 100,000 101,671

Bank interest 6,506 1,670 .

106,844 105,012

EXPENDITURE , _ - -
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURE ' 106,844 105,012
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year ’ , 79,572 (25,440)

NET ASSETS, end of year $186,416 ~ $ 79,572
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NEW BRUNSWICK PUBLIC LIBRARIES FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

1. Authority and Objective

The New Brunswick Public Libraries Foundation is an independent entity created under the
provisions of the New Brunswick Public Libraries Foundation Act proclaimed 1 March 1998. The

mandate of the Foundation is

M

@
®

@
©)
©)

to receive gifts of real and personal property, including money, to support public library
services in the Province, including support for capital projects for public library facilities,
purchase of materials, equipment and supplies for public libraries and support for such library
services as may be delivered through the public library system in the Province,

to invest and administer the property received,

to encourage, facilitate and carry out programs and activities that will directly or indirectly
increase the financial support of or confer a benefit on public libraries in the Province,

to make grants and gifts in support of the public library system in the Province,
to promote the use and benefits of public libraries in the Province, and

to assist pubtic library boards in raising funds for public libraries in the Province.

The affairs of the Foundation are administered by a Board of Directors of ten persbns appointed by
the Lieutenant-Governor in Council. The Department of Education is responsible for the
administration of the New Brunswick Public Libraries Foundation Act. '

2. Annual Grant

The Province provided a grant of $100,000 during the year and a grant of $100,000 is approved for
next year. This funding is not dependent upon the Foundation receiving donations from the public.
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

N .
Novwer &G Brunswick |

AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honourable Bernard Lord
Premier of the Province of New Brunswick

-and -

The Chairman and Members of the
New Brunswick Research and Productivity Council

| have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of the New Brunswick Research and
Productivity Council as at 31 March 2002 and the consolidated statements of operations and changes in
fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Council's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Council as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N.B.
7 June 2002
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'NEW BRUNSWICK RESEARCH AND PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 MARCH 2002

Operating Capital 2002 2001
Fund Fund Total Total
ASSETS
Current assets .
Cash and term deposits $ 879,053 $ - $ 879,053 $ 615824
Accounts receivable 1,855,475 - 1,855,475 1,893,143
Work in progress 201,887 - 201,887 357,652
Prepaid expenses 31,082 - 31,082 27,982
' 2,967,497 - 2,967,497 2,894,601
Long term investments, at cost (Note 3) 145,791 1,798,920 1,944,711 1,749,000
Capital assets, net (Note 4) - 2,365,912 2,365,912 2,286,380
$3,113,288 $4,164,832 $7,278,120  $6,929,981
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current liabilities :
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 950214 $ - $ 950,214 $ 836,513
Deferred revenue 111,616 - 111,616 150,042
Current portion of long term debt (Note 5) - 34,400 34,400 11,250
1,061,830 34,400 1,096,230 997,805
Long term debt
Accrued retirement benefits 527,275 - 527,275 468,543
Notes payable (Note 5) - 119,658 119,658 62,004
527,275 119,658 646,933 530,547
Deferred contributions (Note 6) - 16,056 16,056 32,071
Fund balances
Unrestricted 1,524,183 : - 1,524,183 1,542,510
Board restricted (Note 7) - 1,798,920 1,798,920 1,645,993
Invested in capital assets - 2,195,798 2,195,798 2,181,055
1,524,183 3994718 5,518,901 5,369,558
$3,113,288 $4,164,832 $7.278,120 $6,929,981
APprovegf}P(e C%
/ P Ll 440// Chairman

Pl

Executive Director
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NEW BRUNSWICK RESEARCH AND PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

Operating Capital 2002 2001
Fund Fund = Total Total

REVENUE
Operations $7291,248 § - $7,291,248  $7,223,626

Operating grant .

Province of New Brunswick 740,700 - 740,700 740,700
Interest - 127,085 - 127,085 131,532
* Sundry . 91,105 - 91,105 54,613
Gain on sale of capital assets - 169 169 3,000
8,250,138 169 8,250,307 8,153,471

EXPENSE
Operations 6,033,377 - 6,033,377 5,803,824
General and administrative 1,597,400 - 1,597,400 1,620,774
Amortization (Notes 4 and 6) 432,499 B 432,499 413,144
Bad Debts ‘ 37,688 - 37,688 31,749
8,100,964 - 8,100,964 7,869,491
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSE 149,174 169 149,343 283,980
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,542,510 3,827,048 5,369,558 5,085,578
Interfund adjustment (Note 7) (167,501) 167,501 - -

. FUND BALANCES, end of year $1,524,183  $3,994,718  $5,518,901  $5,369,558
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NEW BRUNSWICK RESEARCH AND PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
'CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

Operating Capital 2002 2001
Fund Fund Total Total
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR): :
Operating activities -
Excess of revenue over expense $ 149174 $ 169 $ 149,343 $283,980
Amortization 432,499 - 432,499 413,144
Gain on sale of capital assets - ‘ (169) (169) (3,000)
Net change in non-cash working capital 265,608 23,150 288,758  (264,938)
Net cash provided by operating activities 847,281 23,150 870,431 429,186
Financing and investing activities _
Purchase or transfer of long-term investment (42,784) (152 927) (195,711) -
Accrual of retirement allowance entittements 58,732 58,732 29,829
Proceeds from long term loan - - 73, 754 73,754 62,004
Payment of long term loans - (16 100) (16,100) -
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets - 4500 4,500 3,000
Acquisition of capital assets - (532,377) (532,377) (481,193)
Net cash used in financing and investing activities '
investing activities 15,948 (623,150) (607,202) (386,360)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 863,229 (600,000) 263,229 42,826
Cash and term deposits, beginning of year 615,824 - 615,824 572,998
Interfund transfer (Note 7) (600,000) 600,000 - -

CASH AND TERM DEPOSITS, end of year $ 879,053 $ - $ 879,053 $615,824
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NEW BRUNSWICK RESEARCH AND PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002 '

1.

Purpose of the organization

The New Brunswick Research and Productivity Council is a non-profit organization incorporated
under the Research and Productivity Council Act 1962. The objectives of the Council are to promote,
stimulate and expedite continuing improvement in productive efficiency and expansion in the various
sectors of the New Brunswick economy. The Council provides independent research, testing and
technical services to enterprises primarily within New Brunswick on a fee-for-service basis.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Fund accounting

Revenue and expense associated with delivery of services and administrative support are reported
in the Operating Fund. The Capital Fund reports assets, liabilities, gains and expenditures related to
the acquisition, disposal and financing of capital assets, as well as the amount of net assets

restricted for capital purposes.

{b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is determined to be earned and is recorded in the Operating Fund on a percentage of
completion basis when services are performed. The value of work completed but not billed is
reported as Work in Progress, while amounts which have been paid or billed in advance, but for
which work has not been done, are reflected as Deferred Revenue. All interest income is reported in
the Operating Fund in the year it is eamed, while gains and losses relating to disposal of capital
assets are reported in the Capital Fund in the year the disposal occurs.

{c) Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded in the Capital Fund at cost. Amortization is provided on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Amortization expense is recorded in the Operating
Fund as part of the cost of service delivery.

{(d) Consolidation policy

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Council and those of its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Minuvar Ltd.
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NEW BRUNSWIék RESEARCH AND PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

3. Long-term investments

The following investments are carried at cost. The fundamental source of uncertainty to which these
investments are exposed is interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of an
investment will fluctuate due to future changes in market interest rates. :

Unit
, Units Value 2002
Fixed Income -
Bank of Nova Scotia notes, due 26 June 2002,
extendable at issuer's option until 2010. Interest } :
at 6.00% is paid annually. 2,490 100 $ 249,000
Province of Nova Scotia notes, due 27 April
2002, extendable at issuer's option until 2010. :
Interest at 5.50% is paid annually 10,000 100 1.000,000
Bell Canada medium term note, due 1 December
2003. Interest at 6.25% is paid semi-annually. 500 100 50,000
Government of Canada, due 1 September 2004. A
Interest at 5.0% is paid semi-annually. 2,000 100 200,000
City of Hamilton, due 25 October 2004. Interest at
4.25% is paid semi-annually. 1,440 100 144,000
Farm Credit Canada, due 15 August 2005.
interest at 4.25% is paid monthly. 2,500 100 250,000
Farm Credit Corporation medium term notes, due
15 November 2005. Interest at 5.00% is paid
semi-annually. ' 500 100 50,000
1,943,000

Unamortized net discount/premium 1,711

$ 1,944,711

Investments held at 31 March 2002 have a market value of $1,869,187.




190 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME 3 2002

NEW BRUNSWICK RESEARCH AND PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

4. Capital assets

Amortization !
Rates - 2002 - 2001
Vehicles 25 percent $ 14,343 $ 14,343
Computer equipment 25 percent 1,204,898 . 1,138,337
Other equipment 12.5 percent 5,478,284 5,162,980
Building 3 percent 2,113,065 1,979,781
Cost 8,810,590 8,295,441
Less: accumulated amodtization 6,444,678 6,009,061
Capital assets, net $ 2,365,912 $ 2,286,380

Amortization expense is comprised of the following amounts:

2002 2001
Amortization of assets $448,514 $ 436,546
Amortization of deferred contributions (16,015 (23,402)

$432,499 $413,144

5. Note payable

Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency, interest free, payable $3,750 quarterly

through May 1, 2006 _ $ 62,004
Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency, interest free, payabie $4,850 quarterly

through November 1, 2006 92,054

- 154,058

Less: current portion 34,400

$ 119,658

6. Deferred contributions

Deferred contributions reported in the Capital Fund represent the unamortized portion of external
contributions received towards the cost of specific capital assets. Amortization of deferred
contributions is calculated at the same rate as amortization of the assets to which they relate, and is
netted with amortization expense for presentation purposes. This method of presentation became

effective 1 April 1995.




eSS

2002 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME 3 : 191

NEW BRU.NSWICK RESEARCH AND PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

6. Deferred contributions - continued

The changes for the year in the deferred contributions balance reported in the Capital Fund are as

foliows:

Deferred contributions at 31 March 2001 $ 32,071

Contributions to the cost of equipment -

Amortization of deferred contributions (16,015)
Deferred contributions at 31 March 2002 $ 16,056

Contributions towards the cost of capital assets in years prior to 1 April 1995 were credited to the
cost of the related assets and thus reduced the net asset value subject to amortization. Since the
Council's inception it has been the recipient of capital funding from a variety of programs; details
concerning the amount and classification of assets funded through these programs are not
reasonably determinable. For this reason, capital assets purchased prior to 1 April 1995 continue to
be carried at cost net of external contributions.

7. Inter-fund transfers and internally restricted fund balances

The board of directors of the New Brunswick Research and Productivity Council internally restricted

resources amounting to $1,798,920 as at 31 March 2002. This internally restricted amount is

intended for the acquisition of capital assets and payment of capital obligations and is not available

for other purposes without the approval of the board of directors. This amount includes a 31 March
* 2002 transfer of $600,000 from the Operating Fund to the Capital Fund.

8. Related party transactions

During the year the Council provided services to government departments and Crown agencies of
the Province of New Brunswick. The Council provides these services under its normal terms and

conditions.
2002 2001
Revenue from services provided for the year

Government departments and agencies $ 996,457 $ 1,007,599

Accounts receivable at 31 March
Government departments and agencies $ 407,376 $ 405,628
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PrEMIER'S COUNCIL ON THE
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Office of the ’ Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

New (1. .
Nouveau &Brunswmk

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairperson and Members of
Premier's Council on the Status of Disabled Persons

| have audited the balance sheet of the Premier's Council on the Status of Disabled Persons as at
31 March 2002 and the statement of revenue, expenditure and surplus for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Council's management. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

{ conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, -on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Council as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N.B.
27 May 2002




2002 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME 3 _ 195

PREMIER'S COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF DISABLED PERSONS
BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS
-. Current assets ' » ) :
Cash $ 8,794 $ 16,051
Accounts receivable 5,131 1,469
Prepaid expenses 1,439 5,226
' $ 15,364 $ 22746
LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 9,384 $ 4,507
Surplus _ 5,980 18,239
$ 15,364 $ 22,746
' Approved by the Council

#dyﬂ.‘ Chairperson
m M _ Member

[4
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PREMIER'S COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF DISABLED PERSONS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURE AND SURPLUS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

REVENUE

Grants - Province of New Brunswick
Cost recoveries '
interest revenue

EXPENDITURE

Salaries and employee benefits
Furniture and equipment
Office supplies

Telephone

Printing

Translation

Honoraria

Travel expenses

Postage

Maintenance

Hotel expenses-

Parking

Council meetings
Consultations and seminars
Meals

Library and subscriptions
Office equipment rental
insurance

Miscellaneous

Bank charges
Disability Awareness Week (Note 2)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE

OVER EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR

Surplus, beginning of year
SURPLUS, END OF YEAR

2002

2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
$ 234,000 $ 236,300 $ 230,100
4,000 4,629 1,902

- 7 7
238,000 240,936 232,009
180,000 179,209 171,122
1,500 2,573 1,447
4,000 3,283 3,479
3,700 3,168 3,161
8,000 9,882 6,433
6,000 4,599 5,218
8,000 6,676 7.350
6,000 7.359 5,825
8,000 6,962 4,223
2,800 2,334 2,959
4,850 5,827 5,633
2,505 2,548 1,904
3,000 2,605 2,130

- 582 445
1,600 1,909 1,427
1,800 1,725 1,725
2,600 2,623 1,806
500 525 428
500 260 76

50 134 27
5,286 8,412 20,936
250,691 253,195 247,754
$ (12,691) (12,259) (15,745)
18,239 33,984

$ 5980 $ 18,239
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PREMIER'S COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF DISABLED PERSONS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

{a) Capital assets

It is the policy of the Council to charge all capital asset purchases to expense in the period in which
the expenditure is incurred.

(b) Services provided by the Province of New Brunswick

The Council uses an office for which rent is paid by the Province of New Brunswick. Therefore, no

rental charge has been included in the Council’s expenses.

2. Other activities — Disability Awareness Week

The Council acts as a co-ordinator for Disability Awareness Week (D.A.W.). The Council pays for
some costs incurred in holding this event on behalf of the provincial D.A.W. committee. These
funds are reimbursed to the Council from grants received by the provincial D.A.W. committee from
Human Resources Development Canada (H.R.D.C.). Should the committee not receive sufficient
funding from H.R.D.C. the Council is responsible for expenditures not reimbursed.
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" FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ProvinciaL HoLpings Ltp.
31 MARCH 2002
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

' N a\la by
Nouveat £& Brunswick
AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of
_ Provincial Holdings Ltd.

| have audited the balance sheet of Provincial Holdings Ltd. as at 31 March 2002 and the statements of
income and retained eamings and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit.

{ conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
.Company as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

KD Rob i e
K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
4 September 2002
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PROVINCIAL HOLDINGS LTD.
BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short-term investments $ 654,018 $ 1,609,501
Interest receivable 5,165 36,094
Prepaid 18,696 46,742
677,879 1,692,337
Industrial development projects (Notes 2(a) and 3)
Loans to client companies 5,697,266 6,733,666
Shares in dlient companies 2,941,045 2,205,000
8,638,311 8,938,666
Less: Provision for loss 2,813,284 2,454,248
: 5,825,027 6,484,418
Capital assets (Note 2(b))
Land and building, at cost 975,000 1,511,309
Less: Accumulated amortization 35,750 110,696
939,250 1,400,613
$7,442,156 $9,577,368
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 456 $ 47,752
Due to Regional Development Corporation - forgivable loan recovery - 831,116
Deferred revenue - grants to industry and municipalities - 134,327
456 1,013,195
Long-term debt
Due to Province of New Brunswick (Note 3) 8,446,572 8,683,409
Less: Provision for loss on industrial development projects (Note 2(a)) 1,613,285 1,101,570
" 6,833,287 7,581,839
Capital stock
Authorized: 500 common shares, par value of $10 each
Issued and fully paid: 500 shares 5,000 5,000
Retained eamings 603,413 977,334
608,413 982,334
$7,442,156 $9,577,368
Approved by the Board
Director
7 W
(" Director
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PROVINCIAL HOLDINGS LTD.-
'STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002
2002 2001.
REVENUE )
- Interest income - $ 106,704 $ 222594
Dividend income 149,676 -
Rental income - 137,081
Grants to industry and municipalities 134,327 501,423
Gain on sale of capital asset 29,056 -
419,763 861,098
" EXPENSE
Bad debts - 12,137
Amortization on building (Note 2(b)) -40,419 58,359
Miscellaneous 18,193 9,228
Property tax 14,493 63,784
Grants to industry and municipalities 708,065 501,423
Accounting and legal fees 12,514 -
793,684 644,931
NET INCOME (L.LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (373,921) 216,167
Retained eamings, beginning of year 977,334 2,261,167
Dividend paid to Minister - {1,500,000)
$ 603,413 $ 977,334

RETAINED EARNINGS, end of year
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PROVINCIAL HOLDINGS LTD.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 2002 2001 -
Operating activities:
Net income (loss) for the year $ (373,921) $ 216,167
Add (deduct) items not requiring, or generating cash
Capitalized interest on loans - (12,137)
Amortization 40,419 58,359
Bad debt expense - 12,137
Gain on sale of capital asset ( 29,056) -
(362,558) 274,526
Changes in non-cash working capital components* (953,764) 183,893
(1,316,322) 458,419
Investing activities:
Industrial development projects - recoveries
Loans 1,195,436 2,981,344
Shares 208,955 -
Industrial development projects - investments
Loans (386,716) ( 1,026,568)
Shares (945,000) -
Proceeds from land and building sale and purchase 450,000 -
_Investments transferred to the Province (Note 7) - (6,597,366)
522,675 (4,642,590)
Financing activities:
Advance from Province 895,000 1,500,784
Repayments to the Province (1,056,836) (2,910,852)
Dividend - ( 1.500,000)
Investments transferred to the Province (Note 7) - 6,597,366
' (161,836) 3,687,298
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (955,483) ( 496,873)
Cash position, beginning of year 1,609,501 2,106,374
CASH POSITION, end of year $ 654,018 $ 1,609,501

* Non-cash working capital components include interest receivable, prepaid, accounts payable,
due to Regional Development Corporation and deferred revenue - grants to industry and municipalities.
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PROVINCIAL HOLDINGS LTD. ..
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

1. Description of operations

Provincial Holdings Ltd. was established in 1973 under the Companies Act of the Province of New
Brunswick. The Company is wholly owned by the Province of New Brunswick and is responsible for
administering industrial development project investments. The administration of the Company'’s
affairs is carried out by employees of the Province of New Brunswick under the direction of the
Company's Board of Directors. All costs associated with these employees are paid by the
Province. : '

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Industrial development projects

The Company's investments in industrial development projects are carried at cost except where,
by agreement, interest on such projects is capitalized. In these cases the capitalized interest is
added to the cost of the investment.

To recognize potential losses relating to industrial development project investments, the Company
maintains a provision for loss against its investments. Pursuant to Treasury Board minute 74-57,
any losses arising on investments funded by advances from the Province of New Brunswick will be
borne by the Province through a corresponding reduction in the long term debt of the Company. As
a result of this undertaking by the Province, any losses recorded as an expense by the Company .
are offset by a recovery from the Province.

(b) Capital assets

Amortization on the building is being taken at 4% per annum on a declining balance basis.

3. Long-term debt

Pursuant to Treasury Board Minute 74-57, advances from the Province of New Brunswick are
interest free and are to be repaid from recoveries of amounts invested in industrial development

projects.

4, Outstanding commitments

At 31 March 2002, the Company had outstanding commitments in respect of investments in
industrial development projects and grants to industry of $310,000 (2001 - $2,269,781).
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PROVINCIAL HOLDINGS LTD.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

5. Related party transactions

The Company acts as an agent for the Province of New Brunswick for the Self Start Program.
Funds are advanced by the Province to cover any guaranteed loans called by the bank. Any
amounts paid by Provincial Holdings Ltd. under the terms of the Program reduce the advance from
the Province. During the 2001-2002 year, $101,407 (2001 - $58,995) was advanced to the
Company and $101,407 (2001 - $62,639) was paid out under the terms of the Program. There will
be no new clients under this program as of 31 March 2000. :

‘6. Contingent liabilities

The Company has guaranteed loans of certain companies under the Self Start Program. At
31 March 2002, the contingent liability in respect of these guarantees was $225,510
(2001 - $633,202). The Company has also guaranteed a loan to a client company. Under the
agreement, the amount guaranteed shall not exceed the lesser of $7,500,000 or 50% of the
balance of the loan. The contingent liability in respect of this guarantee was $4,630,502. (2001 -
$5,409,976) at 31 March 2002. In both cases, any resulting losses will be borne by the Province of
New Brunswick and will not be reflected as expenses of the Company.

7. Transfer of loans and investments

Loans, investments and interest receivable of approximately $6.6 million were transferred from
Provincial Holdings Ltd. to the Province of New Brunswick on 31 January 2001. The provision
associated with these loans totalled approximately $5.7 million. This transfer resulted in a decrease
in long term debt due to the Province at 31 March 2001.

8. Restatement of prior year’s figures

Certain 2001 figures have been restated to conform with current year presentation.
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

N al A *
Nouveatt ,-E-. Brunswick

AUDITOR’S REPORT

Lieutenant-Governor in Council
-and -

The Chairperson and Directors

Regional Development Corporation

Fredericton, New Brunswick

| have audited the balance sheet of the Regional Development Corporation as at 31 March 2002 and the
statement of revenue and expenditure for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Corporation's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Corporation as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
19 July 2002
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REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEET ’
31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $ 813913 $ (1,169,618)
Accounts receivable
Canada - Regional Economic Development Agreement 3,686,978 2,047,717
- Other agreements 2,933,610 2,678,905
Province of New Brunswick - operating and capital funds 2,894,650 3,644,518
Other 41,198 367,511
10,370,349 7,569,033
Other assets
Advance to Fundy Trail Endowment Fund - In Trust (Note 2) 3,400,000 3,200,000
$13,770,349 $ 10,769,033
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Government of Canada $ 20,292 $ -
Province of New Brunswick - claims on Canada 6,605,084 4,717,841
Other 3,744,973 2,851,192
10,370,349 7,569,033
Due to Province of New Brunswick
Fundy Trail Endowment Fund - in Trust (Note 2) 3,400,000 3,200,000
$ 13,770,349 $ 10,769,033

Chairperson

Director
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REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
REVENUE
Federal contribution (Schedule 1) $ 7,757,311 $ 11,674,621
Provincial contribution (Schedule 2) 42,491,084 22,560,879
50,248,395 34,235,500
EXPENDITURE
Agreements and Programs
Regional Economic Development Agreement 8,424,708 14,849,285
Acadian Peninsula Economic Development Fund 6,019,900 4,002,060
Total Development Fund 4,950,787 -
Youth Community Assistance Program 2,331,528 1,874,705
Aflantic Canada Tourism Partnership 927,603 712,753
International Business Development Agreement 304,878 15,132
Aboriginal Economic Development Program 31,221 47,508
Youth Futures Agreement - 1,695,758
22,990,625 23,197,201
‘Other Activities '
Grants to RDC - SOA (Note 1) 12,286,450 1,331,720
Official Languages and Intergovernmental Cooperation 2,444,499 2,867,560
Centres scolaires communautaires 1,680,669 1,680,669
Special Projects 2,439,784 930,085
Other [nitiatives (Schedule 3) 6,160,207 2,014,930
Operations 2,152,636 1,977,078
Government Grants Program 93,525 92,837
Regional Planning - 143,420
27,257,770 11,038,299
50,248,395 34,235,500
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURE S - $ -
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REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
Schedule 1 - Revenue - Federal contribution
Regional Economic Development Agreement $ 6,217,121 $ 9,319,886
Other Activities
Official Languages and Intergovemmental Cooperation 1,097,483 1,679,305
Centres scolaires communautaires 282,500 282,500
Fisheries Research and Training Initiative - 129,295
Tobacco Sales Enforcement 125,000 117,457
Cultural Strategy Program 35,207 146,178
1,540,190 . 2,354,735
$ 7,757,311 $ 11,674,621
Schedule 2 - Revenue - Provincial contribution
Agreements and Programs
Regional Economic Development Agreement $ 2,207,587 $ 5,529,399
Acadian Peninsula Economic Development Fund 6,019,900 4,002,060
Total Development Fund 4,950,787 -
Youth Community Assistance Program 2,331,528 1,874,705
Atlantic Canada Tourism Partnership 927,603 712,753
Intemational Business Development Agreement 304,878 15,132
Aboriginal Economic Development Program 31,221 47,508
Youth Futures Agreement - 1,695,758
16,773,504 13,877,315
Other Activities
Grant to RDC - SOA (Note 1) 12,286,450 1,331,720
Official Languages and Intergovernmental Cooperation 1,347,016 1,188,255
Centres scolaires communautaires 1,398,169 1,398,169
Special Projects 2,439,784 930,085
Other Initiatives 6,000,000 1,622,000
Operations 2,152,636 1,977,078
Government Grants Program 93,525 92,837
Regional Planning - 143,420
25,717,580 8,683,564
$42,491,084 $ 22,560,879
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REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

2002 2001
Schedule 3 - Expenditure - Other Initiatives

Greater Moncton Airport Authority $ 3,200,000 $ -
Atlantic Baptist University 2,800,000 -
Tobacco Sales Enforcement 125,000 117,457
Cultural Strategy Program 35,207 146,178
Centre of Excellence - Université de Moncton - 1,350,000
Beaverbrook Auditorium - 300,000
Fisheries Research and Training Initiative - 129,295
Eel River Bar Access Ramp - { 28,000)

$ 6,160,207 $ 2,014,930
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REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

1. General comments on operations

The Regional Development Corporation is a provincial Crown agency incorporated by an Act of the
New Brunswick Legislature. The Corporation has administrative responsibility for all provincially
delivered programs under the Regional Economic Development Agreement. The Corporation is also
responsible for a number of other projects assigned to it by the Province.

Federal contributions are in some instances paid directly to project recipients. Such payments are
not recorded in the revenues and expenditures of the Corporation.

The Regional Development Corporation established a Special Operating Agency (SOA) effective
31 March 1994. Amounts provided to the Corporation by the Province, which were subsequently
transferred to the SOA, are shown in the Corporation’s statement of revenue and expenditure.
Amounts provided by other agencies or departments of government to the SOA are included in the
financial statement of the SOA but are not included in these financial statements.

2. Fundy Trail Endowment Fund

The Province of New Brunswick and the Government of Canada have agreed to the establishment
of this fund. The sole purpose of the fund is to assist in the construction of a scenic roadway from

St. Martins, N.B. to Alma, N.B.

The Province of New Brunswick has advanced $5 million to this fund. This $5 million was advanced
through the Regional Development Corporation. At a future date all or part of this $5 million may be
returned to the Regional Development Corporation. This date is to be no later than 31 March 2010.

Loans such as these, that are significantly concessionary because they earn a low rate of return, are
originally recorded as assets at the net present value of the expected future cash flows. The net
present value is calculated at each year end using the Province’s borrowing rate at the time the loan

was issued.

3. Commitments

Under the Regional Economic Development Agreement, the provincial government has committed
funds subsequent to 31 March 2002 totalling approximately $15.0 million.

Such commitments are made subject to funds being approved by the Legislature of New Brunswick.
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REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2002

4. Contingent liabilities

Contributions received from the federal government under federal/provincial cost sharing
agreements are subject to adjustment following audits by federal authorities. Adjustments as a
result of federal audits will be reflected in the financial statements of the Corporation in the period of

settiement.

The Corporation has guaranteed loans of certain organizations. At 31 March 2002 the contingent
liability in respect of these guarantees was $3,388,500 (31 March 2001 - $4,020,000). Any resulting

tosses will be borne by the Corporation.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REeGIioNAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

SpeCIAL OPERATING AGENCY
31 MARCH 2002
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

N )
Nouveat :-Q'i Brunswick

AUDITOR'S REPORT

Lieutenant Governor in Council

] -and -

The Chairperson and Directors
Regional Development Corporation
Fredericton, New Brunswick

| have audited the balance sheet of the Regional Development Corporation - Special Operating Agency
as at 31 March 2002 and the statement of revenue and expenditure for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

in my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Regional Development Corporation - Special Operating Agency as at 31 March 2002 and the results
of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting

principles.

KD Kpbeboue

K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
16 September 2002
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REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
SPECIAL OPERATING AGENCY

BALANCE SHEET

31 MARCH 2002

ASSETS 2002 2001
- Current assets
Accounts receivable -
Canada - Infrastructure Agreement $ 1,527,371 $ 53945
Province of New Brunswick - Operating and capital funds 8,302,406 3,811,901

$ 9,829,777 $ 3,865,846

Equity $9,829,777 $ 3,865,846

Chairperson

Director
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REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
SPECIAL OPERATING AGENCY
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002
2002 2001
REVENUE
Federal contribution
- Infrastructure Agreement $ 2,647,454 $ 53,945
- Vegetation Management of Roadside Right-of-Way - - 1,354,360
’ 2,647,454 1,408,305
Provincial contribution
- Infrastructure Agreement 9,529,000 2,001,000
- Canada Winter Games 2003 1,557,450 -
- Community Economic Development Agencies 1,200,000 -
- Special tourism initiatives - 2,330,720
- Vegetation Management of Roadside Right of Way - 1,221,332
- Planning Initiatives - 75,000
12,286,450 5,628,052
14,933,904 7,036,357
EXPENDITURE
infrastructure Agreement 5,302,088 107,890
Special Tourism Initiatives 1,430,007 647,850
Canada Winter Games 2003 1,084,150 -
Community Economic Development Agencies 904,079 -
Restigouche/Chaleur initiative 103,881 -
Planning Initiatives 75,768 12,960
Metz Farms Initiatives 70,000 -
Vegetation Management of Roadside Right-of-Way - 2,401,811
Village Historique Acadien - 223,585
8,969,973 3,394,096
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURE 5,963,931 3,642,261
Equity, beginning of year 3,865,846 2,361,261
Equity Adjustment (Note 1) - (2,137,676)
EQUITY, end of year $ 9,829,777 $ 3,865,846
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REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
SPECIAL OPERATING AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2002

General comments on operations

The Regional Development Corporation Special Operating Agency (SOA) was established effective
41 March 1994. The SOA was formed initially for the purpose of providing financial management for
the Canada - New Brunswick Infrastructure Agreement. The Agency is now also responsible for a
number of other projects assigned to it by the Province.

The equity balance for the SOA represents amounts funded by the Province for future expenditures
by the SOA. In 2001, $2,137,676 in funds were returned to the Province as the projects they were
intended for were discontinued.

Contingent liabilities - federal contribution

Contributions received from the federal government under federal/provincial cost sharing
agreements are subject to adjustment following audits by federal authorities. Adjustments as a
result of federal audits will be reflected in the financial statements of the Agency in the period of
settlement.
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Service New Brunswick

MANAGEMENT REPORT

The preparation of financial information is an integral part of management's responsibilities,
and the accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the
Corporation.

The Corporation maintains an accounting system and related controls to provide

management and the Board with reasonable assurance that transactions are executed and
recorded as authorized, that assets are properly safeguarded and accounted for, and that
financial records are reliable for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

It is the responsibility of the Board to oversee management's performance of its financial
reporting responsibiliies and to review and approve the financial statements. Upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, these financial statements are approved by the
Board of the Corporation. '

e fe— (r—

Robert W.b‘a/mble, CMA, FCMA Carol Macdonald, CA
President Vice President Finance and Administration

Fredericton, N B Canada
May 24, 2002

Management Report
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Service New Brunswick

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of the Board:

We have audited the balance sheet of Service New Brunswick as at March 31, 2002 and
the statements of income and changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in
Canada. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation as at March 31, 2002 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in Canada.

St + MLL?

Saint John, N B Canada Chartered Accountants
May 24, 2002

Auditdrs’ Report
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Service New Brunswick

ASSETS

BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31, 2002

2001/02

2000/01

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

$ 7,957,928

$ 7,776,658

Accounts receivable {Note 3} 3,754,978 1,672,128
Prepaid expenses 827,148 217,936
12,540,054 9,666,722

LONG TERM ASSETS
Accounts receivable (Note 3) - 440,570
Equipment (Note 4) 4,505,901 4,786,678
-System development (Note 4) 14,973,988 11,850,709
19,479,889 17,077,957
$32,019,943 $26,744,679

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 5) $ 8,082,400 $ 5,892,165
Deferred revenue 46,178 93,382
Land Titles Assurance (Note 6) 335,950 21,015
8,464,528 6,006,562
EQUITY 23,555,415 20,738,117
$32,019,943 $26,744,679

Commitments Note 11
See accompanying notes

f-§1<4%4,{[5[ L)aa/

Georgettéy Roy Q/
Chairman

RoG’e?t W. Gamble

President
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Service New Brunswick

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended March 31, 2002

2001/02 2000/01

REVENUES
Provincial services (Note 7) $ 26,027,539 $ 27,260,864
Municipal services 6,204,104 5,940,092
Registry fees (Note 7) 12,184,113 7,203,846
Products and services 1,840,540 1,469,055
Government project assistance (Note 8) 1,200,000 149,237
Interest 563,903 742,196
CGl(Note 9) 250,000 -
Recoverable salaries 110,890 102,372
‘Software sales 73,151 17,860

48,454,240 42,885,522
EXPENSES
Personnel services $ 27,031,052 $ 23,959,205
Communications and computer services 4,293,581 3,679,632
Space and equipment services 3,992,566 3,669,082
Amortization 3,627,051 3,657,539
Professional services 3,308,676 1,837,509
Travel and meetings 1,103,228 921,654
Materials and supplies 880,528 801,809
Furniture and equipment 803,470 805,877
Other 596,790 604,017

45,636,942 39.836,324
NET INCOME $ 2,817,298 $ 3,049,198
OPENING EQUITY 20,738,117 17,688,919
ENDING EQUITY $23,555,415 $20,738,117

See accompanying notes
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Service New Brunswick

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31, 2002

2001/02 2000/01
Cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in):
Operations:
Net income $ 2,817,298 $ 3,049,198
{tems not involving cash:
Amortization : 3,627,051 3,657,539
"Change in non-cash working capita (549,031) (207,158)
5,895,318 6,499,579
" Financing:
Increase in Land Titles Assurance 314,935 -
Decrease in fong term accounts receivable 440,570 298,107
755,505 298,107
Investments:
Additions to equipment (1,562,204) (1,275,644)
Additions to system development (4,907,349) (3,979,206)
(6,469,553) (5,254,850)
Increase in cash 181,270 1,542,836
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 7,776,658 6,233,822
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $7,957,928 $ 7,776,658

See accompanying notes
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Service New Brunswick

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2002

1.  SERVICE NEW BRUNSWICK

Service New Brunswick is a Crown Corporation established under the Service New Brunswick
Act. Its mission is:

_e making government services more accessible; and

e being stewards for authoritative information.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General
The Corporation follows Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and short term, highly liquid financial
instruments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to

an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments
The carrying values of the Corporation’s financial instruments approximate fair market values
because of their short-term maturity and normal credit terms.

Long-term assets
lnvestments in information systems and databases and in physical assets having a value of
$2,000 or greater are capitalized and written off to income in accordance with the

amortization policy.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis as earned with an offset, in the case of Corporate
Registry annual filing, for fees from businesses likely 1o be inactive. Amounts deemed
receivable but uncollected are recognized as bad debt expense.

Pension expense
Service New Brunswick employees are part of a multi-employer plan. Although the plan is a
defined benefit plan, only current year contributions are expensed.
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Service New Brunswick

Amortization
Amortization is computed on a straight-line basis on original cost with rates as follows:

Databases and system development 10 years
Furniture and equipment 10 years
Leasehold improvements duration of lease up to 10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Computers and software 4 years

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Year Ended
Year Ended 2002 2001
Allow for
Accounts Doubtful
Receivable Accounts Net Net
Current
Province of NB $1,394,161 $ 23,3568 $1,370,803 $ 284,804
HST rebate 886,872 - 886,872 420,086
Software sales 379,355 - 379,355 288,818
Corporate registry 369,710 33,110 336,600 -
Trade 267,471 7,067 260,404 463,531
CGl 250,000 - 250,000 -
Employee PC loans 152,568 - 152,568 128,144
Interest receivable 118,376 - 118,376 86,745
$3.818,613 $ 63,535 $3,754,978 $ 1,672,128
Long Term
Software sales - - - $ 440,570
- - - $ 440,570

The Corporation’s trade accounts receivable do not represent significant concentration of
credit risk because the accounts are owed by a large number of organizations on normal credit
terms. Most other receivables are deemed collectable because of the nature of the debtor or
the transactions.
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Service New Brunswick

CAPITAL ASSETS
Year Ended 2002
Accumulated

Equipment Cost Amortization Net
Computers and software $ 7,541,149 $ 4,881,804 $ 2,659,345
Fumiture and equipment 1,848,056 994,199 853,857
Leasehold improvements 1,833,247 846,756 986,491
Vehicles 18,604 12,396 6,208

$11,241,056 $ 6,735,155 $ 4,505,901

System development

Applications $19,063,504 $ 6,361,382 $ 12,702,122
Databases 1,018,040 971,334 46,706
Work in process 2,225,160 - 2,225,160
$22,306,704 $ 7,332,716 $ 14,973,988
Year Ended 2001
Accumulated
Equipment Cost Amortization Net
Computers and software $ 6,452,905 $ 3,396,201 $ 3,056,704
Furniture and equipment 1,690,916 837,731 853,185
Leasehold improvements 1,516,427 649,567 866,860
Vehicles 18,604 8,675 9,929
$ 9,678,852 $ 4,892,174 $ 4,786,678
System development
Applications $14,137,322 $ 4,655,530 $ 9,481,792
Databases 1,018,040 893,116 124,924
Work in process 2,243,993 - 2,243,993
$17,399,355 $ 5,548,646 $ 11,850,709
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Year Ended Year Ended
2002 2001
Trade payables $ 4,961,118 $ 3,180,799
Salary and benefit accruals 1,762,349 1,371,054
Payroll deductions payable 887,743 348,436
Province of New Brunswick payables 471,190 991,876
$ 8,082,400 $ 5,892,165
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Service New Brunswick

6. LAND TITLES ASSURANCE

Under the Land Titles Act, the Province guarantees title to real property registered under Land
Tites. The Corporation has established a fund, based on actuarial estimate, to provide for
potential claims respecting indemnification pursuant to the Land Titles Act.

7. REGISTRY FEES

Commencing with the year ended March 31, 2002, the Province of New Brunswick assigned
revenue from Corporate Registrations to the Corporation in exchange for a reduction in
provincial funding of $2,850,000. Revenues for Corporate Registrations for the year ended
March 31, 2002 were $3,386,287. This amount includes an accrual for unpaid  fees of
$369,710.

8. GOVERNMENT PROJECT ASSISTANCE

In the year ended March 31, 2002, the Corporation received funding from the Regional
Development Corporation and the Canada Customs and Revenue Agency towards the
development of the Business Registry System. In the year ended March 31, 2001, the
Corporation received funding from the Official Languages Program towards the implementation
of the Corporation’s bilingual on-ine services and from Service Canada for the co-
establishment of two federal access sites. Both related revenue and expenses are included in
these statements.

Year Ended Year Ended
2002 2001
Regional Development Corporation $ 1,000,000 $ -
Canada Customs and Revenue Agency 200,000 -
Official Languages Program - 80,000

69,237

Service Canada -
$ 1,200,000 $ 149,237

9. CGi AGREEMENT

CGl, an information technology services firm, and Service New Brunswick signed a seven-year
agreement in 2001. Under the terms of the agreement, CGl provides $3.5 million to the
Corporation in exchange for considerations that enable CGl! to establish credibility as experts
in the provision of e-government services. Up to $700,000 will be contributed to the
Corporation for any year. The considerations provided by Service New Brunswick include the
use of CGI resources for project management and technical architecture, presentations of
Service New Brunswick systems to potential clients, and exclusive access to CGl! to market
g-commerce software developed for Service New Brunswick. Service New Brunswick earned
$250,000 under this agreement for the year ended March 31, 2002.
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Service New Brunswick

10. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

a)  Regular employees of Service New Brunswick are covered by the Public Service
Superannuation Plan of the Province of New Brunswick. The Superannuation Plan is a
defined benefit multi-employer plan under which contributions are made by both Service
New Brunswick and the employees. For the year ended March 31, 2002, the
Corporation expensed contributions of $1,496,986 under the terms of the plan. Service
New Brunswick has no direct liability or entittement to any unfunded liability or surplus
in the plan related to its current or former employees.

b)  Regular employees of Service New Brunswick are entitled to a paid retirement allowance
prior to their retirement based upon years of service. Over the service life of its
employees, the Corporation accrues the estimated future liability based upon actuarial
estimate and assumptions. The accrued liability is reduced by actual payments made.
The significant assumptions used in determining the accrued liability are 0.89% of
payroll costs to provide for the current service cost and 7.55% of the accrued liability to
provide for interest costs. A continuity schedule of the benefit obligation, which is
included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, is set out below.

Year Ended Year Ended
. 2002 2001
Retirement allowance obligation, beginning of year $ 181,878 $ 29,964
Current period service cost 198,945 169,110
Interest cost 15,020 12,768
Retirement allowances paid (189,503} (29,964)
Retirement allowance obligation, end of year $ 206,340 '$ 181,878

c) Service New Brunswick incurred a liability related to an early retirement incentive offered
to employees, including those of the Corporation, by the Province of New Brunswick in
1995/96. Pursuant to an agreement with the Province, the amount of the obligation and
expense recorded was equal to the amount of the employer contributions that the
Corporation would have otherwise funded to the Public Service Superannuation Plan.
The Corporation annually reduces the recorded obligation by the amount it remits to the
Province. A continuity schedule of the benefit obligation, which is included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, is set out below.

Year Ended Year Ended
2002 2001
Early retirement obligation, beginning of year $ 493,114 $ 552,276
Paid to Province of New Brunswick {59,356) (569,162}

Early retirement obligation, end of year $ 433,758 $ 493,114
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Service New Brunswick

11. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The following are future minimum payments for leased premises and equipment for the years
ended:

2003 $ 3,202,631
2004 2,832,873
2005 2,693,982
2006 2,121,835
2007 1,410,613
Thereafter 3,852,123
$ 16,114,057

12. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain 2000/01 comparative figures have been restated to conform to minor reclassifications
in the financial statement presentation adopted for the year ended March 31, 2002.
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STRAIT CROSSING FINANCE INC.

Year ended October 30, 2001
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

We have audited the statement of financial position of Strait Crossing Finance Inc. as at October 30,
2001 and the statement of earnings and retained earnings for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financiat statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairy, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as at October 30, 2001 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

KPm(ru,p

Chartered Accountants

Fredericton, NB, Canada
December 17, 2001
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STRAIT CROSSING FINANCE INC.

Statement of Financial Position

October 30, 2001, with comparative figures for 2000

2001 2000
Assets
Current assets:
Cash 1 1
Accounts receivable 1,450 1,079
1,451 1,080
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,450 1,079
Shareholders' equity:
Share capital:
Authorized:
Unlimited common shares without par value
Issued and outstanding: ‘
1 Share 1 1
1,451 1,080

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Ofﬁhjf the Boag:
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Statement of Earnings and Retained Earnings
Year ended October 30, 2001, with comparative figures for 2000
2001 2000
Revenue:
Financial maintenance fee (note 2(d)) $ 17141 16,159
Expenses:
Trustee fees 15,090 14,098
Professional services 1,811 1,811
Filing fees 240 250
17,141 16,159

Net earnings, bei'ng retained earnings, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STRAIT CROSSING FINANCE INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended October 30, 2001

1.

Incorporation:

Strait Crossing Finance Inc. (SC Finance or the Company) was incorporated under the Canada
Business Corporations Act as a special purpose corporation. lts sole business is restricted to the
issuance and sale of Indexed Fully Amortizing Bonds due April 1, 2032, the lending of money to
and making payments to Strait Crossing Development Inc. (SC Development) and matters related
thereto.

The outstanding share of SC Finance is owned by Her Majesty the Queen in Right of New
Brunswick. No shareholder is entitled to transfer any shares of SC Finance. SC Finance is
exempt from taxes otherwise payable under the provisions of section 149(1)(d) of the Income Tax
Act (Canada).

Transactions and agreements:

(a) Issue of Bonds:

On October 7, 1993, SC Finance issued Indexed Fully Amortizing Bonds (the "Bonds") in the
principal amount of $661,542,612 maturing on April 1, 2032. The Bonds will bear interest at
an annual real rate, compounded annually, equivalent to 4.50% compounded semi-annually.
Irrespective of any decline in the level of the consumer price index over any period after May
27, 1992, the aggregate payment to be made on the Bonds on May 31, 1997 will not be less
than $35,012,328 and on April 1, 1998 will equal at least $41,900,000. On any subsequent
‘Payment Date, the aggregate payment to be made on the Bonds will be not less than the
highest payment made on any previous Payment Date, except for the payment made on
April1, 2032. No interest payments are required on the Bonds until May 31, 1997.
Commencing May 31, 1997 and thereafter on April 1st of each year, 36 annual payments are
due on account of principal and interest, such that all interest and principal will be fully repaid
as of April 1, 2032.

(b) Subsidy Agreement and Assignment:

Also on October 7, 1993, SC Finance entered into a Subsidy Agreement with the Government
of Canada whereby Canada agreed to make payments to SC Finance which correspond in
timing and amount with the payments required on the Bonds, as described above. On the
same date, SC Finance irrevocably assigned its rights to receive payments under the Subsidy
Agreement to the Bond Trustee. The recourse of the Bondholders is limited to the Bond
Trustee's right to receive payments under the Subsidy Agreement. Since an obligation of the
Government of Canada has been irrevocably assigned to a trust, solely to satisfy the
scheduled interest and principal repayment requirements of the Bonds, the Bonds are
considered extinguished for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, the Bonds payable and
the amounts receivable under the Subsidy Agreement have been removed from the
Company's statement of financial position.
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STRAIT CROSSING FINANCE INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended October 30, 2001

2. Transactions and agreements (continued):

(c) Developer Loan Agreement:

The proceeds from the issuance of Bonds were loaned by SC Finance to SC Development
pursuant to a Developer Loan Agreement (the "Agreement”) dated October 7, 1993. The
Promissory Note from SC Development is unsecured and bears interest at a rate equivalent
to that owing on the Bonds. The Promissory Note cannot be assigned or transferred by SC
Finance without the consent of SC Development. The repayment terms of the Promissory
-Note are matched exactly with the payments required on the Bonds.

Under the terms of the Agreement, when the Bond Trustee receives a payment from the
Government of Canada under the Subsidy Agreement, SC Finance must, on the same day,
make a Contribution in the same amount to SC Development provided that SC Finance has
received the required payment from SC Development under the Promissory Note.

Since the Promissory Note from SC Development is exactly matched by SC Finance's
obligation to make Contributions to SC Development, and SC Finance and SC Development
intend to settle these assets and liabilities simultaneously, the Promissory Note from SC
Development and the Contributions due to SC Development have been removed from the
Company's statement of financial position.

(d) Financial Maintenance Fee:

Under the Developer Loan Agreement, SC Finance is entitied to receive a Financial
Maintenance Fee from SC Development to compensate SC Finance for on-going financial
services. The Financial Maintenance Fee is to be equal to the costs SC Finance incurs with
respect to the maintenance of records, including the fees and expenses of the Bond Trustee,
less any other net revenues received. '
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WORKPLACE HEALTH, SAFETY AND COMPENSATION COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK

" BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2001
2001 2000
(000s) (000s)
ASSETS
Receivables (Note 3) $ 9290 § 11542
Recoverable benefits liabilities 85,542 80,176
Investments (Note 4) 569,297 559,426
Capital assets (Note 5) 9,160 9,483
Othcr assets 457 418
$ 673,746 $ 661,045
Liasirmies AND FUND BALANCE
Payables and accruals (Note 6) $ 10,078 $ 9,045
Benefiss liabilides (Notes 7 and 8) 670,241 622,899
Total liabilities 680,319 631,944
Fund balance 6,573) 29,101
$ 673,746 $ 661,045
On behalf of the Board:

Robert Davidson

Finandial Services Fvaluation Committee, Board of Directors

it

N. Fraser MacLeod

Finandal Services Fvaluation Committee, Board of Directors

A gt

7
Raymond Campbell

, Chairperson, Board of Directors

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honourable Minister of Training and
Employment Development of the Province of
New Brunswick

We have audited the balance sheet of the Workplace
Health, Safety and Compensation Commission of

New Brunswick as at December 31, 2001 and the
statements of operations and fund balance and cash flows
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Commission’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on  test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statcement
presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present faitly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the
Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation
Commission of New Brunswick as at December 31, 2001
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles.

Saint John, New Brunswick
March 5, 2002

émd /Iﬁ,/wm}m ue

Chartered Accountants
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WORKPLACE HEALTH, SAFETY AND COMPENSATION COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND FUND BALANCE

For the Year ended December 31, 2001

OPERATIONS
2001 2000
(000s) (000s)
Budger Actual Actual
INCOME
Assessments (Note 9) $ 95425 $ 89,762 $ 95950
Self-insured employers (Note 10) - 20721 32,772 28279
Investments (Note 4) 43,500 35,351 53,406
Province of New Brunswick 900 900 - 900
160,546 158,785 178,535
EXPENSES -
. Claims costs incurred (Note 7)
Short-term disability and rehabilication 40,755 44210 42,126
Long-term disability 44,150 64,951 67,962
Survivor benefits 10,436 8,390 11,599
Health care 36,369 49,754 42,625
131,710 167,305 164,312
Administradion
Operations (Note 11) 19,117 18,910 18,252
Occupational health and safety (Note 11) 6,477 6,341 6,317
Appmls Tribunal 1,288 1,175 1,120
Legjslative obligations (Note 12) 550 556 547
Risk Management Services — rebates 300 172 421
27,732 27,154 26,657
“Total expenses 159,442 194459 190,969
Excess of (expenses) over income before unusual item 1,104 (35,674) (12,434)
Unusual item:
Effect of legislative change (Note 7 ii) - - (7,500
Excess of (expenses) over income for the year $ 1,104 $ (35,674) $ (19,934
FUND BALANCE
Fund balance, beginning of year $ 29101 $ 49,035
Excess of (expenses) over income for the year (35,674 (19,934
$ (6573) $ 29,101

Fund balance, end of year
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WORKPLACE HEALTH, SAFETY AND COMPENSATION COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK

STATEMENT OF CAsH FLOWS
Year ended December 31, 2001

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from:
Assessed employers
Self-insured employers

Investments
Province of New Brunswick

Cash paid to:

Injured workers or third parties on their behalf

Suppliers and employees, for administration and other services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid for:
_ Purchase of capital assets
Net increase in investments
Investments, beginning of year

In_yesmlents, end of year

2001 2000
(000s) (000s)

$ 92,295 $ 95,093
22,366 16,850
35,238 54,537
2,440 900
152,339 1 67,380
115,803 94,577
24,770 21,742
140,573 116,319
11,766 51,061
1,895 2,124

9,871 48,937
559,426 510,489

$ 569,297 $ 559426
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WORKPLACE HEALTH, SAFETY AND COMPENSATION COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2001

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation Commission (“the Commission”) was established by the New Brunswick Legjslature effective

January 1, 1995, under the Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation Commission Act. The Commission is responsible for the administration of the
Woarkers' Compensation Ac, the Occupational Health and Safety Act, and the Special Payment to Certain Dependent Spouses of Deceased Workers Act; and, in
accordance with the provisions of these acts, for promoting accident prevention; administering the payment of benefits to injured workers and surviving
spouses; levying and collecting assessments from employers sufficient to fund the current and future costs of existing claims; and promoting occupational
health and safety. :

"The Province of New Brunswick has committed to the funding of a grant to the Commission in support of occupational health and safety.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRACTICES
Unbilled assessmeats
A portion of assessment income for the year is not billed or received until after year end. Part of the amount receivable is an estimate based on an analysis

of payroll data of assessed employers and on other information. The remainder is determined based on amounts billed and received subsequent to year
end. Any difference between unbilled assessments and the actual assessments received is credited or charged to income in the following year.

Recoverable benefits liabilities and self-insured employers

These financial statements indude the effects of transactions carried out for self-insured employers (Federal and certain Provincial Government
institutions) who bear the direct cost of their incurred claims and an appropriate share of administration costs.

The benefits iabilities recorded in these financial statements include obligations to injured workers of self-insured employers, excluding those injured
workers and dependents receiving benefits under the Government Employees Compensation Act or the Silicosis Compensation Act. These obligations
represent the actuarial present value of all expected future benefits payments on behalf of self-insured employers, for claims which occurred in the current
fiscal year, or in any prior year. As these liabilities will be borne by the self-insured employers when paid, an offserting recovery equal the benefics
liabilities is reported on the balance sheet as recoverable benefis liabilities. Self-insured employers who are Crown Corporations are requited to provide
the Commission with an irevocable letter of credit, or a guarantee from the Province of New Brunswick as security:

The benefics liabilities recorded in these financial statements also include estimated obligations under the Special Payment to Certain Dependent Spouses of
Deceased Workers Act. A portion of payments to eligible spouses of deceased workers was recovered from the Province of New Brunswick in 2001, and
accordingly; an offsetting amount was reported on the December 31, 2001 balance sheet as part of recoverable benefits liabilities.

Investments
a) Fixed-term investments
Fixed-term investments are carried at amortized cost. Gains and losses realized on disposal of fixed-term investments are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the average period to maturity of approximately nine years. :
b) Equities
Equity investments and option contracts are stated at moving average market value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses occurring during the year are
deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over a five-year period.
¢) Fair values
Fair values of investments are determined as follows:
» Fixed-term investments and equities are valued at year-end quoted prices.
« Short-term notes, treasury bills and term deposits maturing within a year are stated at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.
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WORKPLACE HEALTH, SAFETY AND COMPENSATION COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" December 31, 2001

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRACTICES (CONTINUED)

d) Forcign currencies
Equity investments denominated in foreign currencies are transtated into Canadian dollars at exchange rates prevailing at the end of the year. Income
from equities is translated at the rate in effect at the time the income is received.

Exchange gains or losses resulting from the translation of foreign currency denominated equity balances are amortized into investment income in the
same manner as other equity gains or losses.

€) Derivative finandial instruments

Derivative financial intruments are finandial contracts whose price is dependent on the price of one or more underlying securities, reference rates or
indices. At December 31, 2001, the Commission owned units in a pooled fund, which uses unlevered U.S. equity index futures contracts (a type of
detivative financial instrument) to approximate the return of the S&P 500, 2 U.S. equity index. The Commission's investment in this fund is treated as
an equity investment.

Capital assets

Capital assets arc reported at cost and arc depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The rates used are as follows:

Buildings 25 or 40 years

Furniture and equipment S years

Computer software and hardware 3 years

Motor vehicles 3 years, 35% residual value
Post-employment benefits

Payables and accruals include an amount for post-employment benefits based upon a December 31, 2001 extrapolation of 2 1999 actuarial valuation
conducted by the Comimission’s independent consulting actuary.

Benefits liabilities

Benefits liabilities represent the actuarial present value of all future benefits payments expected to be made for claims which occurred in the current fiscal
year or in any prior year. The benefits liabilities include provision for all bencfits provided by current legislation, policies and administrative practices in
tespect of existing claims. Benefits liabilities also include the estimated liability for latent occupational disease and a provision for furure administration
costs of existing claims. Due to the nature of the estimated liability for latent occupational disease and the extent of related historical claims information
available, this liability is more uncertain by its nature than other benefits liabilities. As information is accumulated and analyzed, adjustments may be
necessary to improve precision.

It is the Commission’s practice to have an independent consulting actuary complete a valuation of the benefits liabilities of the Commission every two
yeass. Such a valuation was performed as at December 31, 2000. In interim years, the Commission's internal acruary completes an estimate of the
benefits liabilities. This estimate is reviewed with the Commission's consulting actuary, but not at the same level of detail as when a full independent
valuation is performed. Actual future costs could vary from those amounts presented in the financial statements.

Funding policy

The Commission’s funding policy permits a range for its funded ratio of asscts to liabilities between 100% and 110% and specifies a funding goal of
105%. This permitted excess of assets over liabilities reduces the impact of year-to-year fluctuations, disasters and other unanticipated events, therefore
providing rate stabilization. The assessment revenue raised in any year from assessed employers may include or be reduced by an amount designed to allow
the Commission to attain a funded ratio considered financially advisable. The funded ratio at December 31, 2001 is 99.0% (2000 — 104.6%). Under the
Warkers' Compensation Act, a minimum funding level of 100% is required with any shorefall to be recovered over a period of 5 years.

Workess' Rehabilitation Centre
Included in health care payments is $7.3 million (2000 — $5.8 million) for services provided by the Workers’ Rehabilitation Centre, 2 department of the

Commission.
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WORKPLACE HEALTH, SAFETY AND COMPENSATION COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001
3. RECEIVABLES
2001 2000
Assessmens billed $ 1,869 $ 255
Unbilled assessments 6,004 6,626
Self-insured employers — receivable 1,847 2514
Self-insured employers — deposits (1,654) (1.674)
Other ‘ 1,224 1,521
$ 9,290 $ 11542

4. INVESTMENTS

The Commission has an established policy for the management of its investments. As part of its investment process, it utilizes external investment
portolio managers. The compliance of these portfolio managers with the investment policy is monitored on a regular basis.

2001 2000
(000s) {000s)
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
i) Portfolio investments
Money market $ 7621 $ 7,621 $ 16,558 $ 16558
Fixed-term investments 210,994 220,314 215,526 219,962
Equitics
Canadian 97,849 95,306 91,703 96,846
uUSs. 184,322 187,908 183,060 194,921
Non-North American 99,574 93,822 105,909 107,525
Total equities 381,745 377,036 380,672 399,292
600,360 604,971 612,756 635,812
Deferred realized investment gains (31,063) - (53.330) -
'$ 569297 $ 604,971 $ 559426 $ 635812
2001 2000
(000s) (000s)
ii) Deferred realized investment gains ) )
Balance, beginning of year $ 53330 $ 42,362
Realized net investment gains for the year 5,197 46,928
58,527 89,290
Amortization to investment income (27/464) (35,960)

Balance, end of year $ 31,063 $ 53330




246 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME 3 2002

WORKPLACE HEALTH, SAFETY AND COMPENSATION COMMISSION OF NEW BRUNSWICK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001
4. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
2001 2000
iit) Investment income
Interest and dividends $ 18,900 $ 22,805
Amortization of deferred realized investment gains 27,464 35,960
Amortization of deferred unrealized investment gains (7,994) {2,021)
38,370 56,744
Less: Portfolio management expenses (3,019) (3,338)
$ 35351 $ 53,406
iv) Investment agreement

The Comnission has entered into an investment agreement for the combined management of its investments and those of the Workers' Compensation
Board of Prince Edward Island. These financial statements report the Commission's proportional share of the investments held in the fund which was
91.28% at December 31, 2001 (2000 — 91.04%). The Commission receives a fee for the administration of the Workers' Compensation Board of Prince
Edward Island’s shate of the fund.

v) Foreign exchange tisk management

The Commission has certain investments denominated in forcign currencies. The Commission does not undertake long-term hedging strategies for the
currency risk of foreign investments. Currency fluctuations may affect investment requrns.

vi) Credit risk management

Credit risk on fixed-term investments arises from the possibility that the issuer of an instrument fails to meet its obligation to make interest payments
and repay principal. Policy guidelines have been established to ensure the Commission holds fixed-term investments with a credit rating of A or higher.

Approximately 23% (2000 — 21%) of fixed-term investments are direct obligations of 2 Canadian chartered bank.

vii) Interest risk management

Fluctuations in interest rates are managed by varying the duration of the fixed income portfolio. The table below presents the remaining term to maturity
of the Commission’s outstanding fixed-term investments.

Remaining Term to Maturity

(000s) -
Within 1 Year Over 1 Year to Over 5 Years Total Total
5 Years 2001 2000
Fixed-term investments (fair value) $ 4491 $119,928 - $ 95895 $ 220314 $ 219,962

The average effective yicld of these fixed-term investmens is 4.82% (2000 — 5.65%) per annum based on market value.
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WORKPLACE HEALTH, SAFETY AND COMPENSATION COMMISSION OF NEwW BRUNSWICK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2001

S. CAPITAL ASSETS

2001 2000
(000s) (000s)
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value Value
Land $ 162 $ - $ 162 $ 162
Buildings 11,246 5,737 5,509 5,650
Furniture and equipment 4,135 3,242 893 858
Computer software and hardware 6,567 4,103 2,464 2,638
Motor vehicles 249 117 132 175
' $ 22359 $ 13,19 $ 9,160 $ 9483
6. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2001 2000
(000s) (000s)
Accounts payable and accruals $ 7,745 $ 6770
Post-employment benefits 2,333 2,275
$ 10,078 $ 9,045
7. BENEFITS LIABILITIES
i) Continuity schedule 2001 2000
(000s) (000s)
Short-term
disability and Long-term Survivor Health
rehabititation benehits benefits care Total Towl
Balance, beginning of year $ 80483 § 309,263 $ 121,707 $ 111,446 $ 622,899 $ 539,084
Add daims costs incurred:
Current year injuries 40,157 25,671 2,610 29,828 98,266 87,586
Prior years' injuries 4,053 39,280 5,780 19,926 69,039 76,726
44,210 64,951 8,390 49,754 167,305 164,312
Less claims payments made:
Current year injuries 12,600 77 119 8,275 21,071 19,492
Prior years injuries 25,807 26,490 18,145 24,290 94,732 75,085
38,407 26,567 18,264 32,565 115,803 94,577
Balance, before legislative change 86,286 347,647 111,833 128,635 674,401 608,819
Effect of legislative change - - (4,160) - (4,160) 14,080
Balance, end of year $ 86286 $ 347,647 $ 107,673 $ 128,635 $ 670,241 $ 622,899
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7. BENEFITS LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

ii) Legislative change

During 2000, the provincial Legislature enacted the Special Payment to Certain Dependent Spouses of Deceased Workers Act, which provides a special
payment of $80,000 to surviving spouses whose benefits were terminated prior to April 17, 1985 as a result of remarriage or cohabitation, provided such
surviving spouses file a prescribed claim form by the specified time limit of September 30, 2001.

In 2001, payments of $9.92 million were made to 124 eligible dependent spouses. The Province of New Brunswick and other self-insured employers
contributed $2.42 million of these funds and the Commission funded the remaining $7.50 million. In 2000, the Commission estimated that there were
176 dependent spouses eligible for these benefits. In 2001, the benefits fiability was reduced by $4.16 million to reflect the actual number of eligible

dependent spouses.

iii) Current year injuries 2001 2000
» (000s) 000s)
Present value Claims Present value Claims
Chims of expected costs Claims of expected costs
payments future costs incurred payments future costs incurred
Short-term disability
and rehabilitation $ 12,600 $ 27557 $ 40,157 $ 11,389 $ 26,062 $ 37451
Long-term disability 77 25,594 25,671 174 20,457 20,631
Survivor benefits 119 2,491 2,610 21 1,249 1,270
Health care 8,275 21,553 29,828 7,908 20,326 28,234
$ 21,071 $ 77195 $ 98266 $ 19492 $ 68,094 $ 87586
iv) Prior years’ injuries

. Significant changes in benefits liabilities and claims costs incurred for prior years injuries arising from the estimate of the benefits liabilities performed as
at year end included the following:

* Increase (decrease) in benefits
liabilities and daims costs incurred

2001 2000

(000s) {000s)
Reduction in assumed indexing rate for CPI-indexed benefits $ (1,400) $ (5.800)
Unfavourable experience on health care costs 3,200 3,700
Unfavourable experience on long-term disability costs 13,300 9,100
Increased benefits due to income tax changes - 12,300
Favourable experience on short-term disability and rehabilication claims (2,800) -

Provision for extraordinary claims 5,500 -
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8. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

The estimate of the benefits liabilities is based on assumptions that reflect both short-term and long-tcrm forecasts. The table below lists the principal
economic assumptions used:

2001 2000
CPlL-indexed Other CPl-indexed Other
awards payments awards payments
Gross rate of return 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Inflation — Year 1 3.05% 4.35% 2.40% 4.35%
— subsequent years 435% 4.35% 4.35% 4.35%
Net rate of return — Year 1 4.80% 3.50% 5.47% 3.50%
— subsequent years 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% - 3.50%
9. ASSESSMENTS 2001 2000
(000s) (000s)
Budger Actual Actual
Assessment income $ 95200 $ 89,539 $ 95617
Interest and penalties 600 916 853
Uncollectibles (375) (693) (520)
$ 95425 $ 89,762 $ 95950
10. SELF-INSURED EMPLOYERS
2001 2000
(000s) (000s)
Budget Actual Actual
Assessments $ 20721 $ 32772 . $ 28279
Claims costs incurred:
Short-term disability and rehabilitation 7,447 10,536 8,177
Long-term disability 4,756 9,409 10,042
Survivor benefits 910 1,258 933
Health care 4,608 8,484 . 6,535
' 17,721 29,687 25,687
Administration 3,000 3,085 2,592

$ 20721 $ 32,772 $ 28,279
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11. ADMINISTRATION .
1) Categories 2001 2000
(000s) (000s)
Budget Actual Actual
Salaries and employee benefits $ 18824 $ 18,323 $ 18,271
Depreciation ‘ 1,600 2,127 1,735
Professional fees 967 1,020 908
Office and communications 1,569 1,634 1,536
Building operations 2,351 2,173 2,172
Travel and vehide operations 1,207 1,087 1,060
Education and training 493 429 381
Other 783 751 729
‘ 27,794 27,544 26,792
Allocated to health care claims costs (2,200) (2,293) (2,223)
$ 25594 $ 25251 $ 24,569

A portion of the Commission's administration costs represent charges incurred by the Commission through the Workers' Rehabilitation Centre. This
portion, which relates to claims, has been allocated to health care.

ii) Presentation
2001 2000
(000s) (000s)
Budget Actual Actual
Operations $ 19117 $ 18910 $ 18,252
Occupational health and safety 6,477 6,341 6,317
' $ 25594 $ 25251 $ 24,569

12. LEGISLATIVE OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

These finandal statements include the results of operating activities with various Provincial Government controlled departments, agencies and Crown
Corporations, with which the Commission may be considered related. The Commission is required by legislation to reimburse the Provindial Government
for operating costs of the Workers' and Employers’ Advocates.

Investments in the amount of $1.3 million (2000 — $2.1 million) held by the Commission at December 31, 2001 were issuied by the Province, its agencies,
or municipalities and guaranteed by the Province. .

13. EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN : -

The Commission and its employces participate in a contributory defined benefic pension plan, administered by the Province of New Brunswick under the
Public Service Superannuation Act. The plan provides pensions to employees of the Provindial Government and certain Crown Corporations and agencies
based on the length of service and highest successive five year average salary. The expensc for this pension plan is equivalent to the annual contribution of
$0.94 million (2000 — $0.93 million). The Province has advised the Commission that the plan was fully funded as at April 1, 2000.

14. BUDGET
The 2001 budget figures which are presented for comparison with the acual figures were approved by the Commissions Board of Directors and have
not been audited.

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain of the 2000 figures which are presented for comparative purposes have been redlassified to conform with the presentation adopted in the current year.
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Office of the Bureau du
Auditor General vérificateur général

N 1 1 . N o
Nouveau £G Brunswick
AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairperson and Members
Youth Council of New Brunswick

1 have audited the balance sheet of the Youth Council of New Brunswick as at 31 March 2002 and the
statement of revenue, expense and surplus for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Council's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit.

! conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements présent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Council as at 31 March 2002 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

KD ROOA nov
K. D. Robinson, CA
Deputy Auditor General

Fredericton, N. B.
10 September 2002
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YOUTH COUNCIL OF NEW BRUNSWICK
BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2002

. 2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $ 67,950 $ 49,188
Accounts receivable 78,847 6,436
$ 146,797 $ 55,624
 LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 82,308 $ 3,175
Accrued salaries payable _ 1,875 2,669
84,183 5,844
Surplus 62,614 49,780

$ 146,797 $ 55,624

Approved by the Council

Chairperson

‘A\m Member
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSE AND SURPLUS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002
2002 2002 2001
Budget Actual Actual
REVENUE
Operating grant from the Province of New Brunswick $ 120,000 $ 122,413 $ 118,300
Other grants 14,000 95,891 54,350
Miscellaneous _ - 24,316 8,666
Administration fee revenue 22,500 20,258 14,544
Youth Connexions Jeunesse (Schedule A) 341,480 331,119 188,087
497,980 593,997 383,947
- EXPENSE
Salaries and benefits 88,000 " 117,640 82,669
Travel, accommodations and meals 17,000 27,541 26,545
Printing and photocopying 12,000 8,450 5,703
Telephone 7,000 5,042 6,216
Office expenses 6,000 10,382 6,840
Public relations and advertising 1,500 650 2,413
Honoraria 3,000 2,113 138
Furniture and equipment 4,000 6,342 3,972
Professional services 500 1,646 5,415
Translation 1,500 10,770 8,286
Professional development 1,000 - -
Repairs and maintenance 750 - 85
Bank charges 300 240 186
Conference and meeting 2,000 995 1,871
Miscellaneous 24,500 3,500 42
Special projects 10,600 81,434 -
Youth Connexions Jeunesse (Schedule A) 340,216 304,418 188,395
519,866 581,163 338,776
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSE $ (21,886) 12,834 45,171
Surplus, beginning of year 49,780 4,609
SURPLUS, end of year $ 62,614 $ 49,780
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1. Purpose of the organization
The Council was established by a cabinet decision in May 1986 and the appointment of the Council
was announced in March 1987. The Council began operations in May 1987.
The Youth Council’s mission statement reads as follows:
The Youth Council of New Brunswick is the provincial body representative of youth
which voices the interests, needs, concerns and perspectives of young people aged 15 -
24, and presents recommendations to government and the public. This is achieved by
acting as an advisory and advocacy body, through resource co-ordination and by
research and consultation. Through its actions, the Youth Council of New Brunswick
strives to be a catalyst for increasing youth involvement in society.
2. Capital assets
it is the policy of the Council to charge all capital asset purchases to expense in the period in which
the expenditure is incurred.
3. Services provided by the Province of New Brunswick
The Council uses an office building owned by the Province of New Brunswick and there are no
rental charges.
4. Youth Connexions Jeunesse ~ Purpose of the organization

The Council established Youth Connexions Jeunesse (YCJ), a youth information centre, in
November 1993.

In 2000, as part of the Youth Connexions Jeunesse operation, the Fredericton Youth Information
Line which provides assistance and information on employment-related services and programs was
taken on.

A new component was also taken on in 2001. The “Job Search Centre” offers a number of different
services to meet the needs of job seekers.

The YCJ's mission statement reads as foliows:

YCJ's mission is to facilitate connections between young people and various
agencies/organizations in New Brunswick and beyond, sensitizing the public to youth issues by
creating broad partnerships and promoting a sense of community involvement with youth
throughout the province.
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YOUTH COUNCIL OF NEW BRUNSWICK

SCHEDULE A

SCHEDULE OF YOUTH CONNEXIONS JEUNESSE REVENUE AND EXPENSE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

REVENUE \
Province of New Brunswick
Operating grant

EXPENSE
Salaries and benefits
Administration
Casuals
Furniture and equipment
Printing and photocopying
Office expenses
Telephone
Professional services
Conference
Travel, accommodations and meals
Public relations and advertising
Repairs and maintenance
Info Line
Rent
Job Search Centre

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSE

2002 2001
$331,119  $188,087
44,719 39,905
206,957 117,244
- 3,120
1,106 632
1,691 2,449
2,882 3,406
200 419
60 215
1,118 930
- 628
1,072 853
21,931 14,114
5,472 4,480
17,210 -
304,418 188,395
$ 26,701 $ (308)







